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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman)

Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (Chief Executive)

Mr. Zhang Suwei (General Manager)
(resigned on 17 June 2019)

Mr. Liu Min (General Manager)
(appointed on 17 June 2019)

Mr. Feng Yi
(resigned on 31 March 2020)

Ms. Li Tao

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Jiansheng
(resigned on 31 March 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jin

Mr. Li Liuging

Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael
Ms. Zhao Jun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Liuging (Chairman)
Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael
Ms. Zhao Jun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Zhao Jun (Chairlady)
Mr. Zhang Yingcen
Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman)
Ms. Zhao Jun
Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael
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Company Profile (Continued)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
(appointed on 31 March 2020)
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond
(appointed on 26 July 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond
(appointed on 26 July 2019)

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

4th Floor,

Tian Lun Group Building,
No.6 Huang He East Road,
Zheng Dong Xin District,
Zhengzhou City,

Henan Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Unit 1603, 16th Floor
100 Queen’s Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clifton House
75 Fort Street
PO Box 1350
Grand Cayman
KY1-1108
Cayman Islands
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CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Ltd
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building,

Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Loong & Yeung

Room 1603, 16/F, China Building
29 Queen’s Road Central,

Central, Hong Kong
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FEFRIRIT PRINCIPAL BANKERS
FREZITRODBRAR] China Construction Bank Corporation
PERITRDBR AR Bank of China Limited
BELBEZRITAERAR The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
[ arig e STOCK CODE
01600 01600
REEBERBS INVESTOR RELATIONS
FEh 86371 63707151 Telephone : 86 371 6370 7151
{5 : 86 371 6397 9930 Fax : 863716397 9930
B : hk@tianlungas.com E-mail : hk@tianlungas.com
#84k  www.tianlungas.com Website : www.tianlungas.com
ok - HA Address  : Hong Kong:
BFAEFIR Unit 1603, 16th Floor, 100 Queen’s Road Central
E2RAEF 10051612 1603 = Central, Hong Kong
Bl - Mainland:
A B R SR T Department of Investor Relations,
B SR [ 4th Floor, Tian Lun Group Building,
=R R RN No.6 Huang He East Road,
RfmEEREOE Zheng Dong Xin District,
WEHBEFRES Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, the PRC
4R © 450003 Zip Code : 450003
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Business Regions (Continued)

HhRRIEE LNGIHKERE RBER
Urban Gas Project LNG Plant Long-haul
Project Transmission
Pipeline
BET  AMNEESRRER BHEXSERE  FFEW 2 BEW AT BT EER - FIELL
e SN R EET R RES 5% 5 0 RER 2% 9HE - FHEK&- Pingdingshan

% FEX% FRIFXER BHFE FRHHMRERIE
B W25 0% HeE X5 Sl mrE -
L - TBGABIE - W) || B4R

Hebi City, Shilin Industrial Assemble Zone, Heqi Industrial

ISR - B8

Hebi City, Xuchang City, Shangjie
District in Zhengzhou City,
Minguan County, Song County,

City

eIl Assemble Zone, Xuchang City, Xuchange New Area, Shangjie Xinye County, Weishi County,
HENAN District in Zhengzhou City, High-tech District in Puyang Xichuan County, Ye County
City, Minquan County, Song County, Xinye County, Weishi
County, Xinwei Industrial Park, Gangwei New District,
Weibei Technology and Food Industrial Park, Lankao County,
Xichuan County, Baofeng County, Ye County, Wugang City,
Xiping County, Shengiu County, township in Jia County,
township in Xichuan County
Bitm - BAT - AL - AT - BN HES  BR  Fubd - BAm - ARWm - LA ReEH ALm
% REDEBLCBHER  FRWEEAS XK W BT - B - $AEH% K Changling Da’an City
Dunhua City, Panshi City, Da’an City, Jiutai City, Tongyu AMEEE  RIGE L% County
-+ County, Zhenlai County, Nong’an County, Changchun Airport Dunhua City, Panshi City, Da’an
= Economic Zone, Yitong Manchu Autonomous County, Qian’an City, Jiutai City, Baicheng City,
JILIN County Tongyu County, Zhenlai County,
Shuangyang District in Changchun
City, Changling County, Qian’an
County
E&E 22K EET  Er% - RUE BEF% TR% 2K EET - ER% 0K
YUNNAN Huize County, Gejiu City, Guangnan County, Yanshan County, Huize County, Gejiu City,
Ludian County, Hekou County Guangnan County, Hekou County
W = BR BE CTEhaE - AR B BB
SHANDONG Cao County, Shan County, Gaoxin District in Heze City, Cao County, Shan County
Dongming County
EA ERG - EBE
GUANGXI Luzhai County, Guanyang County
HE BET - HRE BEET - ERE
GANSU Baiyin City, Gulang County Baiyin City, Gulang County
il MO - BRI RO 5%
HUNAN Dongkou County, Fenghuang County Dongkou County
A db ARETHRER e
HEBEI Yuhua District in Shijiazhuang Xingtai City
FNTTREMASE BN TIFF R - BINTEREE - ILsEmEE
& AT R - ZET
E ﬁ Longhu Town in Chaozhou City, Fuyan Town in Chaozhou
GUANGDONG City, Dongfeng Town in Chaozhou City, Chenghai District in
Shantou City, Chaoyang District in Shantou City, Lechang
City
B 7 B B8RS KEE  REH %% BEE REH
SHAANXI Qian County, Liquan County, Mizhi County, Wubu County Qian County, Liquan County, Wubu
County
T % RiTTe
JIANGSU Waujiang City
)| RATHHE « RPT LG
SICHUAN Xindu District in Chengdu City,
Jintang County in Chengdu City
EE =M
FUJIAN Sanming City
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BERMBERE

OPERATION & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ITExAF#ERE RIERE
GAS SALES VOLUME TO INDUSTRIAL & TOTAL GAS SALES VOLUME
COMMERCIAL USERS (#1277K) (0000 m’)

(B 752K) (0000 m3)

156,640
78,190

65,510 129,236

56,573 106,359
91,752
45,266
30,942 62,05
11,082 | 25,759 I
(2014 (2014

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

HRIBMALRE
STRUCTURE OF REVENUE FROM GAS SALES

FR - AEEHENETAF IH¥AF  BAFP - 1R
B9  IXAPERRMMEEEHMEERAD IMEEIHE
WA18.1% * 35.4% ~ 10.7% * 6.6% * 16.1% % 12.3% °

During the year, the revenue from gas sales of the Group
to residential users, industrial and commercial users,
transportation users, gas source trade, direct supply to
industrial users and direct supply to urban gas enterprises
accounted for 18.1%, 35.4%, 10.7%, 6.6%, 16.1% and
12.3% of total revenue from gas sales, respectively.

® ® o o ® o
fEEmP TRERP ZEAP FRES T¥APHEM  WMeRER

Residential users  Industrial and commercial users  Transportation users  Gas source trade  direct supply to direct supply to
Industrial users Urban gas enterprises

HE X fRRIERER AR 2019FFEHRE
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Operation & Financial Highlights (Continued)

2 ERAF
AGGREGATE CONNECTIONS USERS
(7 ) (users)
3,247,483
2,354,203
1,636,226
1,334,299
1,022,122
794,217 |
(2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

HRER
GAS SALES STRUCTURE

RICEBRREEAF
TOTAL NUMBER OF CONNECTED
RESIDENTIAL USERS

(F) (households)
3,224,163
2,334,714
1,621,270
1,325,382
1,016,385

790,097 |

‘ 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

FR - AEEHERETERF IFEAF  KBAF R
RES  TXRPERRMMEXEHRRED HIGINRAH
£20.0%  32.8%  10.0% * 7.4% ~ 17.0% }. 12.8% °

During the year, the volume of gas of the Group sold
to residential users, industrial and commercial users,
transportation users, gas source trade, direct supply to
industrial users and direct supply to urban gas enterprises
accounted for 20.0%, 32.8%, 10.0%, 7.4%, 17.0% and
12.8% of total gas sales volume, respectively.

® o ®
fEEMF TRERP REAP

Residential users  Industrial and commercial users  Transportation users

o o o

RIRE S ITXRAFEH R B

Gas source trade  direct supply to direct supply to
Industrial users Urban gas enterprises

China Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Operation & Financial Highlights (Continued)

LN
REVENUE
AE®F7T RMB'000

6,548,618
5,113,254
3,109,014
2,693,094
2,251,970
1,343,936 | |
( 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
FEFHE
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
AE¥F 7T RMB’000
813,465
600,360
429,157
317,982 334,409
250,939 | I
(2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

K 10 +TEXGREZERERAT 2019FEERE

SHEWBA
REVENUE FROM GAS SALES
AER#F7T RMB'000

4,061,413

2019 '
RRBMBERLFE

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

OF THE COMPANY
AR FT RMB’000

3,227,688

2,428,110
2,054,716
1,650,141
747,829 l |
‘ 2014

2015 2016 2017 2018

789,179
569,142
404,250
284,242 313379
220,153 l |
( 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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Operation & Financial Highlights (Continued)

MBREE
Financial Highlights
2018 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
WA RFE Revenue and profit
WA Revenue 5,113,254 6,548,618
P RFERATRE Profit before income tax 864,804 1,127,380
et &R Income tax expense 264,444 313,915
S FEFHE Profit for the year 600,360 813,465
EERERE Assets and liabilities
IERBEE Non-current assets 7,902,247 8,040,649
: MENEE Current assets 3,531,846 3,898,132
: FRBEaE Non-current liabilities 4,422,906 4,438,631
: mENEE Current liabilities 3,467,418 3,312,830
e NIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,075,907 1,349,836
: 1 Equity
: f& 7 Share capital 8,340 8,430
&% 4 | Share premium 1,188,151 1,029,366
SEEBRARRAEE Equity attributable to owners of the Company 3,249,868 3,890,784
: JES A R 2 Non-controlling interests 293,901 296,536
b Total equity 3,543,769 4,187,320
TR ES — BTN Earnings per share — basic earnings per share 0.58 0.80
: (AR¥T) (RMB)
: BIBEE
:  Financial Indicators
: 2018 2019
3 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTIT AR%T T
RS Gross profit margin 27.9% 26.0%
: F & Net profit margin 11.7% 12.4%
: B = Current ratio 101.9% 117.7%
BEAGE Assets gearing ratio 69.0% 64.9%
= NEIE &40 Return on capital® 22.3% 22.7%
: w BOFE FHEBRARRREEZ © Core profit/average equity attributable to owners of the Company
2018 2019
ON-T —
o HRIWA Sale of gas 63.1% 62.0%
REVENUE STRUCTURE TREZE Revenue from engineering 34.2% 36.0%
RRFEUL A construction services
36.0% Eo Others 2.7% 2.0%
34.2%

FR - AEBEWRRERAREEES - TRZRERBEEFBMECEBRAGLE
WARELED B R#162.0% - 36.0% &% 2.0% ° B » —T— L FRREIZE & #H
EEBBRAR T — \FIEKH25.8%

During the year, the revenue from transportation and sales of gas business,
engineering construction service business and other operation of the Group
accounted for approximately 62.0%, 36.0% and 2.0% of total revenue,

respectively. In 2019, revenue from transport and sales of gas as a percentage

of total revenue increased by approximately 25.8% from 2018.

China Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

2FEEE

“E-NF BEEPEHR R NERE
R RARTEARLEET RS RE
B RFEEREEL aNAFHE - RR
MERRERE - AARBEFTERESE -

FR - EFBRXBARRIERERAE (AR
AR REMBRAR (KB AEE]) 2
BEIMNERBNT  ARKEEERE
BE - WAEIHAREES49ETT &b
—E - \FRHHEE28.1%  EFIEZD
WARE17.048TT BEFREPEELD
19.3% : FEZOFBEINARKS.11E
T =T \FREERL20.6% - =
T-NEF  AEENHEREN A 15618
R BT N\FREERL21.2% -
SEEEAF R E1E53,247,483F -

FERMBRRIEZERERDQE 2019FFERE

BYFAE B IS AETT - g R 1L E A 1
& BEIFR IR BT B IR IR E BT
FIsra B RZEfE] o —FE_FF  XgR K4
BB EN - WIERITT °

With steady economic progress in China, supply-
side structural reforms, energy restructuring,
gas consumption has ushered into a new era of
growth. In 2020, Tian Lun Gas continues to set
foot on ground and forge ahead.

b2y g
Zhang Yingcen, Chairman

ANNUAL RESULTS

In 2019, as reforms in oil and gas sector continued to intensify, natural
gas industry witnessed high-speed growth and steered toward high-quality
development. Due to the rolling out of favourable policies by the country, the
development in gas market became standardized and dynamics of supply
and demand in the natural gas sector has been more equalised than ever.

During the year, with the concerted efforts of all staff members of China Tian
Lun Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”), the Company’s operating results continued to record growth.
Revenue amounted to approximately RMB6,549 million, representing an
increase of 28.1% compared with the corresponding period in 2018. Gross
profit amounted to approximately RMB1,704 million, representing an
increase of approximately 19.3%, compared to the corresponding period
of last year. Annual core profit recorded RMB811 million, representing
an increase of 20.6%, compared to the corresponding period in 2018. In
2019, the Group’s gas sales volume was approximately 1,560 million cubic
meters, representing an increase of approximately 21.2% compared to the
corresponding period in 2018. The total number of gas users from various
categories of the Group reached 3,247,483.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

In 2019, in order to encourage work incentive and foster sense of belonging
amongst staff members, the Group has painstakingly made improvements
on its talent training system, extending from training models, compensation
and benefits, to performance evaluation. To effectively identify and nurture
cadre reserve, our Groups has actively carried out management training for
reserve cadre so as to improve their respective comprehensive strength; to
help newly recruited college students to rapidly grow, by setting up the “Star
of Tian Lun Gas” (K¥AZ £ ) training programme, we are able to provide
more systematic and comprehensive trainings to these future management
talents for the Group and its member companies. In addition, as the
Group attaches great importance to the building of think-tank echelon,
it formulated a comprehensive talent reserve registry for existing staff
members, and compiled the “Tian Lun Gas Group Case Study Library”, to
circulate and share practical case study and work experiences.

During the year, the Group also made good progress in customer service,
risk management and safety management. In terms of customer service, we
further improved the customer-network-management model and incorporated
the aforesaid model into the Group’s value-added business, so as to
formulate a synergetic implementation plan for value-added business. Our
Group has proceeded to build and operate a call centre at regional level that
serves to identify and resolve customer needs promptly, thereby, improving
the overall quality of customer service. In terms of risk management,
our Group established a full-fledged early risk alert system, promote
standardized contract management, initiate monthly statistical reporting
mechanism for contract ledger, and officially release the “Tian Lun Gas
Group Risk Management Handbook” to provide guidelines on risk prevention
and response. In terms of safety management, we adhere to supervisory
undertakings to prevent against the occurrence of “three violations”,
in terms of “constitutional non-compliance operation, non-compliance
supervision, and labour law non-compliance”. As such, our Group regularly
inspects and rectifies hidden safety hazards, applies disciplines of safety
management into daily operation, and effectively protects the livelihood and
property of the general public.

China Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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During the year, the Group systematically carried out standardised
measurement procedure, continued to strengthen cost management at
local level, and optimized material management system. Our Group highly
concerned with the positive impact of cost management on fostering
corporate competitive edge. In terms of information management, our Group
is set to found a comprehensive financial system, supply chain management
system and scanning system for material identification code, introduce gas
self-service charging stations, as well as to establish the SCADA system,
applied to long-distance pipeline covering Yuzhou to Changge. The Group
has embarked to establish and improve the “Tian Lun Gas Information
Network”, so as to comprehensively improve the operation efficiency and
effectiveness.

OUTLOOK

In 2019, reform measures in China’s oil and gas sectors continued to
take off. Against the overwhelming tidal trend of applying national natural
gas and launch of environmental protection policies, the relative share of
natural gas in energy structure has been rising steadily and rapidly in China.
Meanwhile, resource development at upstream level and infrastructure
construction have both encouraged the infusion of social capital. Besides,
along with the listing of the China Oil and Gas Piping Network Corporation,
and the full-launch connection and operation of the China-Russia east-
route natural gas pipeline, the Group is ushered into a new era of emerging
opportunities.

In 2020, the Group will readily seize the opportunity brought about by the
favourable national policies for natural gas development, through speedy
scale expansion. The Group is set to maintain the steady growth in gas
sales, and continues to improve the service quality of traditional urban
gas operations. Meanwhile, the Group will develop value-added products
and build an ecosystem for its services provision, enter into “marketing
omni-channels via “online plus offline” platforms, and thus, to enable
diversification of marketing strategies, and enhance core competitive
strength. The Group will steadily promote the high-quality operation on
coal-to-gas conversion projects in Henan townships, increase mergers and
acquisitions of urban gas projects in Henan, and explore new paths and
models for collaborative venture and partnership. With the joint initiatives
in inviting coal-to-gas users and the optimised gas network coverage at city
level, the Group strives to commence a number of gas supply assurance
projects for long-distance pipelines in Henan province. In addition, the
Group has thoroughly reviewed its management procedure, intensified
its cost control management, improved risk management capabilities,
optimized its organizational structure, as well as strengthened team building
effort. As such, the Group aims to promote continuous and steady growth, to
bring along pleasing returns and maximized benefits to its shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | owe a debt of gratitude to
our staff members for their indispensable contributions in 2019, and |
overwhelmingly appreciate the ongoing support from the Shareholders and
investors of the Company.

Zhang Yingcen
Chairman

31 March 2020
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2019, as China is continuously deepening the reform in the oil and
gas system, the domestic demand and supply of natural gas continued
to grow steadily. According to the official data of natural gas from the
National Development and Reform Commission of China (the “NDRC") and
the National Bureau of Statistics, the apparent consumption nationwide
was 306.7 billion m3, representing a year-on-year growth of 9.4%; the
production was 173.62 billion m3, representing a year-on-year growth
of 9.8%; and the annual total import volume was 96.56 million tons,
representing a year-on-year growth of 6.9%. China has become a major
during force to global natural gas consumption. Natural gas has become a
highly regarded alternative energy source in China due to its cleanliness and
safety. It has gradually established a prominent position as one of the main
energy sources of China’s modern clean energy system, with good industrial
development prospects.

In order to deepen the market-oriented reform and promote the rapid
development of high-quality industries, the NDRC has issued a series of
policies to guide and support them. In March 2019, the NDRC released
the Implementing Opinions on the Reform of the Operation Mechanism
of Oil and Gas Pipeline Networks, aiming to, through the reform, form an
oil and gas market system with multi-agent and multi-channel supply of
upstream oil and gas resources, efficient collection and transmission of a
unified central pipeline network, and full competition in the downstream
sales market. In April 2019, the NDRC promulgated the Catalogue for
Guiding Industry Restructuring (2019 edition, consultation paper), aiming
to promote the rapid development of encouraged industries that are
conducive to meeting the needs of people’s good lives and promoting high-
quality development, including the natural gas industry and related industry
categories.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In June 2019, the NDRC and the Ministry of Commerce issued the Special
Administrative Measures for the Admission of Foreign Investment (Negative
List) (2019 edition). The purpose of the said policy is to remove restrictions
on foreign investment to enable foreign enterprises to get access to the
industrial chain of urban gas supply and participate in the competitive
market with equal treatment as domestic gas groups, thereby stimulating
the vitality of the entire energy market and driving industrial upgrading.
In the same month, the NDRC and the National Energy Administration
of China jointly issued the Measures for the Fair and Open Supervision
of Qil and Gas Pipeline Network Facilities, further specifying the fair and
open measures and improving corresponding regulatory requirements. The
implementation of the measures will effectively improve the fair, open and
utilization efficiency of midstream facilities, increase the oil and gas supply
volume and efficiency, and promote diversified competition in the oil and
gas market.

In August 2019, during a special treatment and control meeting devoted
to discuss the Henan Province’s “Three Scattered” issue, the Government
of Henan Province announced that it aims to carry out coal replacing
and conversion plans in 2,000,000 coal-burning households by the end
of 2019, in order to strengthen air pollution control in Henan Province.
The “Three Scattered” issue refers to three sources of pollution, namely
“scattered, unregulated and polluting” enterprises, scattered coal used by
households, and scattered dust caused by coal burning. The Henan Province
has focused on the “Three Scattered” issue and commenced special control
plans, with the aim of replacing 2,000,000 coal-burning households with
electricity or natural gas (known as the “Two Replacements”) and enhancing
the control of dust pollution in a comprehensive manner by the end of
2019.

In October 2019, ten departments including the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment, the NDRC and the people’s governments of Beijing and Henan
Province jointly issued the Action Plan for the Comprehensive Management
of Air Pollution in Autumn and Winter 2019-2020 in the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei and Surrounding Areas. The said action plan calls for the steady
and continuous improvement of the ambient air quality, full completion
of the 2019 ambient air quality improvement goals in the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region and surrounding areas, and resolute victory in the blue-sky
protection campaign to lay a solid foundation for building a moderately
prosperous society in all respects. With the progress of China’s urbanization,
the implementation of policies is expected to usher in a golden development
age of coal-to-gas conversion in townships.
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In December 2019, after five years of construction, the China-Russia East-
Route Natural Gas Pipeline, hailed as the main energy artery between
China and Russia, was officially put into operation, becoming an effective
supplement to China’s imported gas sources. As a landmark project of
China-Russia energy cooperation, the China-Russia East-Route Natural Gas
Pipeline will promote the sustainable economic and social development in
regions along the pipeline, especially in Northeast China.

The deepening of the market-oriented reform in the natural gas industry, the
launch of relevant policies favorable for environmental protection, and the
official operation of the China-Russia East-Route Natural Gas Pipeline at the
end of 2019 will optimize the industrial structure and promote balance the
between supply and demand in natural gas industry, thus becoming a strong
policy support for the Group to expand the natural gas market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group deeply explored the
potential of various users in the existing gas market, selectively acquired
high-quality urban gas projects, accelerated the development of township
coal-to-gas business, and created new value-added business. As a result,
the Group maintained the rapid growth of its overall performance.
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REERZZ—NFTZA=1T—HIEF The key results and operating data of the Group for the year ended 31
EHNXTESHXEHEFHBERAFRBLE December 2019 as compared to the corresponding period of the previous

NN year are as follows:
BE+-A=t—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-NF —T-N\F 23
2019 2018 Change by
WA (NREFT) Revenue (RMB’000) 6,548,618 5,113,254 28.1%
EF(AREFTT) Gross profit (RMB’000) 1,703,892 1,428,216 19.3%
FERLFBE(ARBTIT) Core profit for the year* (RMB'000) 811,376 672,992 20.6%
FESEBRARFMES Profit attributable to owners
(ARETIT) of the Company (RMB’000) 789,179 569,142 38.7%
TS (B : F) Weighted average shares (Unit: '000) 990,849 989,615 0.1%
GRS — HEA(AR®IL)  Earnings per share** — basic (RMB) 0.80 0.58 37.9%
ZREEMRRAP Total pipeline gas users: 3,247,483 2,354,203 37.9%
—EERFP(FH) — Residential users (households) 3,224,163 2,334,714 38.1%
— IEERF (PR — Industrial and commercial users (users) 23,320 19,489 19.7%
— I¥APEEER — Designed daily gas supply capacity
FEHERE (BLAK) to industrial and commercial users
(in ten thousand m?) 868 755 15.0%
AARBEE (FULAK) Natural gas sales volume
(in thousand m3): 1,566,402 1,292,361 21.2%
— FERAFPRARHES — Natural gas sales volume to
(FiAK) residential users (in thousand m?3) 312,577 256,754 21.7%
—WmRRIEERRP — Urban natural gas sales volume to
RARHE R * (FHXkK) industrial and commercial users ***
(in thousand m3) 515,106 407,215 26.5%
— XBAFPKARHES — Natural gas sales volume
(Frhk) to transportation users
(in thousand m3) 156,395 141,225 10.7%
— RRES (FIUHK) — Gas source trade (in thousand m3) 115,347 57,310 101.3%
— I¥RAPEM(FIAXK) — Direct supply to industrial users
(in thousand m3) 266,796 247,883 7.6%
— PR EEMR(FIHK) — Direct supply to urban gas enterprises
(in thousand m3) 200,181 181,974 10.0%
EHEBMAREE (T AK)  Long-haul pipeline gas transmission
volume (in thousand m?3) 761,783 867,586 -12.2%
ZAPeBEERE(RE) Total length of medium and
high-pressure pipelines (kilometre) 5,048 4,408 14.5%
* MBREMEIEFRE EBEBAREE  * Excluding other losses — net, cross currency swap contracts and investment in
FLIRE o a trust.
o BIEEESHENRTE  SEF/RKE  * In accordance with the requirements of the relevant accounting standards,
B LB IET L - earning per share of the Group will be subject to the weighted average

number of ordinary shares.
BREBES>DTNI/EAFER  ***  Net of gas sales volume to industrial and commercial users of the long-haul
pipeline gas transmission segment.

*
*
*
i
o
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Engineering Construction Service Volume

The Group actively developed urban gas residential users and township coal-
to-gas business in Henan's operating areas. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group connected a total of 839,115 new residential users to
gas pipelines, and the total number of residential users to gas pipelines
increased to 3,224,163, representing an increase of 38.1% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group provided engineering
construction service for a total of 3,431 industrial and commercial users to
gas pipelines, and the total number of its industrial and commercial users
under the projects operated by the Group increased to 23,320, representing
an increase of 19.7% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year.

Gas Sales Volume

For the year ended 31 December 2019, natural gas sales volume of the
Group amounted to 1,566 million m3, representing an increase of 274
million m3 or 21.2%, as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. Gas volume sold to residential users, industrial and commercial users,
transportation gas users, gas source trade, direct supply to industrial users
and direct supply to urban gas enterprises accounted for 20.0%, 32.8%,
10.0%, 7.4%, 17.0% and 12.8% of total gas sales volume, respectively.

Benefiting from the continued promotion of the environmental protection
policy of the country and the Group’s strategy of vigorously developing
industrial and commercial coal-to-gas users within the operating area, urban
gas sales volume to industrial and commercial users increased by 26.5% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. During the year ended
31 December 2019, pipeline gas transmission volume of the Group was
762 million m3.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Development of New Projects

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group completed full
takeover of the operation and management and consolidation of financial
statements of the project in Xiping County, Zhumadian City in Henan
Province. During the year, the Group had another three new urban gas
projects, including the grant of the pipeline gas concession rights in Xichuan
County, Henan Province, and Jia County, Henan Province and the acquisition
of urban gas project in Shengiu County, Henan Province, among which, the
financial results of the project in Shengiu County, Henan Province had not
been consolidated into the Group in 2019. At the end of 2019, the Group
had a total of 63 urban gas projects in 15 provinces across China.

Completion of the Acquisition of the Urban Gas Project in
Xiping County, Zhumadian City, Henan Province

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group completed full
takeover of the operation and management of the target company for the
project in Xiping County, Zhumadian City, Henan Province, which was newly
acquired in November 2018, and began to conduct the consolidation of
financial statements since 31 January 2019, contributing to the Group’s
results.

Grant of Township Pipeline Gas Concession Right in Xichuan
County, Henan Province

On 9 May 2019, Henan Tian Lun Gas Group Limited a subsidiary of the
Company, was granted the exclusive concession right for pipeline gas in 15
townships in Xichuan County, Henan Province, to exclusively operate and
maintain township pipeline gas facilities, supply gas to users by pipeline,
provide emergency repair and rescue services for related pipeline gas
facilities and charge fees for a concession period of 30 years.

Xichuan County boasts sound real estate development, a considerable user
base of gas pipelines connection, and promising industrial projects with
great potential. Thanks to its abundant tourism resources, Xichuan County
is a famous tourist city in the Central China and a domestic tourist hotspot,
with the leading ecological sightseeing belt in the middle route of the South-
to-North Water Transfer Project, enjoying a good gas development foundation
for vehicles and commercial users. The acquisition of the exclusive township
pipeline gas concession right in Xichuan County will further expand the
business scope and generate synergies in township coal-to-gas project in
Henan Province, and form regional monopoly with the project in Xichuan
County under operation.
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Grant of Township Pipeline Gas Concession Right in Jia
County, Henan Province

On 20 May 2019, Henan Tian Lun Gas Pipeline Network Co., Ltd., an
indirect subsidiary of the Company, entered into “Jia County Township
Pipeline Gas Franchise Agreement” with the Housing and Urban-Rural
Development Bureau of Jia County, Henan Province and obtained the
exclusive pipeline gas concession right in 3 townships of Jia County. Tian
Lun Pipeline Network Co., Ltd. exclusively invests, constructs, operates,
maintains and upgrades municipal pipeline gas facilities in the region,
supplies gas to users by pipeline transportation, provides relevant rush repair
and rescue services in respect of the pipeline gas facilities and charges fees.
The concession period will be 30 years.

Located in the central western part of Henan Province, Jia County boasts
convenient transportation, only 80 kilometers away from Zhengzhou
International Airport. With the rapid development of the industrial economy,
Jia County has formed eight major industries including raw coal mining,
foundry, food processing, machinery manufacturing, chemical industry,
papermaking, tanning and footwear, building materials, and craft products,
with bright prospects for the future industrial gas market development.
The acquisition of the township pipeline gas concession rights can further
expand the potential of local industries and township coal-to-gas conversion.
Also, due to its neighboring to Baofeng County and Ye County, where the
Group also owns exclusive township pipeline natural gas concession rights,
it will create synergies and can further enhance the Group’s business scale
and market share in the central part of China.

Acquisition of Urban Gas Project in Shenqiu County, Henan
Province

On 28 December 2019, Henan Tian Lun Gas Group Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with
the then shareholder of Shenqiu County Huixintuan Gas Limited to acquire
the entire equity interest in Shengiu County Huixin Natural Gas Limited at a
total consideration of RMB280,000,000.
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Shengiu County, where the project locates, is the east gate of Henan
Province and the intersection connecting the Central Plains Economic
Circle and the East China Economic Circle. Shenqgiu County has gas
supplied by Huaiyang-Xiangcheng Pipeline of the Huaiyang Sub-station
of the CNPC First West-East Gas Pipeline Project, and plans to use the
gas supplied by two companies ENN and Haite in Jieshou through the
First West-East Gas Pipeline. Sufficient gas source supply will provide
strong support for the Group’s future operations. The target company has a
stable and mature business operation, with a user base including 96,000
residential households (55,000 urban households and 41,000 township
households), and 450 industrial and commercial households, and 34,000
households for gas pipelines connections, contributing to an annual gas
sales volume of approximately 22 million m3 in 2019. In addition, the gas
pipeline stretches 443 kilometers and has a coverage of 19 townships.
The follow-up investment is small and it can be quickly built into a large-
scale residential project. Shengiu County has a population of about 1.4
million. By 2030, Shengiu County plans to have a total urban population
of 495 thousand, about 165 thousand households; a population of 1.05
million in townships, about 247.5 thousand households, indicating a huge
potential for gas pipelines connections in the future. Shengiu County enjoys
fast and convenient transportation. The Zhengzhou-Hefei High-speed Rail
Project, which was officially opened to traffic at the end of 2019, and
the Nanjing-Luoyang Expressway, which runs through the whole Henan,
will accelerate the net inflow of urban population and access to further
development of local real estate and commerce. Shenqiu County has been
actively promoting the process of urban industrialization. The growth rate
of its industrial added values above the scale ranks third in Zhoukou City.
The presence of Angang Zhoukou Iron and Steel Co., Ltd. will also drive the
development of the iron and steel industrial park with a production capacity
of ten million tons to deliver a qualitative leap in industrial gas sales. In
addition, relying on the only inland port in Henan Province to access to
rivers and seas, Shenqiu County allows year-round navigation for ships with
a capacity under 2,000 tons at Shaying River Port. A number of port-based
industrial projects in such fields as metallurgical, building materials, and
new energy have been introduced and cultivated. The target company has
established long-term stable cooperation with 51 industrial users, indicating
promising future development, and gas sales of industrial users will be
steadily increased.

Through the acquisition of this project, the Group can further expand
the coverage of the Company’s coal-to-gas conversion business in Henan
Province. At the same time, this project can form synergies with the urban
gas projects of the Group that have been in operation in Henan Province, to
further increase the Group’s its market share in Henan province.
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Long-haul Pipelines

The Group has a total of six long-haul pipelines, three of which have been
put into operation and are located in Da'an City, Jilin Province, Pingdingshan
City, Henan Province and Wujiang City, Jiangsu Province, respectively, which
have played an important role in securing the Group’s gas source supply. As
at 31 December 2019, the progress of the Group’s three long-haul pipelines
under construction/planning is as follows:

° Lushan-Ruzhou Pipeline Branch of the West-East Pipeline II: The
construction of first phase has been completed, and the relevant
procedures has been completed. It has been docked with Lushan
Substation of the West-East Pipeline II, with nitrogen replacement
completed and qualified for gas supply conditions.

° Yuzhou-Changge project: The pipeline has been successfully
completed and qualified for gas supply conditions. The construction
of the station line buildings and auxiliary buildings, and installation
and commissioning of station-related equipment have been
completed. #1 valve room and #2 valve room have been installed.

° Puyang-Hebi pipeline: Sinopec’s reply to the pipeline open has been
obtained so far. Upon completion, it will further lower the gas supply
cost of Puyang subsidiary and Hebi subsidiary of the Company
and provide strong gas source support for further expansion into
surrounding pipeline market.

The Group will pay real-time attention to relevant policies of the national
pipeline network and focus on the long-haul pipelines projects supporting
the existing urban gas projects while exploring high-quality and large-
scale industrial direct supply projects, and participate in the businesses
of midstream gas source procurement, develop distributed energy and gas
transmission and supply for industrial parks and power plants from time to
time, to maintain a steady growth in the Group’s gas sales business.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue amounted
to RMB6,549 million, representing a year-on-year increase of RMB1,436
million or 28.1%. The Group’s revenue was primarily derived from the
transportation and sales of gas business, engineering construction service
business, accounting for 62.0% and 36.0% (the corresponding period of
last year: 63.1% and 34.2%), respectively, of the total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 20109.

Revenue from sales of gas

The Group delivers, distributes and sells natural gas to industrial and
commercial users, residential users, transportation users and wholesale
users in the cities in which it operates, and is engaged in pipeline gas
transmission business. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
had a significant growth in gas sales volume. Revenue from gas sales
amounted to RMB4,061 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
25.8% from RMB3,228 million for the corresponding period of last year.
In particular, revenue from gas sales to industrial and commercial users
was RMB2,090 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 24.5%
as compared with RMB1,679 million for the corresponding period of last
year; revenue from gas sales to residential users was RMB735 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 30.6% as compared with RMB563
million for the corresponding period of last year.

Revenue from engineering construction services

As of the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue generated from
engineering construction services amounted to RMB2,355 million. In
term of engineering construction services proceeds, for the year ended 31
December 2019, cash proceeds from engineering construction services
amounted to RMB2,402 million, representing an increase of 77.4%, from
RMB1,354 million for the corresponding period of last year.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group realized gross profit
of RMB1,704 million, representing an increase of RMB276 million or
19.3% from the corresponding period of last year. Overall gross profit
margin of the Group was 26.0%. Gross profit margin for gas sales was
13.1%, representing an decrease of 1.9 percentage points compared with
the corresponding period of last year. Gross profit margin for engineering
construction service was 46.8%, representing a decrease of 2.9 percentage
points compared with the corresponding period of last year, mainly due
to the lower gross profit margin of the township coal-to-gas conversion
connection carried out by the Group during the year.

Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2019, other income of the Group
amounted to RMB5 million, representing a decrease of RMB4 million as
compared with the corresponding period of last year.

Other Losses — Net

For the year ended 31 December 2019, other losses — net of the Group
amounted to RMB19 million, representing a decrease of RMB119 million as
compared with the corresponding period of last year.

Finance Expenses — Net

For the year ended 31 December 2019, finance expenses — net of the
Group amounted to RMB266 million, representing an increase of RMB85
million as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

Share of Loss after Tax of Associates and A Joint Venture

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s share of loss after tax
of associates and a joint venture amounted to RMB42 million.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2019, net profit of the Group amounted to
RMB813 million, representing an increase of RMB213 million or 35.5%, as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. For the year ended 31
December 2019, net profit margin of the Group was 12.4%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2019, net profit attributable to owners of
the Company was RMB789 million, representing an increase of RMB220
million or 38.7% as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group has been adopting prudent policies in respect of financial
resources management, including maintaining an appropriate level of cash
and cash equivalents as well as sufficient credit limits, in order to cope
with the needs of daily operation and business development and control the
borrowing at a healthy level.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group incurred capital
expenditure of RMB590 million, of which RMB268 million was used in
project acquisitions and RMB322 million in continuously improving urban
gas business. The above capital expenditure was financed by the Group’s
operating cash flows and bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held cash and cash equivalents to
RMB1,350 million in total, of which 98.9% was denominated in RMB, 1.1%
was denominated in HK dollars, safeguarding the needs of project expansion
and acquisition of businesses of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total borrowings were RMB5,192
million (among which loans denominated in RMB were RMB2,180
million, loans denominated in US dollars were RMB284 million and
loans denominated in HK dollars were RMB2,728 million). Among those
borrowings, 74.7% of which were classified as non-current liabilities, and
25.3% of which were classified as current liabilities. As at 31 December
2019, the gearing ratio, calculated based on the percentage of total
liabilities over total assets, was 64.9%.
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FINANCE COST AND EXCHANGE RISK
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s finance cost was
RMB317 million, representing an increase of 9.3% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s overseas borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies accounted for 58.0% of its total
borrowings. The Group will continue to closely monitor the changes in
exchange rates and strive to lower its finance costs through diversified
arrangements, and will adopt necessary measures to lower its exchange risk
as and when necessary.

In February 2020, the Group formally entered into a three-year loan
agreement with four banks in Asia Pacific region. According to the loan
agreement, the four banks agreed to grant a loan of US$70 million to
the Company for general operating capital turnover and vested liabilities
repayment. The financial cost of the above financial arrangement is
significantly lower than the previous loans granted to the Group. This bank
loan can not only reduce the overall financial cost of the Company, but also
supplement operating funds thus providing financial support for potential
acquisition opportunities of the Group to achieve steady and sustained
development.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Customer Services

The Group is committed to consolidate its customer services so that
the segment will grow to become the basic elements of its competitive
strength. Through upgraded customer experiences, the Group aims to
bolster brand influence and popularity. Moreover, the Group’s competence
to provide premium customer services helps develop and promote value-
added business at lower stream level, and thus invite emerging market
opportunities and profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

With its integrated and horizontal organization framework, the internet-
based management model allows effective integration and management
of resources, real-time tracking, easier access to feedback, and ongoing
improvements on quality customer service provided. To scale-up
improvement efforts on internet-based management model and enhance the
overall efficiency and standard of customer service management, the Group
actively applies internet-based operation model to facilitate centralized
training sessions and positive feedback received so far. To-date, by means
of the distributing standardized templates on work procedures and timely
follow-up routines, directives, and streaming of the internet-based operations
at corporate level, some member corporates have successfully adapted
to the internet-based operation and reached high-precision standards in
customer service provision. Due to the effort to enlist a higher number of
front-line service staff to work on-site, this has significantly reduced the
response time and promote prompt services.

Meanwhile, the Group has incorporated the internet-based management
model into value-added business implementation plan, and successfully
launched the pilot contracting hub project, covering Hebi, Xuchang,
and Lankao. Subsequently, through learnt experience from improvement
works and conclusions deduced from the pilot hub, the Group compiles
instructional booklets, including among others, relevant “business
management practices”, “standardized operation handbook”, which serve
to facilitate and standardise the healthy development of our value-added
segment.

Besides, to apply sound management that enables the effective delivery of
customer services, the Group has proceeded to build and operate local call
centre stations that help member corporates respond to customer needs
promptly. Acted as a communication portal to allow for mutual dialogue
exchange between the Group and its customers, the local call center stations
painstakingly streamline and improve the processing procedure for customer
services and thus promote the overall efficiency and quality of the customer
services.

Safety Management

The Group certainly acknowledges the crucial role played by safety
management in the course of production and operation development of
the Company. Therefore, the Group continues to nurture safety awareness
among staff members and improve safety standard of various facilities
applied in the production process. Our Group also continues to promote the
standardised and institutionalised operation practice for safety management.
All such measures aim to enable the healthy running of the Group’s
production system and to safeguard seamless business operation.
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To consolidate safety management with respect to service executives, we
adopt supervisory measures to prevent against the occurrence of “three
violations”, in terms of “constitutional non-compliance operation, non-
compliance supervision, and labour law non-compliance”. As such, our
Group has carried out more than 90 thousand inspection at corporate
level within the year. While severe disciplinary penalties were imposed
for misconducts related to “three violations”, we made our best effort
to mitigate safety misdeed at the early stage. In addition, the Group
successfully hosted the 5th Henan Province Gas Industry Vocational Skills
Competition, “Gas Cup”, and joined the “National Gas Industry Vocational
Skills Selection Contest”. Following the completion of infrastructure and
facility building at the skill training base of our Gas Group, we are well-
prepared to enhance the overall professional standard of our service
personnel, and enable the effective implementation of safety management.

To strengthen the safety management of construction facilities, the Group
regularly launched inspection and rectification measures to uproot hidden
safety hazards. By means of online reporting, prompt feedback and
rectification measures, and the monthly follow-up procedures to mitigate
hidden safety hazards, the Group applies preventive measures before the
hazards come to surface. Targeted at coal-to-gas conversion projects, the
Group conducted quite a number of comprehensive quality inspections on
coal-to-gas projects at village level, to exert its best effort to safeguard the
safety standard of the projects, along with to protect the livelihood and
property of the general public.

In addition, to improve the overall safety management standard and optimise
the construction environment at site, the Group commenced the annual
review on stardardised safety measures of construction works, and organized
each member enterprise of the region to complete the safety standardization
review and rectification of hidden hazards. The Group also put major focus
on the standardization of safety production in its safety management, as
well as delegated respective safety responsibilities to each safety production
entity. This also allows to continue to promote the safety management in an
orderly manner.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Risk Management

To ensure the successful meeting of the Company’s operating goals of the
Company’s and to safeguard the relevance of various business decisions
to the greatest extent, the Group actively adjusts its internal operation
procedures in line with the external commercial environment that it
undertakes and formulates multi-faceted and multi-dimensional risk
management measures to improve the risk management standard at an
ongoing basis.

Regarding the operational risk, to enable prompt and early detection
for operating risk during the course of operation, as well as to serve the
purpose of timely prevention and control, the Group has successfully set
up and improved an early risk alert system. During the year, a number of
reports on various projects were completed, where multi-faceted analysis on
effective measures to counteract potential risks, spanned from production to
operation level are provided. With all such initiatives, the Group makes its
best effort to contain risks and calamities.

In respect of the legal risk, a routine work guideline will be formulated for
sample contract templates and revision procedures for contract-related
tasks. The Group undertakes regular and dynamic tracking and make
improvement works on sample contracts. During the year, our Group carried
out tracking and inspection on standardised contract management within
its 20 member companies. During the course of inspection, the Group
gave prompt feedback on written evaluation reports, and supervised the
rectification measures. The Group also provided guidance on the statistical
management and processing of the contract ledger to the headquarter and
its member companies, so that they are enabled to set up and implemented
a monthly statistical reporting mechanism for contract ledgers. Moreover, a
dynamic management mechanism for the preparation of monthly reports on
consolidated cases and monthly case analysis reports were founded, based
on variety of themes and strategies carefully applied to each distinctive
case, “one case, one strategy”approach. This all serves to facilitate a
comprehensive approach to deal with risk factors, and provide precautionary
measures to various risks, so as to avoid the repeated occurrence of similar
risks.

Meanwhile, the Group approved and implemented the initiatives as
contained in “Tian Lun Gas Group Risk Management Handbook” during the
year. By identifying and analysing key risks and control aspects of safety and
service flows maintained in the related documents, the Group is enabled
to formulate corresponding control measures to ensure that all sorts of
identified risks have been handled with appropriate countermeasures. This
serves the Group’s purpose to minimise loss associated with potential risk
factors.
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Cost Management

Cost management is deemed as one of the crucial components in production
and operation process, with its impact runs through the entire course of
production and operation workflow. The Group highly regards the crucial
strategic role played by effective cost management so as to stay afloat the
market competition. Therefore, the Group has considered cost management
as the cornerstone to sustain a competitive edge in the market, and thereby,
will apply ongoing effort to improve and optimise its cost management
system.

During the year, to standardise overall internal management standard within
the Group, as well as to reduce production costs and improve production
efficiency, the Group has completed the compilation works on standardised
measurement procedure, and plans to continue to work on standardised
processing of system and workflow in 2020, and will carry out pilot projects,
to ensure an orderly progress for standardised measurement operations.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to intensify cost management system
applicable to its well-established businesses. In terms of cost management
for projects, as the Group grows in terms of operation scale, it will continue
to apply stringent control on cost, considering the extensive impact of
administrative management and cost management. The Group will conduct
timely and regular seminars on city fuel cost management. In the bill
settlement of non-routine projects, particularly on special areas, including
technology and electricity consumption, we initiate professional module-
based cost estimation, based on per unit pricing (metre) or unit price
contract model, to facilitate modular and standardized pricing system, that
will form the core standards for our internal bill settlement.

In addition, the Group has carried out an optimisation review procedure
on the resource management system and the Group has approved and
implemented the latest “Tian Lun Gas Resource Management System”. The
Group has also conducted briefing sessions to relevant personnel in the
engineering and technical departments of member companies to ensure the
ethics and essence of the institutional system is promptly and accurately
learnt. On the other hand, the Group actively arranges for training sessions
on material management, and gathered related personnel in engineering and
technology sector and material management sector of member companies to
attend training sessions on the material management system, with respect to
their applicable standards, attributes, preservation, and operating principles
of conventional gas material inputs. By applying institutional-based
measures and training sessions, the Group intends to improve efficiency in
material management and enhance cost control on materials.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Information Management

A scientific-based information management system allows for integration
of internal and external resources endowed by the corporate, as well as
to strengthen team collaboration capabilities and accelerate corporate
decision-making. Therefore, the system promotes effective cost and risk
mitigation, bolsters corporate efficiency and performance, further enhances
the core competitive edges, and speeds up the growth and expansion.

During the year, the Group focused on coal-to-gas conversion projects,
initiated the comprehensive financial system, supply chain management
and scanning system for material identification code. The financial system
gave assurance to the integrity, accuracy and consistency of accounting
information and facilitates effective internal control and supervision.
Regarding supply chain management, an all-inclusive and standardised
workflow procedures can be applied to enable an accurate estimation of
inventory costing. An effective monitoring system to estimate the dynamic
capital funding shared by stock inventory allows an open information
transmission, extending form supply chain system to financial system,
that further serves to generate dynamic and automatic calculation on
financial budget, financial control and financial analysis. Scanning system
for material identification code allows effective streaming and sorting for
scanned materials, conveyed out of warehouse. As such, the system help
enable an accurate delivery and sorting efficiency for various materials
parceled out of the warehouse.

For new member companies acquired through mergers and acquisitions,
the gas self-service charging system launched by the Group allows customer
service staff an easier access to statistical reports with respect to various
gas users, and effective search on charged payment items, and prepayment
items. The system is linked up with the mainstream third-party payment
platforms in China. Gas users can pay online at real time through Alipay,
WeChat, self-service charging terminals and banks, and thus greatly saves
the queue up time for users. Due to the construction of office automation
systems in the southwestern greater region, northwestern greater region, and
northeast region, the Group has materialised standardized work procedures
at its headquarter and subsidiaries. Relevant entities are no longer bounded
by space and time limit that Company information is available and approval
application can be made anytime, anywhere. This has enabled a highly
efficient approval application platform, as well as to provide a quick and
convenient query and search portal for historical information that helps
auditing procedures. The Group’s news, announcements, regulation, and
learning materials were shared and released via the shared platform, which
allows an instant access to the latest dynamic development and knowledge
database provided by the Company.
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In addition, the Group has established the SCADA system for long-distance
pipeline, extending from Yuzhou to Changge that helps materialise real-
time information collection on aspects such as pressure, temperature, and
gas flow status for two remote penstock and control stations, and enable
4G network transmission to monitor the operation status at real time.
This development helps to add good fundamentals to promote effective
management after pipeline connections and commissions.

Human Resources

As of 31 December 2019, the total number of employees of the Group
was 3,159. The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined
based on their respective work performance, experience and current market
level.

The Group highly regards training and promotion of its service members.
During the year, management and training sessions were delivered to reserve
cadres in greater regions that served to provide outstanding staff members
with access to career advancement and for capacity enhancement. The main
function of such training sessions is to cultivate the operation capacity,
management capacity, learning ability and teamwork spirit among reserve
cadres and thus enables an overall enhancement on their competitive
strength. Focusing on new-hire college students, the Group formulated a
comprehensive training scheme that provided training programme for cadre
executives to serve at middle management level, as well as management
executives for member companies in the future. The training programme
contained within the blueprint can be divided into different learning
cycles, namely, orientation phase, learning phase and practice phase,
all three phases added up to a 9-month learning period. On account of
the centralized training sessions on the corporate culture, institutional
framework and workflow of the Group, the programme has covered a wide
spectrum, from job rotation for front-line service staff, to defined career
development path and duty and obligation implementation, which helps
new-hire college students with speedy adaptation and growth pathway.

During the year, the Group commenced talent registry procedures that
three categories of employees, namely, operation staff, cadre executives
and current new-hire college students are totaled, so that a comprehensive
screening and review can be conducted. The results drawn from the
“Employee Commitment Survey” and “Survey on Willingness of Staff on
Job Rotation Arrangement”, with all employees engaged, helps lay the
foundation for building think-tank echelon. In addition, by absorbing and
learning from the affluent management practice, experience, wisdom and
corporate culture accumulated over the past 20 years of running the Group,
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

we set out to compile “Tian Lun Gas Group Case Study Library”, a shared
platform for easier access to practical case study and experience sharing
among staff members. The Group has made constant effort to optimise
incentive policies and held evaluation events and activities such as the
“Quarterly Award on Commitment”, “Excellent Member of the Year”, and
“Excellent Management Award” and these initiatives help encourage work
incentive and nurture sense of belonging among staff members.

THE COVID-19

The COVID-19 swept China in the beginning of 2020. The traffic and
population movement regulations issued by the Chinese government and the
policies for delayed resumption of work adopted in various places will have
a major impact on the manufacturing, catering, transportation, tourism, and
hotel industries. The Group’s user gas demand has also declined to some
extent. Meanwhile, the central and local governments issued a series of
supportive measures, including preferential policies for increasing financing
support and reducing, postponing or exempting taxes to help SMEs
stabilize production and operations, thus promoting the healthy and stable
development of the whole economy.

In active response to the national policy requirements, all member
enterprises of the Group have carried out prevention and control while
ensuring the supply and services for all types of gas users. The member
enterprises have streamlined the project progress and get well-prepared
for the preliminary basic materials for gas pipelines connections. Member
enterprises have ascertained in-depth and fully cooperated with the work
and production resumption plans of industrial and commercial users,
especially those with huge gas demand, to lay the foundation for subsequent
resumption of work and production. Member enterprises have timely
communicated with governments at all levels and upstream gas suppliers
to ensure the implementation of the COVID-19-related preferential policies.
The application of Tian Lun gas online platform has also been promoted
to quickly explore the potential customers of value-added services. The
Group believes that the impact of the COVID-19 on the market economy is
temporary, and new market development opportunities will follow. With the
resumption of work in all industries, the Group will efficiently align with
various businesses after the end of the COVID-19 to lay a good foundation
for future business development.
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OUTLOOK

In 2019, China made continuous progress in the oil gas reform. With
national natural gas utilization and environmental protection policies, the
proportion of natural gas in China's energy structure has shown a steady
and rapid rise. At the same time, the upstream resource development and
infrastructure construction encourage social capital, the listing of National
Petroleum and Natural Gas Pipe Network Group Co., Ltd. and the full
operation and gas transportation of the China-Russia East-Route Natural Gas
Pipeline also bring new opportunities to the Group.

In 2020, the Group will seize the development opportunity of national
natural gas favorable policy, to rapidly expand the business scale of the
Group, maintain the stable growth of gas sales, and continuously improve
the operation quality of traditional urban gas business. Meanwhile,
the Group will create an ecosystem of value-added business products
and services, open up “online + offline” marketing channels, realize
diversification of marketing forms so as to enhance core competitiveness.
The Group will also steadily promote the township coal-to-gas business in a
high quality manner in Henan Province, increase mergers and acquisitions
of urban gas projects in Henan Province, and explore new paths and models
for cooperative development. Combined with the users of coal-to-gas and
the regional distribution of urban gas supply, the Group strives to launch
a number of key long-haul pipeline projects in Henan to ensure the supply
of gas. In addition, the Group will comprehensively harmonize the Group’s
management process, strengthen cost control, improve risk management
capabilities, optimize organizational structure, enhance team building, and
promote steady and sustained growth of performance, so as to bring ideal
returns to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and maximize
their dividends.

Repurchase, Sell or Redeem any Shares of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries had repurchased, sold or redeemed any shares of the
Company.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Final Dividend

In order to thank the Shareholders for their support, the Group has
established a long-term steady dividend policy. Pursuant to the resolutions
of the Board on 31 March 2020, the Board recommended the payment of
a final dividend (the “Final Dividend”) for the year ended 31 December
2019 of RMB12.00 cents per share. Together with an interim dividend of
RMB11.42 cents per share which had been paid, total dividend paid for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB23.42 cents per share (RMB15.36
cents per share in 2018).

The Final Dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars on or about 2 June
2020 (Tuesday) to the Shareholders whose name appear on the register of
members of the Company on 27 May 2020 (Wednesday), subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Further
announcement will be made by the Company in relation to the exact amount
of the Final Dividend in Hong Kong dollars when the conversion rate for
Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars to be adopted has been determined by the
Board.

Closure of Register of Members

In order to determine the Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed Final
Dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from 21
May 2020 (Thursday) to 27 May 2020 (Wednesday) (both days inclusive),
during which no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to be eligible to receive the proposed Final Dividend, all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Group’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30
p.m. on 20 May 2020 (Wednesday).

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”). Upon specific enquiries made to all the Directors, each of
them confirmed that they strictly complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted and has complied with all code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019.

Audit Committee

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Company consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Liuging (chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael and Ms. Zhao Jun.
The Audit Committee had held meetings with the management to review
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
the audit, internal control and financial reporting issues. The Audit
Committee had reviewed and discussed the annual consolidated results
and consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Audit of Financial Statements

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Group, had audited
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and issued unqualified
opinion.
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Mr. Zhang Yingcen, aged 57, is the founder of the Company, the
Chairman of the Company and an executive Director. He is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and has involved in leading the
development and investment of the business of the Group in the PRC.
Mr. Zhang has more than 23 years of management experience, including
18 years of experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Zhang
received the certificate of graduation in advanced EMBA program from
Enterprise Research Center of Peking University in 2001, and received
a certificate of graduation in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
Enterprise CEO/Financial CEO program from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business in 2014. Mr. Zhang obtained his certificate of EMBA
from Tsinghua University in 2018. He is currently the vice president of
Chinese Xiangqi Association, and the vice president of Henan Charity
General Federation.
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Mr. Xian Zhenyuan, aged 45, is the chief executive of the Company
and an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Xian has 16 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Xian joined the
Group in 2003 and served as a director and general manager of certain
subsidiaries of the Company successively. Mr. Xian obtained a bachelor’s
degree majoring in International Trade from Southeast University in the
PRC in 1997 and obtained a master’s degree majoring in Accounting
from Macquarie University in Australia in 2003.
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Mr. Liu Min, aged 46, obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics from
Renmin University of China (FEBIARKXZ). He was appointed as an
executive Director and the general manager of the Company on 17 June
2019. Mr. Liu has years of experience in clean energy industry, financial
management, investment and financing management, asset acquisition,
project development, product marketing and business operations. Mr.
Liu has served as the vice president of the New Energy Chamber of the
National Federation of Industry and Commerce (% B L0 A € #as
JRRE) and the vice chairman of the 7th Hainan Provincial Federation
of Industry and Commerce (8R4 L& E). Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Liu has served as the finance manager and the general
manager assistant of Beijing Daxing Urban Construction Group (Qihong
Industrial Corporation)(Jb R KEFZFZE B RIS E B AR]) from
July 1995 to April 1999, the assistant president, chief financial officer,
the rotating president and the executive president of Hanergy Holding
Group Limited (E&E12A%E2E]), the chairman of Hanergy Yunnan Wulang
River Basin Hydropower Development Limited (ZEAREZFR T ELAAe
IKEFEEBR AR, the chairman of Nanfang Center of Hanergy Solar
Power Manufacturing Industry Group (ERENIRBIEEEEBEAHH
1[3), the chairman of Hanergy Corporation in the America region (Z&¢
FIMNE I AR, the chief executive officer and the chairman of Hanergy
Global Solar Power and Applications Group (ZREZBKNINEAER),
the executive director and deputy chairman of Hanergy Thin Film Power
Group Limited (ZgES# R 32 E R EBFR A R]), formerly known as Hanergy
Solar Group Limited (ZREA[ZREEEE AR A F]), the shares of which
were listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00566), from May 1999
to September 2015.
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Mr. Zhang Suwei, aged 45, resigned as an executive Director and the
general manager of the Company on 17 June 2019. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhang served as the chief representative at Sinosteel
Corporation in the Africa region and the general manager at ASA Metals
(Pty) Ltd. from May 2006 to March 2011, the general manager of Fosun
International Resources Group from August 2011 to March 2013 and
director and general manager at Inner Mongolia Yili Energy Company
Limited, the shares of which are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600277) from February 2014 to May 2015. Mr. Zhang
obtained a bachelor degree (major in nonferrous metallurgy and minor
in international trade) from Northeastern University in China in 1996,
and a bachelor degree in Accounting from University of South Africa in
2004. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in the formulation
of corporate strategic planning, platform construction, investment and
financing, industrial chain resource integration, staff incentive and
capital market. He was awarded the title of Model Worker of Central
Enterprises of China, and served as an advisor of the Employment
and Economic Development Committee to the Governor of Limpopo
Province, South Africa and other social positions.
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Mr. Feng Yi, aged 41, resigned as an executive Director on 31 March
2020. Mr. Feng has 18 years of experience in corporate investment and
financing. Mr. Feng joined the Group in 2006 and acted as the assistant
to the general manager, deputy general manager and director of Henan
Tian Lun Gas Group Limited successively. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Feng was responsible for investment and financing of Zhengzhou Yutong
Bus Co., Ltd. and Zhengzhou Branch of 21 Century Real Estate in the
PRC. Mr. Feng obtained a bachelor’'s degree in International Trade from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in the PRC in 2002,
and obtained EMBA in Guanghua School of Management in Peking
University in the PRC in 2015.
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Ms. Li Tao, aged 48, is an executive Director and deputy general
manager of the Company. She joined the Group in April 2011 and is
responsible for the financial management of the Group. Ms. Li has years
of experience in corporate finance management. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Li had served as the head of finance of SDIC Henan Coal
Transportation & Sales Co., Ltd. Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Henan University of Economics and Law in the PRC
in 1994, and obtained a master’s degree in applied accounting and
finance from Hong Kong Baptist University on 13 November 2014. She
is a senior accountant and a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Jiansheng, aged 64, resigned as a non-executive Director on
31 March 2020. Mr. Wang worked as an economist in the International
Monetary Fund and as an investment officer in the World Bank Group in
Washington DC. He was a partner in a private equity management firm,
and did philanthropic work in energy and environment fields. Mr. Wang has
served on the board of several banks and non-bank financial institutions.
Mr. Wang graduated from New York University in 1988 with a PhD in
Development Economics.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jin, aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Liu
served as an assistant professor from July 1999 to July 2006 and an
associate professor with tenure from July 2006 to July 2008 at Anderson
School of Management of the University of California, Los Angeles. He
also served as an Economics Instructor at the Department of Economics at
Columbia University in 1998. He obtained a doctoral degree in Business
Administration from Columbia Business School in 1999. Mr. Liu is currently
the vice president and a professor of Accounting and Finance of Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in
research on capital markets, financial accounting and equity investment
and is an internationally renowned expert in the field of equity investment
and securities analysis. Mr. Liu’s research has international influence and
has been one of the authors whose research achievements are most widely
quoted in international literatures among Chinese social science scholars
in the past decade. He is a long-term reviewer and editorial board member
of various international first-level academic journals. Mr. Liu has received
the Outstanding Research Award from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business, the Eric and “E” Juline Faculty Excellence in Research Award,
and the Barclays Global Investors Best Paper Award. Mr. Liu has been an
independent director of Qinchuan Machine Tool & Tool Group Share Co.,
Ltd., the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 000837.SZ) from November 2014 to present, and an independent
director of Yunnan Baiyao Group Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000538.S7) from March 2016
to August 2019. Mr. Liu has been an independent director of UBS (China)
Limited from November 2012 to present.
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Mr. Li Liuqing, aged 45, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Li has over ten years of experience in accounting and auditing, and was
a senior manager and vice branch manager of Henan Branch of Ascenda
Certified Public Accountants Ltd.. He is currently a partner in Zhongxingcai
Guanghua Certified Public Accountants LLP and in charge of its Henan
Branch. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor's degree in Accounting from Henan
University of Economics and Law in 1998 and a postgraduate certificate
majoring in Corporate Management from Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics in 2000. Mr. Li is a Certified Public Accountant on securities, a
Certified Public Valuer and a Certified Tax Agent in the PRC.

Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael, aged 65, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Yeung is experienced in the development and growth of fast-
moving consumer products (gum, chocolate, and confections) in emerging
markets, and was the president of Wrigley Asia Pacific Ltd.. He worked in R.J
Reynolds Tobacco Co. Ltd., SC Johnson Co. Ltd., and Hong Kong TVB Co.
Ltd.. Mr. Yeung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and a council member of the Gerson Lehman Group (Asia) Ltd.. Mr. Yeung
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and Commerce
(Distinction) from the University of Alberta, Canada in 1977.

Ms. Zhao Jun, aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director. Ms.
Zhao worked in the Post Office of Zhengzhou City and Postal Transportation
Bureau of Henan Province and served as a Senior Lecturer, Education
Officer and Occupational Testing Officer successively. Ms. Zhao had
been the human resources director of Shanghai Shibang Machinery Co.,
Ltd. Beijing Office. Ms. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree majoring in
Agricultural Machinery Repair from Agricultural Machinery Department of
Henan Agricultural University in the PRC in 1984.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xu Weidong (72%%), aged 50, is a deputy general manager of the
Company. He is responsible for the management of the Group’s affairs in
Southwest region and command headquarters for coal-to-gas conversion.
Mr. Xu has accumulated 28 years of experience in the management of gas
enterprises. After joining the Group in May 2011, he successively acted as
general manager of Jilin Zhongji Dadi Gas Group Co., Ltd. (F#&F T A
MRAEB AR A R]) and general manager of Xuchang Tian Lun Gas Limited
(FFrEm XM EAFRAA]). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu worked at Jilin
Zhongji Dadi Gas Group Co., Ltd. as general manager. Mr. Xu obtained a
diploma in marketing from Wuhan University of Technology. Mr. Xu obtained
a senior economist qualification certificate of PRC.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Linxiong (5R#K%), aged 52, is a deputy general manager
of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2011, and he is
responsible for the management of the Group’s affairs in Northeast region
and Yu'nan region. Mr. Zhang has accumulated 30 years of experience in
the management of gas enterprises. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang
worked at Baiyin Gas Co., Ltd. (HIETARARE(LAR]) as executive
deputy general manager. Mr. Zhang obtained a diploma in water supply and
drainage from Changchun College of Architecture (REZESZEHERIER)
in 1990.

Mr. Bai Yuxing (HF£), aged 34, is a deputy general manager of the
Company and general manager of Hong Kong office. Mr. Bai joined the
Group in 2019, and he is responsible for the capital market business of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Bai worked at China Resources
Gas Group Limited (stock code: 1193) as assistant general manager of
Finance Department and director of Investor Relations and he also worked
at Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited (stock code: 6828) as senior vice
president of Corporate Finance and Investor Relations. Mr. Bai has extensive
experience in capital market and legal work. Mr. Bai acquired a Juris Doctor
degree in Laws from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2012. Mr. Bai
acquired a legal professional qualification certificate in mainland China.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond, aged 56, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 26 July 2019. Mr. Tam has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Vision Fame International
Holding Limited (stock code: 1315), CNQC International Holdings Limited
(stock code:1240), Li Bao Ge Group Limited (stock code: 1869) and Meigu
Technology Holding Group Limited (stock code: 8349) since December
2011, September 2012, June 2016 and January 2017, respectively. He
was also the company secretary of Branding China Group Limited (now
known as BC Technology Group Limited) (stock code: 863) from April 2013
to April 2018. Mr. Tam obtained a bachelor degree of arts in Accounting
with Computing from the University of Kent at Canterbury, United Kingdom
in July 1985. He is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tam has been appointed
as the finance director of an auction company in Hong Kong since December
2011.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2019 together with the audited consolidated financial statements
to the shareholders.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is an investment holding company whose subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the investment, operation and management of
gas pipeline connections, transportation, distribution and sales of gas,
construction and operation of gas filling stations, and production and sales
of LNG in the PRC. Further details of the principal business and subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review for the year ended 31 December 2019, and
discussion about the Group’s future business development, are set out in the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 12 to 15 and the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 16 to 38 of this
annual report.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial position, operating results
and business outlook may be subject to many risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly relating to the business of the Group, and have put in place the
relevant policies to ensure continuous identification and management of the
adverse impacts such risks might have on the Group. The major risks and
uncertainties currently facing by the Group are set out below.

Finance risks

The Group may be exposed to finance risks including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and liquidity risk. Management of the Group monitors
market changes and will adopt various means to mitigate such risks as and
when appropriate.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Business risk

The performance of major business of the Group is subject to many factors,
including but not limited to overall market and economic conditions, and the
performance of property, industry and commerce market where the Group
operates its business. The Group will adjust its development plan in a timely
manner in line with the development of its local users and in accordance
with the relevant policies.

Growth strategy

The Group's business growth objectives will be achieved through internal
growth, strategic investments and acquisitions. In the event of change in
market condition, insufficient funds generated from operation or other
reason, the Group will consider delaying, revising or abandoning its growth
strategy in certain aspects.

Human resources risk

The Group may be subject to the risk of loss and recruitment of staff
and talents with requisite skills. The Group will provide competitive
remuneration packages and career development plans to suitable candidates
and employees based on market standard, individual experience and
individual performance. The Group will also recognise and encourage
employees’ contribution to the Group through performance appraisal system
and adoption of share option scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has adopted the relevant environmental protection standards
in the PRC, formulated occupational health and environmental protection
measures, and established regulated operation procedures to ensure
compliance with the laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection. During the year, the Group obtained OHSAS18001 (occupational
health and safety management system) certification.

As a gas supplier, the Group is committed to environmental protection
and improving air pollution. In 2019, the Group’s city gas operation and
transmission business distributed a total of 2,330 million cubic metres
of natural gas. Based on the gas sales volume, the Group helped reduce
emissions from approximately 3,880,000 tonnes of coal.
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In its day-to-day business operation, the Group continues to promote green
measures and improve employees’ awareness of environmental protection
and advocates the concept of recycling for use. It uses energy-saving lamps
for lighting and requires employees to turn off the lights before leaving office
so that no lights will be left always on. It requires turning off the faucet
after using to avoid water waste. It promotes electronic office and expands
the functions of our OA online office system to improve use efficiency. It
encourages double-sided printing to reduce resource waste so as to reduce
the impacts on the environment.

The Group will review its environmental protection work on a regular basis
and adopt more environmental protection measures in respect of business
operation to strengthen the environmental sustainability.

IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIPS WITH
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has always considered employees as essential for its continuous
business growth, pays great attention to the safety of employee’s working
environment, and has in place health and safety systems and measures.
The Group also organises induction and on-the-job trainings on a regular
basis based on the needs of employee position and career development.
In addition, the Group has established a fair and effective performance
appraisal system and incentive plan to motivate employees to exhibit their
talents and achieve performance objectives.

With customer needs in mind and by adhering to the principle of “putting
customers above all else”, the Group has developed a customer service
guidebook and customer complaint management measures, and continues
to provide customers with value-added services in order to improve customer
satisfaction.

The Group selectively chooses suppliers by setting out requirements for
suppliers participating in its public tender in areas such as experience,
reputation and production capacity, and assesses successful bidders on a
half-yearly basis. The Group has established long-term good cooperation
with many suppliers.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s business is mainly conducted by the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China, and the Company is listed on the Stock Exchange. As such,
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report,
the Group has been in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong, such as the Environmental Protection Law, the Air
Pollution Control Law, the Labour Law, the Labour Contract Law, the Special
Provisions on Labour Protection of Female Workers and the Production
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the annual results of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on the last page of this report. The summary does not form part of
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

In order to thank the Shareholders for their support, the Group has
established a long-term steady dividend policy. Pursuant to the resolutions
of the Board dated 31 March 2020, the Board recommended the payment
of the Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of RMB12.00
cents per share. Together with an interim dividend of RMB11.42 cents
per share which had been paid, total dividend paid for the year ended 31
December 2019 was RMB23.42 cents per share (2018: RMB15.36 cents
per share).

The Final Dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars on or about 2 June
2020 (Tuesday) to the Shareholders whose name appear on the register of
members of the Company on 27 May 2020 (Wednesday), subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Further
announcement will be made by the Company in relation to the exact amount
of the Final Dividend in Hong Kong dollars when the conversion rate for
Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars to be adopted has been determined by the
Board.
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RESERVES

Details of movements of reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Notes 25, 27 and 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the distributable reserves of the Company was
RMB287,287,000 being the sum of the amounts of share premium and
accumulated losses.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman)
Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (Chief Executive)
Mr. Zhang Suwei
(resigned on 17 June 2019)
Mr. Liu Min (General Manager)
(appointed on 17 June 2019)
Mr. Feng Yi
(resigned on 31 March 2020)
Ms. Li Tao
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Jiansheng
(resigned on 31 March 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jin

Mr. Li Liuging

Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael
Ms. Zhao Jun

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and senior management
liability insurance policies for all Directors and members of senior
management and reviews the coverage on an annual basis.

All non-executive Directors entered into service contracts with the Company
for a term of three years and subject to termination by either party upon
giving no less than one month’s prior written notice to the other party.

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors had a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under “RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS” below, none
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had entered into any contract of
significance in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, as at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into by
the Company or existed during the year.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Li Liuging and Ms. Zhao Jun has served the Company for more
than nine years. As an independent non-executive Director with extensive
experience and knowledge and in-depth understanding of the Company’s
operations and business, each of Mr. Li Liuging and Ms. Zhao Jun has
expressed objective views and given independent guidance to the Company
over the past years. The Board considered that their long service would not
affect their exercise of independent judgment and was satisfied that each of
Mr. Li Liuging and Ms. Zhao Jun has the required integrity and experience
to continue fulfilling the role of an independent non-executive Director and
consider each of Mr. Li Liuging and Ms. Zhao Jun to be independent.

The Board confirmed that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his or her
independence and considered, based on the confirmations received,
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors remained independent during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors and senior management of the Company receive compensation
in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in kind or discretionary
bonuses relating to the performance of the Group. The Group also
reimburses the Directors and senior management for expenses which are
necessarily and reasonably incurred for providing services to the Group or
discharging their duties in relation to the operation of the Group. When
reviewing and determining the specific remuneration packages for the
executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration committee
of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid individuals are set out in
Note 9 to consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"),
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company (“Shares”):

LER NG|
2B BT
BRAHEA
ATt
¥#EER Approximate
BB RAEE percentage
B REmtE REE Number of  of the total issued
EENSE Capacity/Nature Number of underlying share capital
Name of director of interest Shares held Shares held of the Company
s ([5REED BB A (L) — 181,689,608 18.18%
Mr. Zhang Yingcen (“Mr. Zhang”) Beneficial owner (Note 1)
REHhEE R 534,899,300 545,068,824 108.04%
(Hx2 % 3)
Interest of controlled
corporation
(Notes 2 and 3)
BofBiEas (M5t 4) 5,722,500 181,689,608 18.75%

Interest of spouse (Note 4)
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HARRATF

2B RT

BN

Aotk

BHEHE Approximate

85 BBEE percentage

B RmtE R EE Number of  of the total issued

EENSE Capacity/Nature Number of underlying share capital

Name of director of interest Shares held Shares held of the Company

IRIRA A (RS ED EnEEA (D) 6,000,000 3,000,000 0.90%

Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (“Mr. Xian") Beneficial owner (Note b5)

SAEFLEERER (FE6) 12,829,500 — 1.28%
Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 6)
BREE(RZZEZF EnEEA(HE7) 2,000,000 1,000,000 0.30%
= A=+—H&F) Beneficial owner (Note 7)
Mr. Feng Yi (resigned on
31 March 2020)

et EnEEA (FE8) 2,000,000 1,000,000 0.30%

Ms. Li Tao Beneficial owner (Note 8)

B3R - Notes:

1. RZE—RF=A=-++t8" (k% 1. On 27 March 2015, (i) Mr. Zhang, Ms. Sun Yanxi (“Ms. Sun”) and Mr. Zhang
A BB ([HFRa T ) REREEE Daoyuan, as sponsors (collectively, the “Sponsors”); (i) Chequers Development
EEREBA) (BBIEBAD : (i) Limited, Gold Shine Development Limited and Tian Lun Group Limited (formerly
HEERARAT  SEBEERERAF known as Fortune Hill Group Limited) as special purpose vehicles owned directly
MEAMEEBRAR(FEKEERES and/or indirectly by one or more Sponsors (those special purpose vehicles, together
AR (EREB—RBAEEREMAEE with the Sponsors, the “Grantors”); and (iii) International Finance Corporation
&/ SEEBEENERENDAR) (%E (“IFC") and IFC Global Infrastructure Fund, LP (“IFC Fund”, “IFC” and “IFC
BHHRENATEEPAGBIETAD Fund” collectively, the “Investors”) entered into a sponsors’ agreement (the
E (i B 2 m A F ([IFC)) R IFC 2Bk “Sponsors’ Agreement”), pursuant to which the Grantors have, inter alia, granted
E R EE 2 ([IFC Fund] + IFCEEIFC the Put Option (as defined in the circular of the Company dated 21 April 2015) to
Fund #t18 [1&8&8%& | sT L —H BB AW IFC and IFC Fund.

BTEPABHE]D B BFAE
FREFE) B F IFC X IFC Fund 525H Hi #
(TERARAAPA-_T—AFMA
ZH—HAAREBEK) °
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

The Grantors assume joint and several obligations to purchase the Put Shares
(as defined in the circular of the Company dated 21 April 2015). Accordingly,
assuming the Investors elect to exercise the Put Option (as defined in the
circular of the Company dated 21 April 2015) in full against Mr. Zhang only,
Mr. Zhang is obliged to purchase the Put Shares, being 181,689,608 Shares.

Gold Shine Development Limited is interested in 471,171,300 Shares through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Tian Lun Group Limited. The entire issued
share capital of Gold Shine Development Limited is owned as to 60% by Mr.
Zhang. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares
and underlying Shares held by Tian Lun Group Limited for the purposes of the
SFO.

Mr. Zhang wholly-owns Chequers Development Limited, which is interested
in 63,728,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is also deemed or taken to
be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares held by Chequers
Development Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang is the director of Gold Shine Development Limited, Tian Lun Group
Limited and Chequers Development Limited.

The Grantors assume joint and several obligations to purchase the Put Shares
under the Sponsors’ Agreement. Accordingly, assuming the Investors elect to
exercise the Put Option in full against the Sponsors’ SPVs (as defined in the
circular of the Company dated 21 April 2015) only, the Sponsors’ SPVs, as
a group, is obliged to purchase the Put Shares, being 181,689,608 Shares.
Such underlying 545,068,824 Shares represent the aggregation of the
maximum number of the Put Shares that may be put by the Investors to each
of the Sponsors’ SPVs in such circumstances.

Ms. Sun the spouse of Mr. Zhang holds 5,722,500 Shares through her
individual security account. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the Shares held by Ms. Sun for the purpose of the SFO.

The Grantors assume joint and several obligations to purchase the Put Shares
under the Sponsors’ Agreement. Accordingly, assuming the Investors elect
to exercise the Put Option in full against Ms. Sun only, Ms. Sun is obliged to
purchase the Put Shares, being 181,689,608 Shares.
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B. These 3,000,000 underlying Shares represent the 3,000,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Mr. Xian Zhenyuan upon full exercise of the
share options granted to him under the share option scheme of the Company
effective on 13 October 2010 (each share option granted under the share
option scheme is referred to as “Share Option” and each Share Option shall
entitle the holder thereof to subscribe for one Share).

6. Mr. Xian beneficially owns 90.0% of the issued share capital of Pleasant
New Limited, which in turn owns 12,829,500 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Xian
is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares held by Pleasant New
Limited for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Xian is the sole director of Pleasant
New Limited.

7. These 1,000,000 underlying Shares represent the 1,000,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Mr. Feng Yi upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to him.

8. These 1,000,000 underlying Shares represent the 1,000,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Ms. Li Tao upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to her.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, the underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporation” above and the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2019, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO, the following persons (except the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or the underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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HARAT
ERITRA
BAES
FrisiEE8 Approximate
BB percentage of
51 RmtE s E Number of issued share
HE LB Capacity/Nature Number of underlying capital of
Name of Interest Shares held Shares held the Company
KmEEAER AT ExREAEA 471,171,300 181,689,608 65.31%
(PfizE1l ~ 2% 3) Beneficial owner
Tian Lun Group Limited
(Notes 1, 2 and 3)
THEERAERAT EnEAEA — 181,689,608 18.18%
(31~ 2% 4) Beneficial owner
Gold Shine Development Pzl = B s 471,171,300 181,689,608 65.31%
Limited (Notes 1, 2 and 4) Interest of controlled
corporation
BERERARAT BEmEAA 63,728,000 181,689,608 24.55%
(2% 5) Beneficial owner
Chequers Development
Limited (Notes 2 and 5)
FRIER 2+ ey 5,722,500 181,689,608 18.75%
(W2 ke6)([#HzL]) Beneficial interest
Ms. Sun Yanxi fie B 534,899,300 726,758,432 126.17%
(Notes 2 and 6) (“Ms. Sun”) Interest of spouse
RiER (HE2 R 7) BEaniEm — 181,689,608 18.18%
Zhang Daoyuan Beneficial interest
(Notes 2 and 7)
IFC Asset Management BEEE 88,939,304 — 8.90%
Company, LLC (F§7£8) (Note 8) Investment manager
IFC Fund (Ff15E 8) (Note 8) EnlEA 88,939,304 — 8.90%
Beneficial owner
IFC (FfizE8) (Note 8) FrizEsl A B R 90,844,804 — 8.90%
Interest of controlled
corporation
Epiika EmlEA 69,280,759 — 6.93%

Mr. Koo Yuen Kim

Beneficial owner
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

The entire issued share capital of Tian Lun Group Limited is held by Gold
Shine Development Limited. Tian Lun Group Limited owns 471,171,300
Shares. Therefore, Gold Shine Development Limited is deemed or taken to
be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares held by Tian Lun Group
Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

The Grantors assume joint and several obligations to purchase the Put Shares
under the Sponsors’ Agreement.

Such 181,689,608 underlying Shares represent the maximum number of the
Put Shares that may be put by the Investors to Tian Lun Group Limited under
the Sponsors’ Agreement.

Such 181,689,608 underlying Shares represent the maximum number of
the Put Shares that may be put by the Investors to Gold Shine Development
Limited under the Sponsors’ Agreement.

Such 181,689,608 underlying Shares represent the maximum number of
the Put Shares that may be put by the Investors to Chequers Development
Limited under the Sponsors’ Agreement.

Gold Shine Development Limited is owned as to 60% by Mr. Zhang. Together
with Notes (1), (3) and (4) above, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the Shares and the underlying Shares held by Tian Lun Group
Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

Chequers Development Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang and owns
63,728,000 Shares. Together with Note (5) above, Mr. Zhang is also deemed
or taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares held by
Chequers Development Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang may be obliged to purchase the 181,689,608 underlying Shares,
representing the maximum number of the Put Shares that may be put by the
Investors to Mr. Zhang under the Sponsors’ Agreement.

Ms. Sun is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, and therefore Ms. Sun is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the Shares and the underlying Shares in which
Mr. Zhang is interested and may be obliged to purchase respectively for
the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Sun holds 5,722,500 Shares through her
individual security account and may be obliged to purchase the 181,689,608
underlying Shares, representing the maximum number of the Put Shares that
may be put by the Investors to Ms. Sun under the Sponsors’ Agreement.
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(7) Such 181,689,608 underlying Shares represent the maximum number of the
Put Shares that may be put by the Investors to Mr. Zhang Daoyuan under the
Sponsors’ Agreement.

(8) These 88,939,304 Shares are held by IFC Fund, which is owned as to
100% by IFC. IFC also owns the entire issued share capital of IFC Asset
Management Company, LLC. IFC is deemed or taken to be interested in all
the Shares held by IFC Fund for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors were not
aware of any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares,
debentures of the Company which falls to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In order to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional
incentive to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group,
the Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 13 October 2010 whereby the Board was authorised, at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to
subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) to, inter alia, any
employees (full-time or part-time), directors, consultants, advisers, major
shareholders, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners or service providers of the Group. The Scheme became
unconditional on 10 November 2010 and shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on 13 October 2010, subject to the early
termination provisions contained in the Scheme. An offer for the grant of
options must be accepted within seven days inclusive of the day on which
such offer was made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.
The exercise price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the option.
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The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10.0% of the Shares in issue on
the date of approval of the Scheme. The Company may at any time refresh
such limit, subject to the Shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in
compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the time. The total number
of Shares available for issue under the Scheme as at the date of this report
was 14,800,000 which represented approximately 8% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted to any
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options) under the
Scheme, in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed
1.0% of the Shares in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at
any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed
ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

On 18 July 2017, the Company granted a total of 15,000,000 share
options to three executive Directors of the Company to subscribe for a total
of 15,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in accordance with the
share option scheme adopted on 13 October 2010. On 12 July 2018, the
Company granted a total of 30,000,000 ordinary shares of nominal value of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company. For details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 18 July 2017 and 12 July
2018, respectively.
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TRBRBHE-T-NE+-A=+—A

The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s share options

I FEAR A BB R during the year ended 31 December 2019:
RZB-N%F
S ER tZA=1-H
ZB-hE L3 09:3 AT
-A-H ERRH ERTE Lapsed/  Outstanding
As at Granted Exercised cancelled as at
ERA 1 January during during during 31 December B AH TSRS e
Grantees 2019 the year the year the year 2019  Date of grant Exerciseable period Exercise price
HARR — — 3,000,000 — — ZI—tEtATAH E2-\$tAT\BZE 497 AT
Xian Zhenyuan 18 July 2017 “E-NEtAttH HK$4.97
18 July 2018 - 17 July 2019
— — 3,000,000 — — ZE-tHtATNA ZE-NELATNBE 497 AT
18 July 2017 i HK$4.97
18 July 2019 - 17 July 2020
— - — — 3000000 Z—E—+FtA+NA ZZ-TFtATN\RE 4975
18 July 2017 e = HK$4.97
18 July 2020 - 17 July 2021
B3 — — 1,000,000 — — ZIZ—tEtATAH “Z-\$tAT\BZE 497
(R=Z=B=A=1-HEM) 18 July 2017 ZE-NEtATER HK$4.97
Feng Yi 18 July 2018 - 17 July 2019
(resigned on 31 March 2020)
— — 1,000,000 — — ZE—tHtATNA “Z-NEtATN\BE 497
18 July 2017 S R HK$4.97
18 July 2019 - 17 July 2020
— — — — 1,000000 =—Z—+FtA+/\A ZECTELAT\RE 497%T
18 July 2017 S e = HK$4.97
18 July 2020 - 17 July 2021
£ - — 1,000,000 — — ZE—tHtATNA - \ftAtN\RZ 497 %
Li Tao 18 July 2017 “E-NEtATLA HK$4.97
18 July 2018 - 17 July 2019
— — 1,000,000 - — ZI—tEtATAH “Z-NEtRTN\RE 497 AT
18 July 2017 ZEZEtATtA HK$4.97
18 July 2019 - 17 July 2020
— — — — 1,000000 ZZ—+FA+/NA ZZCTELAT\RE 497 AT
18 July 2017 S = HK$4.97
18 July 2020 - 17 July 2021
HttfEE 6,000,000 — - — 6000000 Z=Z-/\FtAf=H “T-hEtATZR% 91281
Other employees 12 July 2018 ZE-ZFtA+-H
12 July 2019 - 11 July 2020
6,000,000 — — — 6000000 Z=ZF-/\FtAf=H ZT-ZF+ATRZE 9.12%%
12 July 2018 S s =
12 July 2020 - 11 July 2021
6,000,000 — — — 6000000 ZE-\FtA+=AH “E--#tA+-RZ 9.12%%
12 July 2018 ZZC-FrAT-H
12 July 2021 - 11 July 2022
6,000,000 — — — 6000000 Z=Z—/\FtAT=H S s = 9.12%T
12 July 2018 ZEZ=%tAt-H
12 July 2022 - 11 July 2023
6,000,000 - — — 6000000 ZE-N\FrA+=AH e Sy s e = 9.12%%
12 July 2018 125 ) =
12 July 2023 - 11 July 2024
gt 30,000,000 — 10,000,000 — 35,000,000
Total
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions entered into by the Company and
subsisting during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements. Such related party transactions
“continuity
connected transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

do not fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, during the year ended 31 December 2019
and as at the date of this report, the Group had no material acquisition,
disposal or significant investments.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of association of the Company provides that every Director
shall be entitled to be of the Company indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has adopted and maintained appropriate insurance to
provide protection for possible legal action against its directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2019, sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 38.72% of the turnover of the Group, in which sales to the
largest customer accounted for approximately 24.30%, while purchases
from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
46.53% of the purchases of the Group in which purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 12.81%. To the best of the
Board’s knowledge having made all enquiries with all Directors, neither
the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), nor
any Shareholders owning more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no relevant provisions for pre-emptive rights in the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the public float of the Company is not less than 25% as prescribed under
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has implemented the code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has been
in compliance with the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2019.

AUDITOR

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019. A resolution will be
proposed in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor.

For and on behalf of the Board of
China Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited
Chairman

Zhang Yingcen

31 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving high
corporate governance standards to enhance corporate performance,
transparency and accountability, earning the confidence of Shareholders
and the public. The Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate
governance and adopt sound corporate governance practices to meet the
legal and commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with all code provisions set out in
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the year
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Upon specific enquiries of all Directors of the Company, each of
them confirmed that they strictly complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board of the Company comprised
(i) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman), Mr. Xian Zhenyuan, Mr. Liu Min and
Ms. Li Tao as executive Directors; and (ii) Mr. Liu Jin, Mr. Li Liuging, Mr.
Yeung Yui Yuen Michael and Ms. Zhao Jun as independent non-executive
Directors. The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report. All
executive Directors of the Company have sufficient experiences for their
positions to effectively carry out their duties.
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The Company has appointed four independent non-executive Directors and
at least one of them has accounting expertise to assist the management in
formulating development strategies of the Group, and to ensure that the
preparation of the financial reports and other mandatory reports by the
Board are in strict adherence to appropriate systems in order to protect the
interests of the Shareholders and the Company. Each independent Director
has confirmed in accordance with the guidelines specified in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules that they are independent of the Company, and the
Company considers that they were independent in accordance with the
Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among the members of the Board, and in
particular, between the chairman of the Board and the chief executive of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of
the corporate governance policy of the Group.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All appointed Directors received comprehensive, formal training on the
first occasion of their appointments and were ensured to have a proper
understanding of the businesses and development of the Group and that
they were fully aware of their responsibilities under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory
requirements and the business and governance policies of the Company.
To facilitate the Directors to discharge their responsibilities, they are
continuously updated with regulatory developments, business and market
changes and the strategic development of the Group. All Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Yingcen, Mr. Xian Zhenyuan, Mr. Zhang Suwei (resigned on 17
June 2019), Mr. Liu Min (appointed on 17 June 2019), Mr. Feng Yi (resigned
on 31 March 2020), Ms. Li Tao, Mr. Wang Jiansheng (resigned on 31
March 2020), Mr. Liu Jin, Ms. Zhao Jun, Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael and
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Mr. Li Liuging, have participated in a training course on the PRC Company
Law organized by the PRC legal adviser to the Company, to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided their training records for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019 to the Company.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in all other
cases, an agenda accompanied by the relevant Board papers are sent to all
Directors in a timely manner and at least three days before the specified
date of a Board meeting. All Directors are entitled to have access to Board
papers, Board minutes and related materials.

THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of the
Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the Company
and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the Shareholders
as a whole while taking into account the interests of other stakeholders. The
Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting forth matters that require
the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board
is also responsible for making decisions of formulating the development
targets and strategies, material acquisitions and disposals, material capital
investment, dividend policies, the appointment and removal of directors
and senior management, remuneration policies and other major operation
and financial issues of the Company. The powers and duties of the Board
include convening Shareholders’ meetings and reporting the Board’s
work at Shareholders’ meetings, implementing resolutions passed at
Shareholders’ meetings, determining business plans and investment plans,
formulating annual budget and final accounts, formulating proposals for
profit distributions and for the increase or reduction of registered capital as
well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred by the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company. The daily business
operations and administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the
management.

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the Board shall convene

meetings regularly with at least four board meetings every year (approximately
once a quarter).
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The Board held 9 meetings during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings is as follows:

HEBITEERHE
Attendance/
2= Directors Board Meetings Held
ﬁlﬁ'%g Executive Directors
KBS E (FE) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman) 8/9
/%?Ji/ﬁ?ﬁi Mr. Xian Zhenyuan 9/9
%E%ﬁf‘ii(ﬁ":g*ﬂiﬁﬂ ++BET) Mr. Zhang Suwei (resigned on 17 June 2019) 3/9
2 REEVRZZE—NFASA+TLBEEZE)  Mr. Liu Min (appointed on 17 June 2019) 3/9
5 %ﬁf‘ﬁi(ﬁ/\fgffi A=+—H&T) Mr. Feng Yi (resigned on 31 March 2020) 5/9
S Ms. Li Tao 9/9
FHITES Non-executive Director
TERAE(RZZEEF=A=1+—HFIT) Mr. Wang Jiansheng (resigned on 31 March 2020) 8/9
BIKHITES Independent non-executive Directors
2 s Mr. Liu Jin 8/9
i Bt Ms. Zhao Jun 8/9
SRR A Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael 9/9
THRELE Mr. Li Liuging 8/9
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In general, the notices of meetings of the Board are sent to all Directors
through email and fax before the dates of meetings. In order to enable
the Directors to consider the issues to be approved in the meetings with
adequate time, the notices of regular Board meetings will be sent to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to the convening of the meeting while
prior notification of the convening of ad hoc Board meetings will be made
to Directors in due course. In order to provide all Directors with a full
picture of the latest operating conditions of the Company, the management
representatives of the Company will report the latest operating conditions
of the Company and the implementation of the issues resolved in the last
Board meeting to all the Directors before the convening of the meeting.
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COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD

The Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) were established
under the Board. These committees perform supervision and control of the
Company based on their written terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor, to
review financial statements and making recommendations on the financial
reporting, and to review and supervise the financial reporting and internal
control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Liuging, Mr. Yeung Yui
Yuen Michael and Ms. Zhao Jun. Mr. Li Liuging is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and has the appropriate professional qualifications. The Audit
Committee shall meet at least twice a year.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s internal control during the
financial year ended 31 December 2019. The Group’s final results for the
year ended 31 December 2019 had been reviewed by the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee had
also reviewed this annual report, and confirmed that this annual report is
complete and accurate, and complies with all relevant rules and regulations,
including but not limited to the Listing Rules. There is no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the selection and
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit Committee held 2 meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The attendance of the members of the Audit Committee at the committee
meetings is as follows:

HEBITEERY

Attendance/

£8 Member Committee Meetings held
FRBESRE(FE) Mr. Li Liuging (Chairman) 2/2
SRR E Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael 2/2
H O Ezt Ms. Zhao Jun 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and
management of the Board’s succession, to ensure that the candidates to
be nominated as Directors are experienced, high caliber individuals. The
Nomination Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael and Ms. Zhao Jun, and Mr. Zhang
Yingcen, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board, who is also
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once every year.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2019 for reviewing the structure of the Board, size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and other related matters.

REEZEEKEZEHREERNT ¢ The attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee at the
committee meetings is as follows:

HIEEBITEERE
Attendance/
£8 Member Board Meetings Held
TR E (F/E) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman) 1/1
SRR E Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael 1/1
O Ed Ms. Zhao Jun 1/1
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Board Diversity

The Stock Exchange introduced certain amendments to the CG Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which are effective from 1 September
2013 in relation to the Board diversity. In order to achieve the diversity
of members of the Board, the Board will take into account a number
of factors including gender, age, cultural and educational background,
and professional experience. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee had been amended to set out its responsibility for overseeing the
implementation of the Board diversity policy. The Group has adopted the
policy on Board diversity which is summarized as follows:

(1) Election of members of the Board shall be based on a series of
diversified bases, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; and

(2) The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
diversity policy in order to ensure that the policy produces desirable
results.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (i) reviewing the
terms of the remuneration package of each Director and member of senior
management, and making recommendations to the Board regarding any
adjustment thereof; and (ii) reviewing and evaluating the performance of
individual executive Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any)
payable to them.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Zhao Jun and Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael, and one
executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Yingcen. Ms. Zhao Jun is the Chairlady
of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee shall meet
at least once every year for reviewing the remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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The attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at the

committee meetings is as follows:

HEBITERRE

Attendance/

£B8 Member Committee Meetings held
i BT (FE) Ms. Zhao Jun (Chairlady) 1/1
FORE A Mr. Zhang Yingcen 1/1
SRR Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael 1/1
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors entered into service contracts with the Company
for a term of three years and subject to termination by either party upon
giving no less than one month’s prior written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors of the Company who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company not terminable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, at least one third of the Directors shall retire from
office by rotation. Each Director shall retire at least once every three years
and such Directors shall include those who have assumed the longest term
of office since their last appointment or re-election.
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GENERAL MEETINGS

For the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Board
held one general meeting on 23 May 2019. The attendance record of the
Directors is as follows:

HEER
BIREAGRH
Attendance/
= Directors General Meetings held
HTES Executive Directors
FRELA (F/E) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman) /1
SRR ST A& Mr. Xian Zhenyuan 1/1
REEEE(RZT-NFRATLRBHE) Mr. Zhang Suwei (resigned on 17 June 2019) 11
2 RAEERZZE—NFAATEHEEZE)  Mr Liu Min (appointed on 17 June 2019) -1
B BEE(RZZEZZF=A=+—H&E)  Mr. Feng Yi (resigned on 31 March 2020) 1/1
* BL Ms. Li Tao 1/1
FHTES Non-executive Director
TEBRAE(R_ZE-ZF=-A=1+—H&ME)  Mr. Wang Jiansheng (resigned on 31 March 2020) -/
BIUKHITES Independent non-executive Directors
2 s Mr. Liu Jin -1
THRELAE Mr. Li Liuging -/
SRR Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael 1/1
i Bt Ms. Zhao Jun -1

ARBHINEZBENHE TR T —hF
FA-T=AAHANERAEFAE -

The Company’s external auditor attended the annual general meeting held
on 23 May 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts and
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The auditor to the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities
in the auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may raise significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, therefore the Directors
continue to adopt the going concern approach in preparing financial
statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s audit expenses
amounted to RMB3,500,000. There were no significant non-audit service
assignments performed by the auditor of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining operation of the effective internal
control system of the Group. The Board performs annual review of the
effectiveness of all material controls of the internal control system, including
financial supervision, operating supervision, compliance supervision and
risk management system through the Audit Committee. Internal review
personnel are responsible for assisting the Audit Committee in reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal control system. Internal review personnel
perform internal review and other relevant review regularly. They report
the review results to the Audit Committee and provide the members of the
committee with advice to optimize internal control for the Audit Committee’s
consideration. During the year, internal review personnel mainly reviewed
the major risk management systems based on the internal control advice in
the report formulated by external audit institutions, and reported the review
results to the Board. With the support of the Board, the internal review
personnel carried out improvement for the operation of the Group. The
Board had conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, no
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association, the number of
Shareholders necessary for putting forward a proposal at a Shareholders’

meetings is as follows:

().

=

at least 2 Shareholders entitled to vote at any general meeting; or

(ii).  any Shareholder or Shareholders representing no less than one-tenth
of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the right to
vote at the general meeting; or

(iii).  any Shareholder or Shareholders holding Shares conferring a right to
vote at the general meeting being Shares on which an aggregate sum
has been paid up equal to no less than one-tenth of the total sum
paid up on all the Shares conferring that right.
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Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person, other than
a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless
notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of
the period during which such notices to the Company may be given will be
at least seven days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are posted on the website of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group has already set up the Investor Relations Department to be
responsible for investor relations management work and established various
channels for the communication with investor, including direct line and mail
so as to ensure smooth communication between the Company and investors.
In addition, in order to provide a full picture of the business development
and prospects of the Company to the media, securities analysts, fund
managers and investors, the Company held telephone conferences and
luncheons for them, organized visits to the Company from time to time and
answered their inquires in a timely manner.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with its
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage their
participation. The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions
for separate issues proposed at the general meetings. The Company will
continue to maintain an open and effective investor communication policy
and to update investors on relevant information on the Group’s business in a
timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirement.
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BRROEESRHIEHAZ PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING

BEF SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
PRERABERFAEM T N MESEIREE  Shareholders may at any time put their enquiries to the Board in writing to
KEE - BEFFIBIT the Company whose contact details are as follows:

FEIR A RIER AR AR China Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited

A 4th Floor, Tian Lun Group Building

TR BN T No.6 Huang He East Road

BT = Zheng Dong Xin District

= RN Zhengzhou City

KXpEBEKENE Henan Province, the PRC

EH : hk@tianungas.com Email: hk@tianungas.com

B MEESN - 86 371 6370 7151 Telephone and Fax No.: 86 371 6370 7151

HBERXHNEREH MATERIAL CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

HE_Z—NF+-_A=1+—HIHFE "  There were no material changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
ARE 2 ABERE X E|EIBEMEAX  during the year ended 31 December 2019.

=
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To the Shareholders of China Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Tian Lun Gas Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out
on pages 90 to 283, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

U RN G AR BBk T A
M : +852 2289 8888 ¢ 4 : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com

PEXRRBIZERER Q[ 2019FFEHE

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Revenue recognition
° Goodwill impairment assessment
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Key Audit Matter

B EE AR IR R E R
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

WA TR

Revenue recognition

F2HAMHMBHRERWES (DEMER) -
Refer to Note 5 (segment information) in the
consolidated financial statements.

EEENEAFERNERBAGTHRARKE5.4918 T -
FTERRPRRIFEE RS - TRLELRBEES -
During the year, the Group recognised revenue of
approximately RMB6,549 million, majority of which
was related to sales of gas and engineering construction
service.

HRMREEET  BRERXZERK  WARRT R
AREEFIIE HEBKRI I EHEERBENEZES - 5
EERBMRYEBEBERET - ZWADBES @ HIR
RBERZHNERRP  ERARAF  BERPRIXE
BFE -

In relation to sales of gas, significant effort was spent
auditing the revenue recognised due to the large volume
of transactions. The sales price was controlled by the
PRC regulators, and sales volume was determined by
reading meters at the period end. The revenue was highly
dispersed and derived from a large number of customers
in residential, vehicles, commercial and industrial
sectors.
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MHERRREHERAMS - BHAIITHRFEE
Our procedures in relation to the recognition of revenue
derived from sales of gas included:

. B RS R B R AT A UL
° Testing the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls;

. A E R MR 7 - BIEAERARANR S
REEENER - MBEE - PEIERRSYIRE
BASGETTIZE - AR

o Testing, on targeting and sampling basis, the
transaction records that revenue was recognised
to the underlying documents, such as invoices
and meter reading records, and evidence of cash
receipts; and

. HRWmEHA
[EESE:EE =
2R

o Assessing if any unreasonable difference by
comparing the total gas sales volume per
management with the total gas purchase volume
per suppliers during the reporting period.

ENEEENEIHEREMENHE
BETHY  FEREFETAEN
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Key Audit Matter
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Revenue recognition (continued)

HRIBRLZRERBER  WARBEHEESFAHAEL2
EZETKBAOEECERER - WA ERRBIETT O
ESEENSRKANGES REKAREE - HiBiE
FEEREE

In relation to revenue derived from engineering
construction service, it was recognised according to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation of the related contracts. Revenue
was measured with reference to estimates of the contract
costs incurred to date and the total estimated contract
costs, which involved management judgement.

BYZEEHRE (F)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B EFH A RIE RIS E R IR
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HERIRELZERBRBHRATE - RFIRATHEFE
N

Our procedures in relation to the recognition of revenue
derived from engineering construction service included:

o RIS R I B R AT MBI T A UL
o Testing the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls;

. RS MEREERN AL - BBREHEERP 2 HH
BRINRESE - OAFHERAKA -

° Testing, on targeting and sampling basis, the total
contract revenue by examining the contracts with
customers and invoices;
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

WA (&)

Revenue recognition (continued)
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. LAt EMERHER 7% - BIFE S EENE R
AIEEARBER AN ELHROER - KT
WIREARKA - BMEEMERY SRR A%
EMEEE - WAL T B OB T2 EE R
1t RESHFERMERBNER ARk

° Testing, on targeting and sampling basis, the
amount of contract cost incurred to date and
total estimated contract cost to the underlying
documents, such as the approved budgeted
contract cost, delivery notes of raw materials and
invoices and billings from sub-contractors, and
assessing the accuracy of the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation and if any over-run of the related
contracts; and

. NEEREUD TR E RIRE S ERKTERELE -
FHEAER TR 2R KRB AR EMKTFEEER
AIEMEMAE -

° Assessing if gross profit margins of the related
engineering design and construction and gas
pipelines connections contracts fell into a
reasonable range by benchmarking against the
historical results of similar contracts completed by
the Group.

BMRR - ERBWRARBERMATERERN S
We found the revenue recorded were supported by the
evidence we obtained.
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Goodwill impairment assessment

B2HE I B EARM T 4(a) (BB 5T AT R AIE) K&
MIFE17 (B EE) -

Refer to Note 4 (a)(Critical accounting estimates and
judgements) and Note 17 (Intangible assets) of the
consolidated financial statements.

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H BESECHERBENAR
AR®2087BT BRESEEAEEEETHRE
RAFEREY R@RAE - BB TN ZEE -
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had recorded
goodwill of approximately RMB2,087 million. We
focused on it because the amount is significant and
critical judgement was used by management to assess
whether goodwill was impaired or not.

BYZEEHRE (F)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B EFH A RIE RIS E R IR
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HEERBHEBREN NS - RAIRTHREREE
Our procedures in relation to management’s goodwill
impairment assessment included:

. BERMEEREXBNTREBYIRERECE
AR HMEEREHRESELETNEN TR

o Assessing management’s identification of CGUs
based on how independent cash flows are
generated and our understanding of the Group’s
business;

. FHEERERANEREEAERE
° Assessing the value-in-use calculations
methodology adopted by management;

o BAFHERRSREE FFENRSRETEE
ITHE - URHETERIFTE SRR B BN

o Comparing the current year actual cash flows with
the prior year cash flow projections to consider if
the projections included assumptions that were
overly optimistic;
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Key Audit Matter

B EFH A RIE RIS E R IR
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BEREE ()

Goodwill impairment assessment (continued)

HEWSEEERESHBEZETE  UTHBEIRS
EHERT] mEEReELETHAKECHESHER
BRERESREVAGFEEREEET - £TREH
K SEERAASEEREHEAEEHAFIREELE
T WEEEEAEEFEPRANERRERR 2L
EEME  WARREIRITRX - EBERFHNERE
EEIERE

Goodwill was allocated to each respective legal entity
of the Group, which was referred as a cash generating
unit (“CGU"), and the recoverable amount of each CGU
was determined by management based on value-in-use
calculations using cash flow projections. In carrying out
the impairment assessments, significant management
judgement was used to appropriately identify CGUs and
to determine the underlying key assumptions, including
operating margins, revenue growth rates and discount
rates, being applied in the value-in-use calculations.
Management has concluded that there is no impairment
in respect of the goodwill.
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J BERMOBESREEBN THREEREITEH
B AHMEARER(BEREENE  WAEREX
NITHRE)HEIRM UK

° Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including operating margins, revenue growth rates
and discount rates) based on our understanding of
the Group’s business and benchmarking against
the available industry data; and

. S8 A\ BUR B2 FEET VB 1R - R TEE RER
MRS RS - WEREZERENE AR ZH
B IR A SR ET B R E R -

° Reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and capital expenditure
(“Capex”), considering the reasonableness of these
budgets and Capex, and testing mathematical
accuracy of the computation.

BFIRR - BEREHEHERENEOER - e BRI
EEBBR X -

We considered that the conclusion on management’s
goodwill impairment assessment was supported by the
evidence we obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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R KE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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BYZEEHRE (F)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

R KE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with the audit committee all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lam Siu Wing, Benny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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BOtERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(EFELBARETT (KIS EHS))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
P 5T ARET T AREBET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(ge=H)
(Restated)

WA Revenue 5 6,548,618 5,113,254
THEMAR Cost of sales 8 (4,844,726) (3,685,038)
EF Gross profit 1,703,892 1,428,216
D EERAR Distribution expenses 8 (57,965) (41,350)
THE R Administrative expenses 8 (196,020) (166,917)
H bz Other income 6 4,720 9,439
EfEE — 58 Other losses — net 7 (19,345) (138,789)
&KeEFHE Operating profit 1,435,282 1,090,599
B s e Finance income 25,311 80,410
78 A Finance expenses (290,896) (261,265)
% BR — F5E Finance expenses — net 10 (265,585) (180,855)
FEIREE & & A RITiE Share of post-tax loss of associates

BRI EE and a joint venture 11(b) (42,317) (44,940)
BRET 85 A0 R 8 Profit before income tax 1,127,380 864,804
et &R Income tax expense 12 (313,915) (264,444)
FEFHE Profit for the year 813,465 600,360
FEFBR Profit attributable to:
— KNARIFIBEE — Owners of the Company 789,179 569,142
— JEIES R — Non-controlling interests 24,286 31,218

813,465 600,360
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BftEE N ER ()
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
(REEBARETT (BIESEHE))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ks ARMT T ARBTTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(gg&E5)
(Restated)
HihiR & W Other comprehensive income:
BT SELLEZE709EE  Item that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
AR EBEFEBEZS)T A Changes in the fair value of equity
HMaRE W o e investments at fair value through
WERREEZE other comprehensive income 27 698 13,065
AEEHMZE WS Other comprehensive income
HERBE for the year, net of tax 698 13,065
REFREE R Total comprehensive income
for the year 814,163 613,425
BER: Attributable to:
— RREFBEE — Owners of the Company 789,877 582,207
— JERH R — Non-controlling interests 24,286 31,218
814,163 613,425
SRS FEENAARATFFAESE Earnings per share for profit
(BRAR®T) attributable to owners of
the Company for the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
— EXRERKE — Basic earnings per share 13 0.80 0.58
— WESR k= — Diluted earnings per share 13 0.79 0.57

Ll a MR e WS R BRI E—FB  The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read

g ° in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHEERER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(RHELLENRETFIT (G HZEH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
P EE ARET T ARETIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
FREEE Right-of-use assets 14(a) 251,696 —
HEPENTHIE Lease prepayment 14(b) — 223,400
TEE - B K& Property, plant and equipment 15 2,850,058 2,679,097
B EiE Investment properties 16 50,047 51,637
mEE Intangible assets 17 3,874,972 3,786,504
EEmEARNIEE Investments accounted for using
the equity method 11(b) 806,395 856,835
EEFTSTHEE Deferred income tax assets 30 28,678 33,692
UARBEMFEBEEH A Financial assets at fair value
Efira W ammemEE through other comprehensive
income 19 79,746 78,815
JREE A2 B R R Lt PR LS R Trade and other receivables 20 49,648 59,454
HiIERBEEMBTENI  Prepayments related to other
non-current assets 21 49,409 132,813
8,040,649 7,902,247
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 204,949 200,053
EREE Contract assets 5 508,898 210,450
P LA B 0 R L Ath LR R Trade and other receivables 20 1,548,124 1,462,265
UARBEFEBEEH A Financial assets at fair value
EfMira W amnemEE through other comprehensive
income 19 50,602 —
UARBEMFEBEZS):T A Financial assets at fair value
BaemEE through profit or loss 23(a) = 305,000
ReERBREEED Cash and cash equivalents 24(a) 1,349,836 1,075,907
SERHIIRE Restricted cash 24(b) 235,723 278,171
3,898,132 3,531,846
BREE Total assets 11,938,781 11,434,093
EzREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BERAQATMEEZER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
&N Share capital 25 8,430 8,340
% A< 4 | Share premium 25 1,029,366 1,188,151
HE Reserves 27(a) 454,530 281,932
Bl Retained earnings 27(b) 2,398,458 1,771,445
3,890,784 3,249,868
FEIEHIM R Non-controlling interests 296,536 293,901
R Total equity 4,187,320 3,543,769
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EHEERER (A)

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
(2B BARET T (BIESHHH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
P 5T ARET T AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
af& LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
EES Borrowings 29 3,880,034 3,809,825
HERE Lease liabilities 14 6,060 —
FEASTHARE Deferred income tax liabilities 30 546,553 475,011
JE - BR R R E At JE AT K Trade and other payables 28 — 136,598
EE W Deferred income 5,984 1,472
4,438,631 4,422,906
REBEE Current liabilities
JEASBR SN B FEA 3R Trade and other payables 28 1,202,124 1,244,770
ERAa%E Contract liabilities 5 469,051 374,851
FERTRRF Dividend payables 5,768 6,238
BHIMSHAE Current income tax liabilities 319,913 233,336
(R Borrowings 29 1,312,368 1,608,223
HEBE Lease liabilities 14 3,606 —
3,312,830 3,467,418
FES =R Total liabilities 7,751,461 7,890,324
HERREE Total equity and liabilities 11,938,781 11,434,093

bt & OFHE E B (R e B AT R Y A — 56D

i
=N

FI0E 283 ENAHUBHRERCHESTE
R-ZZE-TF=ZA=+—HA#t%&  TAR

Exen®

the accompanying notes.

RRE

Mr. Zhang Yingcen

EF

Director
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HARR
Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
BE

Director

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 283 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf.
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EOEREE R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(RHELLENRETFIT (G HZEH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BERFAFMEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
e RrigR fifa Eed ey & FEsMER s
Non-
Share Share Retained controlling
capital premium Reserves earnings Total interests Total equity
ARETT  AREBTR  ARETRE  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Bt 25) (Bt 25) (BE27) (BE27)
(Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 27) (Note 27)
RZE-NE-B-ALH  Balanceat 1 January 2018 8340 1264114 153526 1352373 2,778,353 339450 3,117,803
RelE Comprehensive income
AEFE Profit for the year — — - 569,142 569,142 31,218 600,360
EthGANE Other comprehensive income
DAL EEFERZEDA  Financial assets at fair value
At ARENEBAE  thiough other comprehensive
income — — 13,065 — 13,065 — 13,065
aoli Total comprehensive income — — 13,065 569,142 582,207 31,218 613,425
SEERFELNEMEEN  Transactions with owners in
SRETNRS their capacity as owners
& Appropriation - - 150,070 (150,070) - - -
WETAREIMER Acquisition of additional
interests of subsidiaries - - (39,563) - (39,563) (34,947) (74,510)
SRR (W31 Interim dividends paid (Note 31) - (75,963) - - (75,963) - (75,963)
RIS RR]  Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests — - - - - (48,220) (48,220)
I T E Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests - - - - - 6,400 6,400
BIRh S S Employee share option scheme:
—BIRBERE — Value of employee services - - 4,834 - 4,834 - 4,834
HERFAENEMEEN  Total transactions with owners
SRETHRS AR - (75,963) 115,341 (150,070) (110,692) (76,767) (187,459)
RZE-NE Balance at 31 December 2018
TZA=t-AkH 8,340 1,188,151 281,932 1,771,445 3,249,868 293,901 3,543,769
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SO ERSER (A)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
(REEBARETT (BIESEHE))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BEREARMEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
Bx REER fifh ghkE f  FEMMER BEs
Non-
Share Share Retained controlling
capital premium Reserves earnings Total interests Total equity

ARBTRL  ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Kt 25) (Biz25) (Hz21) (Hz27)

(Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 27) (Note 27)
WZE-NE-F-B&#  Balance at 1 January 2019 8,340 1,188,151 281,932 1,771,445 3,249,868 293,901 3,543,769
Gl Comprehensive income
KERE Profit for the year - - - 789,179 789,179 24,286 813,465
Ethzals Other comprehensive income
DRLEBEFEEZEH A Financial assets at fair value
EANGEHEEEE  though other comprehensive
income — — 698 - 698 — 698
aoli Total comprehensive income = = 698 789,179 789,877 24,286 814,163
EERFALNEMEE  Transactions with owners their
WERETHRS capacity as owners
BE Appropriation = = 162,166 (162,166) - - -
SRR RR (331 Interim dividends paid (Note 31) - (211,838) - - (211,838) - (211,838)
RETRA(HE36) Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 36) - - - - - (5,193) (5,193)
Gt ERERES Waives liabilites from
non-controlling interests - - 12,260 - 12,260 8,173 20,433
RAEERI R ZARA  Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - — — - — (27,515) (27,515)
SRR E Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests - - - - - 2,884 2,884
BIRRERE Employee share option scheme:
—BIRBERE — Value of employee services - - 6,303 = 6,303 = 6,303
— REREEETRE  — Issue of shares pursuant to
(Rizk2e) share option scheme
(Note 26) 90 53,053 (8,829) — 44,314 — 44,314
SERMBEAULMBEN  Total transactions with owners
SRETNRANERE 920 (158,785) 171,900 (162,166) (148,961) (21,651) (170,612)
RZZ-1E Balance at 31 December 2019
tZA=1-RER 8,430 1,029,366 454,530 2,398,458 3,890,784 296,536 4,187,320

LA RSB REEMMME—FE  The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
5 © conjunction with the accompanying notes.

i
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O RERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(RHELLENRETFIT (G HZEH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-AF —N\F
2019 2018
ks ARMT T ARBTTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
RETHNRERE Cash flows from operating activities
REEENRE Cash generated from operations 32(a) 1,463,554 893,352
EAFLE Interest paid (322,234) (279,150)
BEATATIER Income tax paid (169,993) (151,308)
KEEHELENTFRE Net cash generated from
operating activities 971,327 462,894
RETENRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BETHE  BEMEE Purchases of property, plant
and equipment (316,599) (320,046)
HHETANFRIEE I Increase in lease prepayments (1,958) (2,905)
RETBE - BE Proceeds from disposal of
KRBT SFRIE property, plant and equipment 32(b) 1,152 2,038
HBERFEE Purchases of intangible assets (3,894) (2,418)
BEUAABEFEBEZDS Purchases of financial assets at
FTABENEREE fair value through profit or loss (340,000) (2,445,000)
W2 & &R FRRF Dividends received from a joint venture 8,123 —
AR BEAEBEZE)T A Investment income on financial assets
EaleREEEER at fair value through profit or loss
HE W 8,984 30,509
J&’iﬁl«(@fﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬂﬁ“iﬁ Proceeds from disposal of financial
STAERMNEREERS assets at fair value through profit
or loss 645,000 2,440,000
WEEF AR FR SR Net cash outflow for the acquisition
of subsidiaries 35 (268,141) (353,007)
BETFRARINFHE Net cash inflow/(outflow) on disposal
WA O of a subsidiary 36 1,400 (1,837)
BUF B Interest received 16,181 55,197
TEIST AR 1 U R IR Prepayments related to share
purchase agreements — (28,291)
RELRNRIRE Capital injection to a joint venture — (400,000)
BERFE=H Loan to third parties (360,000) (517,041)
B HERNGER Settlement of cross currency swap — (14,843)
FE-HEXEE Repayment of loan from third parties 360,000 517,041
EESFTRFRS Net cash used in investing activities (249,752) (1,040,603)
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EHBEERER (&)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
(2B BARET T (BIESHHH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E—-hF —F-N\F
2019 2018
ks ARMT T AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
RETENRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BERATER Proceeds from borrowings 32(c) 2,625,336 2,842.219
EBER Repayments of borrowings 32(c) (2,920,663) (1,411,425)
ENGESEN S Dividends paid to Company’s
shareholders 31 (211,838) (75,963)
SRR E Capital injection from
non-controlling interests 2,884 6,400
ZREBR Changes in restricted cash 38,938 (226,412)
W HE F 2 B RESME R Acquisition of additional interests
in a subsidiary — (95,060)
REELIEE: f gl Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests (27,985) (41,982)
HEBEIZNER Payments related to lease liabilities (1,677) —
BR8I35 1T Proceeds from issue of shares
B9 FTiS 3K pursuant to share option scheme 44,314 —
BEES (FTA) P18 FE 4  Net cash (used in)/generated
from financing activities (450,691) 997,777
HeRESEEYFEM Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 270,884 420,068
FURENMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 24 1,075,907 678,237
RekReEEBYMNER Exchange gains/(losses) on cash
sk, (18K) and cash equivalents 3,045 (22,398)
FRASRESESEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 24 1,349,836 1,075,907

B E B3R 2R 8 AR e B Y P AT — 6 B

e
=

=8

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BZ—FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2BEEBAREF T (RIS EHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1.

REE-KREH

mEXmRRZERAR AR AR
RADEEREFRERFDE(ZF
—EFBEIARN)R_FT-FTFAHA
—tHERSHBEMRIL SRR
REBAF - ARRB/REER L
A R_E-EF+—-HA+RER
BMAERXZAARAR ([BRAT])
TRET e

ARAREREFTRAI(ATEMEIA
S8 TEEREARLNR ([
BHETHHRERHTIELZERR
% RRA - BEMIEXRPREMH
MREEERRZEUALBERA
R BERARORRE XN HE
5% MBI RAREEMLL

A 7 &l FF A = B i KA Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands °

REAGUBRRDEREFER
—ERoFFZ A=+ AT

% -

ZEAHMBRRAARES H
(FRIERBFHA) °

\ 08 HEAGUREZBRERAT 2019FFEHS

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

China Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 20 May 2010 in the Cayman lIslands under the
Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability. The Company is an
investment holding company and was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10
November 2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the engineering
construction service by providing residential, commercial and
industrial users with gas pipeline and infrastructure laying and
installation and transportation, distribution and sales of gases
including natural gas and compressed natural gas (“CNG”) and
production and sales of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) in bulk and
in cylinders in certain cities of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC™).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.1

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative instruments), which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4.
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B OB M SRR Y RE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. EESHHERE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
(&) POLICIES (continued)

2.1 RREE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 KEBERA R F AT FASAE K E 2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
A
REEERZZE-—NF—HA—HH The Group has adopted the following standards and amendments for
TRTEA N RS B SRR FT AT ZE R the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January
NEEERIIT - 2019:
. BEMBHREENE 165 . HKFRS 16 “Leases”

[FEE ]

. AEBRABENRIERE . Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation —
i — HEABPBREER Amendments to HKFRS 9
% 9SRMIEE]

. BeameeEnRAEZRD — . Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures —
HELSHERFE 285K Amendments to HKAS 28
1&57

. BBV BHREELFEE . Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2015 — 2017
2015-2017 F A Ef Cycle

o FENER - BREEE . Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — Amendments
— HEBSFERE 195 to HKAS 19
BERT

o REASEE 23R [FEiie . Interpretation 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”

FHER IR ey TN HERE 1

REBEBRMNE BT HHELERE The Group had to change its accounting policies following the
l65%1e B HGHIE - Bl adoption of HKFRS 16 and the impacts are summarised in Note
EEA A 2.2 o Fult Eip 2R 2.2. The other amendments and interpretation listed above has no
BT EBEERNEENE M BH significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
KTEEATATE - Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. EESHHERE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
(4&) POLICIES (continued)
2.1 RREE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.2 K5 [E 5 KRR HIF2E R FIAE 2.1.2 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the
Z Group
B B SRR ET e ST 2R R AN AR R A Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been
BERBE_ZT—NF+-_A=1+— published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2019 reporting
A IEW RS BRRER IR AR - E AR periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group
SEARRF AL SRR o intends to adopt them no later than the respective effective dates
REE R ERREE] 2 £ A of these new standard and amendments. These new standard and
HARTE B T DALRAN o wb 300 228 amendments are set out below:
BUEETONT -
. BB G ERE 35 . Amendments to HKFRS 3 regarding definition of a business,
REBER2ER] BZZF effective for annual accounting periods beginning on or after
—EF—-H—Hxk &G 1 January 2020

MFE e AR

. BB EFTERIE 1 RME S . Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 regarding definition of
SRERFESFREANEE material, effective for annual accounting periods beginning on
EELZER  BZEZTF or after 1 January 2020
—A—BS 2 ERRNFEE
SRR A -

. LESRN - NFEIRB . Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018,
MEMSER B2 =F effective for annual accounting periods beginning on or after
¢ R—H® 2 EHRIBHF 1 January 2020

SETHARIAERR

. BBV R EERNFE 1T . HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”, effective for annual

[RlpaR] B2 =— accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

—A-REZRRABNFE
SETHIREAR -

REEE IEE F A L g 2RI RS The Group is assessing the full impact of these new standards
FIER R E o ERVILFE - £ and amendments. According to the preliminary assessment, these
MAERFE AT 2 Y AL E E g R standards are not expected to have a material impact on the Group
RMEARRABREORKRZ HE in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
FEBERTE - transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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TE-NEFE-A-BAEEPRATE
AU HHREEAF 16 HE]
BRIEZ R FE A RBIERE -
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Mz BBFETEL - Al
MHEEERELNED B LARR
—E-NEF-A-BHNHNEER
BRPHER - TEABERBEERH
7$2.30°

RNEBMEREERIZE 165 [
Bl AEERNBREETES
REREI7HRIHEI BATLE
HEIoENEERREEARG -
AEARARSGEENFER_-F
—hF—A—BABAZERR
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HEREERNINETFNAEA
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BNENFTEREDEERRAEE
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2.

2.2
2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
“Leases” on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16
“Leases” retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the
specific transition provisions in the standard. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The
new accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.30.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating
leases’ under the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases”. These liabilities
were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 5.86%. In
addition, the prepayments for land use rights as at 1 January 2019
was reclassified to right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.2
2.2.1

2211

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
“Leases” on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
(continued)

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the
following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

° applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics

° relying on previous assessments on whether leases are
onerous as an alternative to performing an impairment review
— there were no onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019

° accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term
of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as short-term
leases

° excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-

of-use asset at the date of initial application, and

° using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is,
or contains a lease at the date of initial application.
contracts entered into before the transition date the Group relied
on its assessment made applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.

Instead, for
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE—F—NF+=A=+—ALFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. EESTBERRBE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
(& POLICIES (continued)

2.2 BFBEREE(£E) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

2.2.1 FKHiaF B TR E B B3 2.2.1 This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
FEAZEI6H [HE | HAE “Leases” on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
BEE BRI E - () (continued)

2212 HEBEFE 2.2.1.2 Measurement of lease liabilities

=F-NEF
—HA—H
1 January
2019
AREEF T
RMB'000
RZZFE—NF+-HA=+—H Operating lease commitments disclosed
BENKEHERGE as at 31 December 2018 7,521
HRAABAREREHNBR Discounted using the lessee’s incremental
HEERFIREITITR borrowing rate of at the date of initial application (1,147)
B AERBBEEMNFEEAE  Less: short-term leases not recognised as a liability (12)
R-ZB—NE—HB—B®EM Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019
HEEE 6,362
HABE: Of which are:
mEHEAE Current lease liabilities 1,878
EnBHEEaE Non-current lease liabilities 4,484
6,362
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.2
2.2.1

2213

2214

2215

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
“Leases” on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
(continued)

Measurement of right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets for lease prepayments were
measured on a retrospective basis as if the new rules had always
been applied. Other right-of use assets were measured at the amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2018.

Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the
balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

° Right-of-use assets — increased by RMB230,616,000

° Lease prepayments — decreased by RMB223,400,000

° Trade and other receivables — decreased by RMB854,000

° Lease liabilities — increased by RMB6,362,000

There is no impact on retained earnings on 1 January 2019.

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor under operating leases as a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. EESHHERE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
(&) POLICIES (continued)

2.2 EITBUREE (&) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

2.2.2 BRAE (B%) 25185 2.2.2 Changes in presentation of foreign exchange gains/(losses)
EZE—hF—A—HE &~&E From 1 January 2019, the Group presented all foreign exchange
BIBETATERLAE(BX) gains/(losses) in profit or loss within ‘other losses — net’. Until
FEIEMEE — FH]IHPFIRe 31 December 2018 foreign exchange gains/(losses) that relate to
HE-_Z—-)\&+-_A=+—Hz borrowings and cash and cash equivalents were previously presented
Bl BERAReRREEEYE in profit or loss within ‘finance expenses’. All other foreign exchange
AR E SIS, (BR)EEBER gains and losses are presented in profit or loss within ‘other losses
[ ER] /R FTBEMER — net’. The net foreign exchanges losses for the year ended
BREEBERKATH [ EMESEE — 31 December 2018 was reclassified retrospectively to ‘other losses
FERE] FARX e BBEZT—\F — net’. The adjustment details as below:
+ZA=+—HUEFEFELEBXLX
MEVEEBPESEE [EMEE
— FEE] o ARFHBOT ¢

BZ-E2-\F FERBX
+-A=+-HLEE MBERTRE B S8 "EY|
Net foreign
For the year ended As previously  exchange losses
31 December 2018 reported reclassification As restated
ARBFT ARBFT ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
5B Finance expenses 403,785 (142,520) 261,265
Hi (F15) /Fig — 5% Other (gains)/losses — net (3,731) 142,520 138,789
23 EfHRAIRERSTER 2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
2.3.1 ?2\‘57 2.3.1 Subsidiaries

7%$%lﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁm
%EIF@@% %EI g) - B
SERRSEZTRMAENZM
ﬁmﬂ&&;ﬁT“@ﬁ%%ﬂ’
WHRENEBEHZTRNENT
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ% REBAMESZ T

c FRABEEGEEBEANEE
ZEE%HA% I A B AR LE
ZHEEEAFFARK -

AEFFABE ST LB ERA G
ABR (2852 2.4) -
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Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls entities when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entities and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entities. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (refer to Note 2.4).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

2.3.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively.

2.3.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting (see Note (2.3.4) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

2.3.3 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group has joint ventures.

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
(see Note (2.3.4) below), after initially being recognised at cost in
the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. EEETHRRBE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

2.3.4 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.12.

2.3.5 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.

2.3

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

2.3.5 Changes in ownership interests (continued)

2.4

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

° equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. EESHBERE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
(4& POLICIES (continued)

24 EBEH(E) 2.4 Business combinations (continued)
EEBEHPIEENAIZRREE Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
IR ENEaERHERE B assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
EUERBEHHRN AR EBEFE measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
(DEDIINESERIN) o AR EE AR Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
I EEE A - AR BEIRIEE on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the
AR RS FT IR B L BB AT Rk B & = non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
FER L BIRER R R IE E BT net identifiable assets.

(DESE e T

EE BB AT LRI - Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

BB The excess of the

. FrdgE AR (E - . consideration transferred,

. A s % o BE A0 (T (] FEAR AR A . amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,
meE o & and

] S I 88 R BT R (R IR . acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
=P UEE BN AR B the acquired entity
=

B PTUEE R BRI B EFEN AR Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded

BER - EEREUBEIR - MZ as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the

EFIBERFTINEE TSR A R E net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is

EFENAAEE  IEBHEEE recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

REBETHERRERERE -

WRESEHENTMNIMHEET Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
B - RISRZKFERTERE A B H B ALIR amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value
RIRE - FIEANE RS EER as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
#EEFRFIE - BIEA] LB ST & incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing
1R TS B B B VS SR LS could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable
HEFIE - skBEREOERERSK terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
TREE - PEACHABNSHE as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
Hie@ERRA AR EEFTE  MA liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
REEZFEFNERTER ° fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7
2.7.1

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the steering committee that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. EESHHERE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
(& POLICIES (continued)
2.7 INEIE(E) 2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.7.2 XER#EA
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2.7.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a net basis within “other
losses — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.7.3 Group companies

The results and financial position of Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and

statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2.

2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values at a range
of 0% — 5% of the cost, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 20-30 years
— Equipment and machinery 5-10 years
— Gas pipelines 16-30 years
— Office equipment and motor vehicles 3-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP") represents buildings, gas
pipelines and equipment and machinery under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs
of construction of buildings and costs of plant and machinery. No
provision for depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for intended use. When the
assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred to
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office buildings, are held
for rental yields and are not occupied by the Group. Investment
properties are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write-
off the cost of the assets to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives of 25 years.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amounts. These are recorded within ‘other losses —
net’ in profit or loss.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, the transfer does not change
the carrying amount of the property transferred, nor does it change
the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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2.

2.10

2.11
(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent upfront prepayments made for the land
use rights. Lease prepayments are stated at costs and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the remaining period of the land use
rights, net of any impairment losses. In 2019, the Group adopted
HKFRS 16, “Lease” and the balance of lease prepayments was
reclassified to right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019 (Note 16).

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquirees and the acquisition date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquirees over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)  Operating rights for city pipeline network and gas station

Operating rights for city pipeline network and gas station represent
the rights for distribution of gas in certain cities or districts in the
PRC, and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any. The cost incurred for the acquisition of
operating rights is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives (10-50 years).

(c)  Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3-5
years).

(d)  Network

Network acquired in a business combination is the distribution
network of pipelined gas and is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The network is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over the estimated
lives of 30 years.

(e)  Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
contractual customer relations have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
(23-25 years) which are determined by the length of the adjusted
lengths based on the existing sales contracts with its customers while
taking into account the possibility of renewals by the management.
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2.

2.12

2.13
2.13.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

the Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or
loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.




2.

2.13
2.13.1

2132

2.13.3

EZESTHEREBE
(&

m=

RERHMERMEE (&)

7 (&)
HRARRBEAENEREE -
HMBMBRRFARSEIEMERS
Wi - YRIFER B MM ER TAR
B ENEMBRAEHEURR
AEEENRERFEEIEL T
BEEMEEMBEEERARAE
EtERHEZHFAEMEEN
2% o

EXERRSAENEHEARE
B{LE - AR R AT
EHH -

TESEFIRE L TEST
FRAAABERHENEREER
R EMER - R P HREANEE A
HEESAHEEENBH -
CREERTREMNENS I HX
B8R AAKECKER TSR
BEMEE LATRARNRRME
B SRVEERIAR TR o

i
BRI RO BERARAEBEFER
HEHFABRSNEREE A%
BAEAREBEMLIEZEER
ESZRSREENRHEMET
VpHER - BN AR EEFERR
EHFABENEREERRNK
HER AR -

ERARITETANSHE
SEHERECREERERS
BERRUAS NS

#

m
2
P
3z
L

RE
=28
L EE

fi -

Ot R MYt (4E)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.13.1 Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.13.2 Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

2.13.3 Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
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-
2. EESHBRREE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
(& POLICIES (continued)
2.13 RERHMESRMEE () 2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2133 FrE (&) 2.13.3 Measurement (continued)
EHFEITA Debt instruments
BERETANBEAEZIANAEH Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
ERZEAENEBEAURZEE Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
MRS RERE - AEEBERT characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
B RN =1E:r=E%E5 into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:
. SRR ANET £ - 5B A . Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
NEEBERBERAENE contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
B nREFRB\ASAEER payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
FEARSMF SR - A cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included
ZEENEMRNAGTE - % in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
ZeMEEMNTEBRANE Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
B EEE - ST ARSI in profit or loss and presented in “other losses — net”
o BT EARTE together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
SIBREEET ABE - W losses are presented as administrative expenses in profit or
b 5 RIS AKX —RZ|IRE loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.13.3 Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income: Assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other losses —
net”. Interest income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in “other
losses — net” and impairment expenses are presented as
administrative expenses in profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within “finance
expenses — net” in the period in which it arises.
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2. EEETHRRBE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

(& POLICIES (continued)

2.13 RERHMESRMEE () 2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2133 FrE (&) 2.13.3 Measurement (continued)
#nITA Equity instruments
REEBURAABEHMAEEZREE The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
EITRERE - MRAEBEERE value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
BESESKENAARBETFEBM value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
BRFFAEMIRE WE - AIE &1 income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
WRZIBRER T2 AR EE gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
FISFELEDEEERE - XK the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
R - AR E B e s WO AR R B recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to
IS - ZERENBRA A EREM receive payments is established.

YWenmat AfBa

HRUARBEFTEAHEZESHTA Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
BaemeEE  EAnEEE profit or loss are recognised in “other losses — net” in profit or
HRREREAR [ HMEE — F loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
B (EA) - SRUARER losses) on equity investments measured at fair value through other
FrE BEEBE ALMRE aEm comprehensive income are not reported separately from other
BEmEE  HREEBEX(ARBIE changes in fair value.

BREL) TREAMARBEED
BERIR

2134 BifE 2.13.4 Impairment

HRUERK AT EMA AR EE The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
FrEBEEBE ALMSE KGR losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
BHTE AEBGEBHERE cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The
FA U BT RE AT o B EEUR impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
REERRR S EZN - a significant increase in credit risk.

R W ARR R E A EWGR - A& For trade and other receivables, the Group applies the simplified
BERABE BB RELERE IR A approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
A LA EVAERERE losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,
JE U BR SRR (A7 4B HRR TR B {5 AR I8 see Note 20 for further details.

K FAMEE20-

\122 PEXARRIERERAT 2019FFEHSE




2.

2.14

2.15

EZESTHEREBE

(&

KiEemIA

EARKE BRI AR EEATHITEN
ARHEERASR WA BERF
REEFEEIRARBREENGE
BER SREEHEAENEHE
M YAEEHEEABRRSEF
B o AEBUERIN T AT A EHEER
BB FFERERR T (Fan i
EXRARK L) EEEERENT
BE -

MBERELN

MBRRA IR RBEREGER S
THEE - BERVREQAEE
e AR TRSEE

. BEAVHREERE IR
[EMITAIBETHERRESR
BEEAETNEE &

. V) R & BB = (2058
M) REBY B ImEERE
1558 [BP &KW AL RAI
FERE RETUA -

MBEROAABEREREH L
ATERNERXNERAEFTR
BN R HN - SEE R
EEBRNE=TNETERZME
MEEREZENRERE -

INEBE N RIRAE QBN E R
His EURBRANERZARET
ARH - AABEARSLEYLE
RBRBERARED

Ot R MYt (4E)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet where the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,
such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.15 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability
at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured
at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

° the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
or joint ventures are provided for no compensation, the fair values
are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment.
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2.

2.16

2.17

2.18

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories, including materials for gas pipelines and consumables
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sell.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 2.13 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade receivables and Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, that are convertible
to known amounts of cash and while are subject to an insignificant
risk.

2.20 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.21 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.22 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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2.

2.22

2.23

2.24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest expense and finance charges to the
extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

2.24.1 Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Group’s entities operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

2.24.2 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.
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2.

2.24
2.24.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates
and joint ventures. Only when there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the associates’ and
joint ventures’ undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, only to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred taxes balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC contribute on a monthly basis
to various defined contribution retirement schemes managed by the
PRC Government. The contributions to the schemes are charged
to profit or loss as and when incurred. The Group’s obligations are
determined at a certain percentage of the salaries of the employees.

Housing fund and other benefits

All full-time employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
entitled to participate in various government-sponsored housing
and other benefits funds. The Group contributes on a monthly basis
to these funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees. The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited
to the contributions payable in each period.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);
° excluding the impact of any service and non-market

performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for

example, the requirement for employees to save or holding
shares for a specified period of time).
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2. EESHHERE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
(& POLICIES (continued)

2.26 LB AEBRNIT(E) 2.26 Share-based payments (continued)

(a) UBEZZENRGZNIXE (a)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)
(#&)
EEERERR  AEBUKIERE At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
{EIHERT S TR AR 1 T4 ) B 2 of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
BRMEET - NEBETEEEPHERY service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
RIGEEEFT (B ) M E - W estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
=BT FEE TR - to equity.
UEoN - ERLIERT - BT AT B In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services
A AT RMERE - B in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value
HEIR) A 7o B E ph FE R AR 75 7 4 B is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the
B AR BRI AR B S E period between service commencement period and grant date.
it e
TEERRETE RS - N RIEEITHIR © When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
WE TS RIIR T EEEBR proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs
S AR (FPRASRF]) © are credited to share capital (and share premium).

(b)) EEAURGHBEBRNKS (b)  Share-based payment transactions among Group entities
AARMEEFARIMBIRTHE The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to
Em TEMHE  HEAEEARR the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
Ao W TRENAAEE 2 a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received,
ERHBANAREENE  WESH measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
FHAER  (EAHFRAAIRERN over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
BN WAHEEE AFRE MR undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
B o entity accounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition

The Group derives its revenue primarily from sales of gas and
engineering construction service. Revenue is recognised when or as
the control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws applicable,
control of the goods and services may be transferred over time or at a
point in time. Control of the goods or services is transferred over time
if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer; or

° creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or
° do not create an asset with an alternative use of the Group

and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to
the contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable, and represents amount receivable for the goods and
services transferred to the customers stated net of value added taxes.
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2.

2.27

(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for the
Group’s activity described below:

Engineering construction service

Revenue in respect of the engineering construction service, including
gas pipeline connection and engineering construction, is recognised
over time, by reference to completion of the specific transaction
using input method which recognises revenue using costs incurred
relative to total estimated costs to determine the extent of progress
toward completion. The Group recognises revenue over time only if it
can reasonably measure its progress toward complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation. However, if the Group cannot reasonably
measure the outcome but expects to recover the costs incurred in
satisfying the performance obligation, then it recognises revenue to
the extent of the costs incurred.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion
are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or
decreases in estimated revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss
in the period which the circumstances that give rise to the revision
become known by management.

The customers are required to pay in advance for certain contract
amount based on a payment schedule. If the services rendered by
the Group exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If
the payment exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

Sale of gases

Revenue from the sale of gases, including pipelined gases, CNG and
LNG, are recognised at the point of time when control is transferred
to the customer, which generally coincides with the time when the
gas is delivered to customers and title has passed, and is based
on the gas consumption derived from metre readings. Payment of
the transaction price is due immediately at the point the customer
consume the gas. Payments received in advance that are related
to sales of natural gas not yet delivered are recognised as contract
liabilities and deferred in the consolidated balance sheet.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

(c)  Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

(d)  Service income

Service income represents income from engineering and consulting
services provided to customers and is recognised when services are
rendered.

2.28 Earnings per share

2.28.1 Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares;

° by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

2.28.2 Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

o the after income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares

that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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2.

2.29

2.30

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is
established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of an investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised in
other comprehensive income if it relates to an investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income. However, the
investment may need to be tested for impairment as a consequence.

Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the group is the lessee. The new
policy is described below and the impact of the change in Note 2.2.1

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.

2.30
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable;
° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a

rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease

term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2. EEETHRRBE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

(& POLICIES (continued)
2.30 A& (&) 2.30 Leases (continued)

REEESERAE - RE®EE - To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o TERTBEMIIBE T - DAEFE A . where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
FEWEIME=ZFRE A the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
B WETRABRARBEE changes in financing conditions since third party financing
BB KRR E = ARMEED was received
p=illg

. HNTERESE=FRE . uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
WASEREMEE - XA rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group,
LAfE 2L 1) 2R A B Bh ) 20 which does not have recent third party financing, and

% WiRIREEMERER
HEITHE A

. HEHEETRHEAZE - 5 . makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
WERRR - B - B A E currency and security.
R o
REERKA L2 EEREN BRI The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
FIZRFEE R Al B & FRERIE N payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
Rk B EHENREEE lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
BREARMNAHERR - EERNIE payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
HA M EHHEENREETRAE reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

- HERERTUAEGHLREE
FREEERE -

MENRBEEARASNBEER 2 M Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
ETHE  mEBERAEHERA The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
A8z LAIRBRE T A B BRI F) & as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
HEBEAERETERNE - balance of the liability for each period.
EREEERKANE - B Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
. HEBENVIRTIESH . the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability
. EHERRIB A RIS . any lease payments made at or before the commencement
BH E T REE B U B A9 AR date less any lease incentives received
BB
. TIEEZER UK . any initial direct costs, and
. BIRALAN © . restoration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Leases (continued)

The Group leases lands. All land in the PRC is state-owned or
collectively-owned and no individual land ownership exists. The
Group acquires the right to use certain land. The premiums paid for
such right are treated as prepayment for the lease and recognised as
right-of-use assets.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
16). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised
as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based
on their nature. The group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the
new leasing standard.
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2.

2.31

2.32

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to profit or loss on a straight- line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
“finance expenses — net “.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes,
see Note 10 below.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.33 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims and make good obligations are recognised
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.34 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2.

2.35

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by Group finance department under
the policies approved by the board of directors. Group finance
department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, and use of non-derivative and derivative
financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

(a)  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar (“USD”)
and HK dollar (“HKD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
Management has set up a policy to require the Group companies to
manage their foreign exchange risk against their functional currency.

As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 1%
(2018: 1%) against the USD with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year then ended would have been
approximately RMB2,133,000 (2018: RMB6,772,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
USD-denominated bank borrowings, cash and cash equivalents.
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3. MBEREE(E 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 HB¥EBEEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) THERE(E) (a)  Market risk (continued)

(i) INEE B () (i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
RZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 & As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 1%
AEARERABEEE/ FE1I% (= (2018: 1%) against the HKD with all other variables held constant,
T—)N\F 1 1%) mAAHEMEZ the Group’s post-tax profit for the year then ended would have
HRAE - AIREEZFEOR been approximately RMB20,151,000 (2018: RMB13,585,000)
“FEED R EMOARE lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
20,151,000 ((ZZFE—NF: A translation of HKD-denominated bank borrowings, cash and cash
R#13,585,0007T) * EEA AR equivalents.
BB BB RRITERFE
RESEEBYELENELIBL F
5o
RZE-—NF+-_A=+—H" K As at 31 December 2019, there were no additional cross currency
SERFTEMEERAER - swap contracts entered into by the Group.

(i) BEFZRERAABEAFEE (i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

REERMER KB &R RIRTT
Tk e UEBFIREBHERS
SEAZRERENERR - 5%
ZERB I HIRZEANERF B R
TTIFERETIH - WEEFIRESH
ERSAEEBEZ AR EENER
R M_TE—NF+_A=+—
H A&EENIBANEEREE
B ANR4,784,007,0000( =&
—\F: AR #®¥4,917,385,000
L) BEMEERSEAARKE
408,395,000 (ZZF—\F : A
R#500,663,0007T) °

R-ZE—NFE+-A=+—08 ¥4
FEMEGEROAELF TR
03%mMAMAEHMEERFEIE -
BN 2 B AT 1S 0 AT FE 45 2 Bl R
LK nE AR 14,352,000 7T
—ZT—)\F : AR¥ 14,752,000
TL) * TIEEBHRNFE MR ERD
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The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings and bank
deposits. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s
borrowings of RMB4,784,007,000 (2018: RMB4,917,385,000)
bore interest at variable rates and borrowings of RMB408,395,000
(2018: RMB500,663,000) at fixed rates.

As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates on borrowings at variable
rates had been 0.3% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit before income tax for the year would have been
approximately RMB14,352,000 (2018: RMB14,752,000) lower/
higher, respectively, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates on all interest-
bearing bank deposits within cash and cash equivalents had been
0.3% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit
before income tax for the year would have been approximately
RMB4,050,000 (2018: RMB3,227,000) higher/lower, respectively,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income earned.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group arise from cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade and other receivables, contract assets, financial
guarantee contracts, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and at fair value through profit or loss. The
carrying amounts of these balances and financial guarantee contracts
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
these financial assets.

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an on-going basis.

The Group generally requests advances from customers in relation
to the engineering construction service, and grants credit periods up
to two months to the customers in relation to the transportation and
sales of gases business. In circumstances of credit sales, to manage
the credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers, and generally does not require collateral
from the customers on the outstanding balances.
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3. MBEREE(E 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 HB¥EBEEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) EHEREE) (b)  Credit risk (continued)

(i) EREE(E) (i) Risk management (continued)
EREREERBREIEAAEERE Significant concentration of credit risk primarily arises when the
EREFHEEELE - RZTE—NF Group has significant exposure to individual customers. As at 31
+-A=+—8 " ERESERA December 2019, 62% (2018: 49%) of the total trade receivables
HEH62% (20184 : 49%) R E & was due from the Group’s largest customer which is a joint venture of
ERANER  TATSEMEGE the Group. The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect
P2 AEEEBEEMKERLEE of the trade receivable due from its joint venture through exercising
BERREHEMTZE - WiEimaEH influence over its financial and operating policy decisions and
EIRA AR A ERE SR reviewing its financial positions on a regular basis.
KRR EE R o

(i) ZHEERE (i)  Impairment of financial assets

AEBFENN T HEEETEY
ERERRVNEREERN

The Group has the following types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

. ReERFCEEMUARZR . cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash;
HEL

. MAREE « TIRLRERE . trade receivables for sales of gas and engineering construction
H FE AR X service:

. EREBE . contract assets;

o LA R ARFTERE M & Bl . other financial assets at amortised cost; and
BE: R

. B AT EMUA DR B . notes receivable at fair value through other comprehensive

BFfE B RZ & AR
RGeS

R-ZE—-AF+-A=+—BRk—
TE-N\F+-A=+—0 F%£H
B RITIF R FERR R B AaE
BRITMNESHEE SEERAE
EERN  TERARSIHFELRE
HMEZAERIBK -
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income and amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the Group’s bank deposits
are deposited in the major reputable financial institutions in the PRC
which management believes are of high credit quality and do not
expect any losses from non-performance by the counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3.

3.1

(b)
(i)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work
in progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales
over a period of 36 months before 31 December 2019 and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified the
GDP and the unemployment rate of China in which it sells its goods
and services to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. BBRKREREZ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 B¥RBREZEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) EHEE(E) (b)  Credit risk (continued)

(i) EHEEREE) (i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
JEWBR A BB E (4E) Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)
Bit XNEEERT ZZE—NF On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 and
+—A=+—BN=_ZE—N\&F+= 31 December 2018 was determined as follows for both trade
A=+—HREBEFIMEREER receivables and contract assets:

Bk REWT

bRk 130X EB30K EB60K EBIOK b
More than More than More than
1-30 days 30 days 60 days 90 days

ZE-AE+ZA=1-H 31 December 2019 Current past due past due past due past due Total
RHERRAE Expected loss rate 0.30% 2.66% 12.37% 18.21% 44.81%
REEE — EYIRS Gross carrying amount —
trade receivables 757,099 4,290 2,523 2,647 25,245 791,804
FmiesE — ARAE Gross carrying amount —
contract assets 510,429 — — — — 510,429
BERfE Loss allowance 3,803 114 312 482 11,211 15,922
il il il ki
NG 1-30K BiB30k BiBe0k BBk @t

More than More than More than
1-30 days 30 days 60 days 90 days

- /\E+ZA=1+—H 31 December 2018 Current past due past due past due past due Total
EEEREAR Expected loss rate 0.27% 2.53% 14.87% 23.23% 30.43%
RmEE — EIRER Gross carrying amount —

trade receivables 867,702 9,947 2,085 2,790 18,402 900,926
REEE — SREE Gross carrying amount —

contract assets 210,766 — — — — 210,766
BERE Loss allowance 2,953 252 310 648 5,599 9,762
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3.

3.1

(b)
(i)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and
a failure to make contractual payments.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets are
presented as administrative expenses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost mainly include other
receivables. Other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, other receivables including
security deposit, which were performing. The Group believes the loss
allowance for other receivable as a result of applying the expected
credit risk model was immaterial.

Notes receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income
and amortised cost

As at 31 December 2019, all the notes receivable are bank
acceptance bills (see Note 19 and Note 20), which will be accepted
mainly by large state-owned banks or national commercial banks.
The Group believes that there is no significant credit losses due to
the bank default.
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. M¥EERERE(Z 3.

3.1 MBEBREE) 3.1
(b) ERAmEE(E) (b)
(i)~ EMEERME (F) (ii)

KB AGT EFIALN A B1EGE

A B EE)FI AR AR A Wk 1 EK

Z5 (&)

AEERN  AEEKESEEER
BRI A TR ABREF ¢

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Notes receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income
and amortised cost (continued)

During the year, the following losses were recognised in profit or loss
in relation to impaired financial assets:

—E-hE —E-)\F
2019 2018
ARMT T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
VEREREES Impairment losses
— YRR — movement in loss allowance for
HRBEEX trade receivables and contract assets
BiEE 6,160 7,649
Hih e @& ERERL  Impairment losses on other financial assets 10 280
Z BIBEB KA Reversal of previous impairment losses — (291)
SRMEEMAREE  Net impairment losses on financial and
BB FEE contract assets 6,170 7,638

REBE—REERFINMHBAF
RIETBEER EEHARBRANEAK
WO AERWEERER - 5 R
37(e) °

AEBEBPMBREREOEIEE
EERAE-
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The Group granted financial guarantees to a subsidiary of a joint
venture with maximum exposure to credit risk as the carrying amount
of the loans, see Note 37(e) for details.

The Group expects that no material liabilities will arise from the
financial guarantee contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3.

3.1
(c)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations, mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows, and
meet its financial obligations when they fall due. The Group expects
to fund its future cash flow needs through internally generated cash
flows from operations, borrowings from financial institutions, as well
as equity financing through shareholders when necessary. The Group
also reviews the utilisation of borrowings and ensures the compliance
of loan covenants.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

—EHR —EZR/E MEZRF REULE
Less than Between Between Over
r5E Group 1 year land 2years 2 and 5 years 5 years
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
R-E-h#F At 31 December 2019
t=A=t+-H
BITRER Bank borrowings 1,389,537 1,824,587 1,974,161 195,913
Hipfam Other borrowings 150,592 142,218 769 4,125
HEaE Lease liabilities 2,661 2,187 2,667 2,168
JERTERFN I B JE( 3R Trade and other payables®” 1,104,642 — = =
SRAESE Total financial liabilities 2,647,432 1,968,992 1,977,597 202,206
RZT—N\F At 31 December 2018
+-A=+—~H
RITIER Bank borrowings 1,688,721 1,482,602 2,050,794 346,455
HER Other borrowings 156,013 147,784 140,392 4,321
[ BR A A FERTFX O Trade and other payables® 1,160,067 13,411 160,448 54,000
SRBELEE Total financial liabilities 3,004,801 1,643,797 2,351,634 404,776
(i) EREFRREMENREET (i) Trade and other payables include notes payables, trade payables,

MiFE 28 R BB N iR - &
R - S RERE T 7R - 18
NHEHE - BAMEREM
eI -

amounts due to related parties, contingent considerations, interest
payables and other payables as stated in Note 28.
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BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. MBEREE(E 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.2 EXRER 3.2 Capital management
AEBMHEAEREE  2RES The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Ba BB E - U ARRIRHRE R Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
MAEMF=ERERENZ - A returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
RERRENEREEDUREER maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
PR o
BTHISNFARERGER  KA&E In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
e AR AT T IR /9B & adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
B mREREEAN BT to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
HEBERMEER -
HMERNHMAT 5 AEEFA Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
BERBELRERAERER - 1t risk on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
Lt 3 iR BRE S F FE R LA B AR5 net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
B BRFBABENR(BIEAN borrowings (including “current and non-current borrowings” as shown
BEBRERMIG RERIERS in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents.
BRDBERENBESEEY - & Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
BRG] (WEHEERER balance sheet plus net debt. The Group aims to maintain the gearing
Fr5I)) INETEFEE - REBEE N ratio at a reasonable level.
BRAGEE EERFEEIBAIKE
RZE-NFRZZE-NF+AH The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as
=+—H EXEELENT: follows:
®+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—ZE-hEF —F-)N\F
2019 2018
ARET AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
wER (I 29) Total borrowings (Note 29) 5,192,402 5,418,048

B BEMIREEEY  Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 24)

(FF5E24) (1,349,836) (1,075,907)
[EusEs Net debt 3,842,566 4,342,141
s Total equity 4,187,320 3,543,769
BER Total capital 8,029,886 7,885,910
EXREELE Gearing ratio 48% 55%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried at
fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 by level of the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).
° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that

are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2019.

E1E E2E E3E FoH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARET T ARET T AR¥T R AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
NAanEEE8 Financial assets at fair value
HEBE AHA through other
FAWRNSRERE  comprehensive income
— RRITE — Unlisted equity securities
FLTRERES in gas industry — — 79,745 79,745
— BREE — Notes receivable = = 50,602 50,602
MEE Total assets — — 130,347 130,347
af& Liabilities
H A RERT X Other payables
— B EE — Contingent consideration — — 138,128 138,128
wmaE Total liabilities — — 138,128 138,128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. BIBERERE(E 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 AREEMEE) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
TRERMEEE_ZT—N\F+= The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
AR=T—HBEAARBEFENEE are measured at fair value at 31 December 2018.

MEE -
£l g2 £3 45T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETTT ARET T ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
BE Assets
NAanEEEE Financial assets at fair value
HE8 ABaK through profit or loss
— FFEIRE — Investment in a trust — — 300,000 300,000
— RITEMESR — Bank financial products — — 5,000 5,000
NAanEEER Financial assets at fair value
HEETAEM through other
RAWEHSEERE  comprehensive income
— RRITE — Unlisted equity securities
FEETERES in gas industry — — 78,815 78,815
HEE Total assets — — 383,815 383,815
af Liabilities
HAb R Other payables
— S EHE — Contingent consideration — — 339,680 339,680
HwaE Total liabilities — — 339,680 339,680
FARAEL 2 3B ZHWELE There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
o

\152 PEXARRIERERAT 2019FFEHSE




3.3
(a)

(b)

B ERERE (&

DRBEME ()

*EE1EALHTA
HEEREMSEENERTANAAR
BERBEEABEXRANTSRE
5 o & ¥RE R BN FIE BAERE 5
R XR5HE 8L ERAA
T EERBEAEENREES
MZEFRERREAFRZEERE
TRERMERTISZHE - &M
BRGAERE - AEERFANDRE
BENTESRESERENRE -
HETAIAELRE

EE2EANZHMITA
REEEBRTHSEENERTA
(FlansssMTETR) AR BER
REERMNEE - HEXTEEN
RABETSRE(WE)  BED
R E RO EME - WETE—%
MTENAABEMBOMEEXN
BWARABREE  AZEmMTA
FINFE2E -

Bt R M EE (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a) Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

(b)  Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. BRMEE (& 3.
3.3 AREEMGEH(E) 3.3

(c) HEFIBAHWLHIA (c)
In—IE S, % IHE K AN IERIE T
BRMBEE - MZESRIAIA
FIB- ANBESRIANETE
HEFNARSRITIRAIT

TRBATREE-_Z—HhhFE+=A
—THLFEFIEEHITEAN

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The valuation
technique used to value the financial instrument is discounted cash
flow analysis.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

£ -

RITEH FEm
fEtRE Em BaEEs HEHE ERRE @t
Bank Unlisted
Investment financial equity  Contingent Notes
in a trust products securities  consideration receivable Total
ARBTT AR¥Tn AREBTRT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
w—A—H Balance at 1 January 300,000 5,000 78,815 (339,680) - 44,135
WEEF A A (7 35) Acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 35) = — — (25,908) = (25,908)
A Additions - 340,000 - — 319,495 659,495
SPABHRLAEERS  Changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss — — — 54,303 — 54,303
INDEEEE) Change in fair value = = — — (2,337) (2,337)
N SN ) Net gain transfer to other
Ealic comprehensive income — — 930 = = 930
RE Disposals (300,000)  (345,000) = = (266,556)  (911,556)
REXH Cash paid — — — 173,157 — 173,157
W=A=t-H Balance at 31 December = = 79,745  (138,128) 50,602 (7,781)
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(c)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

RITEM ¥
BRE Em Ees HEHE KRR st
Bank Unlisted
Investment financial equity  Contingent Notes
in a trust products securities  consideration receivable Total
ARETT  AREFT ARETT  ARETR ARETT AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
n—A—H Balance at 1 January 300,000 — 61,395 (294,021) 67,374
- SN Acquisition of a subsidiary — — — (175,662) (175,662)
i Additions — 2,445,000 — — 2,445,000
BRHfira lah Net gain transfer to other
FHE comprehensive income — — 17,420 — 17,420
RE Disposals — (2,440,000) — — (2,440,000)
By Cash paid — — — 130,003 130,003
R+-A=+—H Balance at 31 December 300,000 5,000 78,815 (339,680) 44,135

BT ET R H

BETAIHIE SR AET S - WARE
BELBMEGBEAZRETIE &
REABBERTHEHRREMFE
BIRTER -

REBEARRIE L (A R AE - B
SHREHEAtnEESE ROgHR
HERAERMER - AR EEH T
ERBFENEEMBBENREE
BEHERBEOMGAMBRRSH
T e

2.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

4. BIEEIHESIR¥EF 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

(& JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(@) MEHEirEERE (@) Estimated impairment of goodwill
WM sE2.11 Pt =5t s - K The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
EEEFNAHELSEERME - impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
NEeEHE T UkbE £ 5B RS 2.11. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based
AEETEmMET WEAEEE on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
NI ESR N EIVAR estimates (Note 17).
AATEERA  MFEEBEST In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the recoverable amounts
WeEHE T KOS EBHERRE of the CGUs will not be lower than the carrying amount even if taking
HHIEAIEA e E) c MEEHE into account a reasonably possible change in a key assumption on
TTHRKEI S BT TS ENERE the calculations of recoverable amounts of CGUs.
B
(b) FTBHL (b) Income taxes
NE BN PR S TN a B The Group’s subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subject
FEIDEREH - BTSSR EE to corporate income tax in the PRC. Significant judgement is
BEBEEHEAHE - BEXEKH A required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
LT GMAEREEETERER many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
I8 o NEBEIRES L EHAEIINGTE determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
et - FETEEARI AL E B R The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
BE - WMAEBENXEHIBEARNR on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
SAERNESEIE - B|ZEe tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
BT HRIBHRA TSR RIELER initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
TR o deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
HMEIBER AN 8ehH RRFEZRTA Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
IR =R EEE - Ble and tax losses are recognised as management considers it is
WERAEBETERE8LEIEEE probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
FEETRIBEEE o (STEEIEE LE the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
HAE - B EEe 2L E I E expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences
BREEREEENAERERE will impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets and income
R oo tax expense in the period in which such estimate is changed.
BB EE I ER R ERE Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
R AER—EXSH - AgEsg temporary differences, except that the temporary differences
REBESFUININRR Y S IEZRE M arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, or arise from initial
BENABBEMSI Bz =88R recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
SHBEBMIEET e business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
S Al - BIANYERDER neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4.

(c)

(d)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Purchase price allocation for business combinations
other than common control combinations

Accounting for business combinations requires the Group to allocate
the cost of the acquisition to the specific assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the date
of acquisition. The Group undertakes a process to identify all assets
and liabilities acquired, including any identified intangible assets
where appropriate. The judgements made in identifying all acquired
assets, determining the estimated fair value assigned to each class
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as assets useful
lives, may materially impact the Group’s financial position and
results of operation. In determining the fair values of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, valuations were conducted
by an independent valuer and estimated fair values are based on
information available near the acquisition date and on expectations
and assumptions that have been deemed reasonable by management.

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated
or amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group assesses annually the residual value and the useful life of
the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and if the
expectation differs from the original estimates, such differences from
the original estimates will impact the depreciation or amortisation
charges in the year in which the estimates change.
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BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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4.

(e)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in the tables in Note 3.1(b).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the senior executive management team on
monthly basis that are used to make strategic decisions.

The senior executive management team considers the business from
a “product” perspective only, as geographically all the products are
provided within the PRC, which is considered as one geographic
location with similar risks and returns.

The reportable segments derive their revenue and profit primarily
from city gas sales, long-haul pipeline gas transmission and
engineering construction service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

In 2018, the senior executive management team reviewed the
engineering design and construction functions and gas pipelines
connections as separate operating segment and assessed the
performance of the operating segments based on the measure
of sales revenue and gross profit, the Group does not allocate
operating expenses. In 2019, the Group changed the internal
organisational structure for the purpose of better resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance, the senior executive
management team regarded the engineering design and construction
functions and gas pipelines connections (together as “engineering
construction service”) as a single operating segment. The senior
executive management team assesses performance of the operating
segments based on segment result which represent the profit before
taxation earned by each segment without allocation of other income,
other losses-net, finance expense-net, share of post-tax loss of
associates and a joint venture, unallocated corporate expenses such
as central administration costs and directors’ salaries. The segment
reporting for the year of 2018 was adjusted retrospectively.

The revenue from rental income of investment properties and other
miscellaneous income, has been reviewed by the senior executive
management team, and its results are included in the “all other
segments” column.

The Group does not allocate assets and liabilities to its segments, as
the senior executive management team do not use these information
to allocate resources to or evaluate the performance of operating
segment. Therefore, the Group does not report a measure of segment
assets and liabilities for each reportable segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5. oWERE(E 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HE-Z—NF+-A=+—8H1t The segment information provided to the senior executive management
FE - gAREIBAESRITERE team for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December
BERRNSEEELOT 2019 is as follows:

RESERE IRRER Fi%
ARREE BRAREE Bl Hta®  ARELE AAR E
Long-haul
pipeline gas  Engineering Inter-
transmission ~ construction All other segment
City gas sales  and sales service  segments  elimination  Unallocated Total
ARETE ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

B A Total revenue 2,873,741 1,187,672 2,355,353 198,394 (66,542) — 6,548,618
AEHERA Inter-segment revenue = = = 66,542  (66,542) = =
RAPMIZFRMA External revenue 2,873,741 1,187,672 2,355,353 131,852 - — 6,548,618
B ARER Timing of revenue recognition

EE-RE At a point in time 2,873,741 1,187,672 — 128,581 - — 4,189,994

E-BERER QOver time — — 2,355,353 3,271 - — 2,358,624
AEE Segment profit 339,112 87,446 985,573 53,771 - — 1,465,908
FARER Unallocated expenses (16,001)  (16,001)
Etolia Other income 4,720 4,720
HihEiE — 38 Other losses — net (19,345) (19,345
BERE Operating profit 1,435,282
YBER — 8 Finance expenses — net (265,585)  (265,585)
ElBERAENT Share of post-tax loss of

HRBXNNE associates and

a joint venture (42,317) (42,317)

BREER AR Profit before income tax 1,127,380
FEHER Income tax expense (313,915  (313,915)
EERNE Profit for the year 813,465
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ﬁ-J\ %B 1%_ /%\ (/'Z'/g

BE_ZT-N\Ft+-_A=t—HLt
FE - pAREDHRASRITHRE
BERENDEBEEMT

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment information provided to the senior executive management
team for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December
2018 is as follows:

REEEMA IRZER ]
HTHREE  BAREE % Eend  HEPESHE AHE i
Long-haul
pipeline gas  Engineering Inter-
transmission  construction Al other segment
Citygassales  and sales service  segments  elimination  Unallocated Total

ARKTR  ARBTT ARETR ARRTR ARRTR ARETR ARRTR
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'OOD ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMB'OO0  RMBO0O  RMB'000

BRA Total revenue

AEHERA Inter-segment revenue

RERIMIEFEMA External revenue

Nl Timing of revenue recognition
B At a point in time
E-RHER Over time
&R Segment profit
APRER Unallocated expenses
Eftss Other income
e — 78 Other losses — net
TEHE Operating profit
HBEBR— 58 Finance expenses — net
BlEERARLT Share of post-ta loss of
g =vnalned associates and

a joint venture

BRAEH AR Profit before income tax
FIEHER Income tax expense
EEFE Profit for the year

2318336 909,352 1,748,407 168,006 (30,847) — 5,113,254

_ - - 30,847 (30,847) - -

2318336 909,352 1,748,407 137,159 — — 5,113,254
2318336 909,352 — 133750 — — 3361438
— — 1,748,407 3,409 — — 1751816
313,439 81,684 784,306 61,216 — — 1,240,645

(20,69)  (20,6%)
9,439 9,439
(138,789)  (138,789)

1,090,599

(180,855)  (180,855)

(44,9400 (44,940)

864,804

(264,444)  (264,444)

600,360
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5.

/-\ﬁBf‘_«m (’E

ARBEEBFRAIGEMPAE -
T 2R B R YMER R P B AT R
KRB - MBI IERBEESN
RAFRE

BHE-_T-hF+=-A=+—8H
LtFEER AEBREE—FF
A 4 A B #1,591,209,000 7T
(T &E37(0)) - EAE BB U A
Woa%(ZTE—NFE: AR
1,043,429,000 7T - 16 7~ %= H 4 4k
A20%) + WERABRIRRLHE
MRS ZE—NFE: T2
ZHEMRBDE)

AEBECHEANTEEFPAREH
MEEMEE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The principal subsidiaries of the Company are domiciled in the PRC.
All the revenue from external customers are derived from the PRC,
and all the non-current assets are located in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue of approximately
RMB1,591,209,000 and 24% of the Group’s total revenue,
is derived from a single customer (Note 37(b)) (2018: RMB
1,043,429,000 and 20%). The revenue is attributable to the
engineering construction service (2018: engineering construction
service).

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related
to contracts with customers:

= e G

t=A=t-A +=-A=t+-H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

AR%T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

TBAREE Current contract assets 510,429 210,766

BREE Loss allowance (1,531) (316)

AEREERSE Total contract assets 508,898 210,450
AR&E Contract liabilities

TRRE MRS Engineering construction service 358,263 243,291

PRRIHE Sales of gas 89,211 125,540

REHEEMRAGRXNIEE  Long-haul pipeline gas transmission and sales 21,577 5,317

E 52 Other — 703

ARaERSE Total contract liabilities 469,051 374,851
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE T NFF+_A=+—HIFFE
(BFEEN BAEE T T (RIS EHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

As of 1 January 2019, the balance of the Group’s contract liabilities
was RMB374,851,000 (1 January 2018: RMB253,618,000), of
which RMB230,716,000 from Engineering construction service
(2018: RMB118,747,000), RMB123,705,000 from sales of
gas (2018: RMB112,686,000), RMB5,317,000 from Long-haul
pipeline gas transmission and sales (2018: RMB3,947,000) and
RMB703,000 from other segment (2018: RMB559,000) have been

recognised in revenue in 2019.

R#¥559,000L) R=ZE—IFE
NIER AN ©
H b Uk 5 6. OTHER INCOME
BZ+=-A=+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRT 48 B Government grants in relation to
— BIERE — Tax refund 1,996 4,905
— BN EEEHE)  — Subsidies for local investment rewards
KE A ED and other incentives 2,724 4,534
4,720 9,439
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BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

7. HEE

RE 7. OTHER LOSSES — NET

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(gg&E5)
(Restated)
BEFAA (Losses)/gains on disposal of a subsidiary

(18X) FE (Note 36)

(PF3E36) (10,718) 2,984
BETHE  KFE Gains on disposal of property, plant and

LEEERFIE equipment (Note 32(b))

(BizE32(b)) 377 47
SieRFND Penalty and overdue fines (1,809) (548)
BB ALBEES) Changes in fair value of contingent consideration 54,303 —
HIE R ER Net foreign exchange losses (61,724) (142,520)
WRAREBENER Disposal losses of notes receivable measured

HEE R AEM at fair value through other

4R A WA comprehensive income

JEWE BB EER (2,337) —
=i} Others 2,563 1,248

(19,345) (138,789)
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BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

REESENER 8. EXPENSES BY NATURE

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-NF —T-N\F

2019 2018

ARET AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

FANRME KEES  Raw materials and consumables used 3,772,782 2,995,547
B m MATE M Changes in inventories of finished goods

EfF#1t and work in progress — 6,272
TEE  WER Depreciation on property, plant

REYTE (MiEE15) and equipment (Note 15) 142,825 124,513
KRB EMETE Depreciation on investment properties (Note 16)

(fizE16) 2,978 2,175
FAETE R Depreciation of lease prepayments (Note 14b)

(F&E 14b) — 6,107
B ERD (FH3E17) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) 90,227 81,129
BITwEMER(MITE9) Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) 203,611 171,631
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14a)

(FffizE 14a) 9,266 —
W E B Licensing fee for the exclusive operating

KERETRE rights for city pipeline network 1,100 1,100
HE #2EMEATEA Engagement of construction and design services 735,556 378,597
RiBE Transportation costs 6,623 6,682
ZIRE Travelling expenses 8,887 8,335
HIEE Maintenance costs 19,320 13,347
2 Gl Auditors’ remuneration

— RS — Audit services 3,500 3,400
EEEH Professional expenses 7,293 5,725
EEER Advertising expenses 3,429 5,928
EBREE Entertainment expenses 14,216 10,388
WAE A Office expenses 17,566 15,243
He Taxes 18,619 16,478
BERERE Energy consumption 32,163 29,907
BB Net impairment loss 6,170 7,638
e Miscellaneous 2,580 3,163
SHERA  DHRkAS  Total cost of sales, distribution expenses

RATE B B4Rt and administrative expenses 5,098,711 3,893,305
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

9. BITNER

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —T-)\F
2019 2018
ARMT T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
T& K3 Wages and salaries 151,177 125,165
BRIRE AR — Pension costs — defined contribution plans
HERTEE 17,253 16,780
HERBES T Social security benefits costs 17,480 14,814
HYESH R Share options granted to directors (Note 26)
(B3t 26) 6,303 4,834
Hi Others 11,398 10,038
203,611 171,631
(@ IBNBRESFMAL (@) Five highest paid individuals
HE-Z—NF+A=+—8H1t The five individuals whose emoluments were highest in the Group

F% - ARBEGSSHALOE
mEEH(ZF—\FE =F) -
ZEEFOME D RRHKH 40
e RZE-AFT

for the year ended 31 December 2019 included four (2018: three)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in
Note 40. The emoluments payable to the remaining one individual

A=+— for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: two) are as follows:
HIEFE XN TFHRT-—B(ZE
—N\FE  WE) ALOBEWT

BE+t-A=T—-HLHEE

Year ended 31 December

—ZE-hEF —E-)N\F

2019 2018

AR®F T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

HARH & MoEBE Basic salaries, and allowances 394 697
IR R R Retirement benefit contributions 15 108
409 805
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BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

9. BIBMNER#E) 9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(continued)
(@ BNUREHMAL(E) (@) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
AN EMRALTHEBRATE The emoluments of the above individuals fell within the following

: bands:

BE+-—A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hEF —T-N\F
2019 2018
T 2% # 1,000,000 Nil to HKD1,000,000
(K& AR (approximate to RMB895,800)
895,8007T) 1 2
AEBWERRAARSHATIA No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
FABE - ERMAREESINA individuals as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
A B2 ED S RERR A (B o compensation for loss of office.
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

10. HHBEH

e g ]

10. FINANCE EXPENSES — NET

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF ZE-)N\F
2019 2018
ARET T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(gg&E5)
(Restated)
g A Finance income
— RITFER - |17 — Interest income from bank deposits,
R M bank products and third parties
B EREER
FE U A (16,327) (41,846)
— UAARBETER  — Investment gains on financial assets
HE285 ABRN at fair value through profit or loss:
CREEEEN
"E W=
(ELg e Investment in a trust (8,984) (30,509)
B EAR Cross currency swap contracts — (8,055)
(25,311) (80,410)
Bi7% & A Finance expenses
— ERONFEER — Interest expense on borrowings 317,099 289,933
— HEHER — Leasing liabilities
FesEm 496 —
— Hfth — Others 2,878 2,294
B BEREE Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets
BRI R (29,577) (30,962)
290,896 261,265
265,585 180,855
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BE—F-NFT_HA=+—HILFE

(CHEENBARETIT(HIFZEHS))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

RZZE-AF+ZA=+—H K The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
REMEEFRBIMTRES 2019:
AMEIMESR BB/ BEEX
£ WHERAH EETRER BHRE 35 TRERNCEY
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETT
(RMB'000)
URERARAR (XK ) AR4EREE/ ERELAT 7+ 100%  REBERES
“ER-E+ANA ANER AR
Upsky Holdings Limited BVI/ Limited liability company T 100%**  Intermediary holding
(“Upsky Holdings") 8 July 2003 company in BVI
PN PN it A hEES/ BREAAF —* 100% REBRNERAR
“E-SERATA
Tian Lun New Energy Limited Hong Kong/ Limited liability company —* 100% Intermediary holding
(“Tian Lun New Energy") 10 May 2010 company in HK
BETARMCRARLA hE/ EREARR 15,000 100%  APEREEE
([BEER)) “E-EERATEA RARHERMA
BEEREEY
Hebi Tian Lun New Energy Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 15,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Hebi New Energy") 13 May 2010 gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
MEXRRRERARAA hE/ EREARE 1,750,000 100%  AHEREEE
(REEYNFit=a) “ERCET-A-H RARHERME
BEEREEY
Henan Tian Lun Gas Group Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 1,750,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural

(“Henan Tian Lun Gas”)

1 November 2002

gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). FATKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
A INESR B8/ REEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
BETARERMAERAT hE/ BRELRA 10,000 100%  RPEEERERLR
([BEXRER]) “ERETACTAR
Hebi Tian Lun Vehicle-use Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Hebi Tian Lun Vehicle”) 29 October 2007
FETARBEERAA hE/ EREARR 25,000 100%  RPEREEE
([FFEXR) ZER=ENAZTAA RARBERMR
BERREEY
Xuchang Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 25,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Xuchang Tian Lun") 29 September 2003 gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
FETARERMRERAR hE/ EREARR 10,000 100%  RPEHEBERAR
([FFEXmER]) “EE\ENATZH
Xuchang Tian Lun Vehicle-use Gas Limited ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Xuchang Tian Lun Vehicle") 12 September 2008
T LR RRAERAT hE/ EREARR 15,000 90%  RPEFREE
([ HEXtR]) “ERLELATAR RAREERMA
EERREEY
Zhengzhou Shangjie Tian Lun Gas Limited ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 15,000 90% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Shangjie Tian Lun") 18 July 2007 gas, construction and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). FATKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
AMEINER B8/ HEEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETR
(RMB'000)
BRTARRERAR ((HERR]) hE/ BRELRA 30,361 RBI%  RPERREE
ZERSERATAR AARHERMEA
EERRaEEy
Baiyin Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,361 98.97% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Gansu Baiyin") 16 June 2003 gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
RETEBRRERLAA((B5EER]) hE/ BREERHA 8,500 100% R EIHERER AR
“ERNETATEA
Baiyin Wantong Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 8,500 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Baiyin Wantong”) 15 October 2009
EERE AR REEERAR) hE/ EREARR 140,000 100%  APEREEE
(EGEN) ZERRE-ACTEA RARHERMR
BEERERY
REGRARHE
Jilin Zhongji Dadi Gas Group Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 140,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Jilin Zhongji") 25 March 2005 gas, construction and

connection of gas
pipelines and sales of
CNG in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). FATKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
A INESR B8/ REEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
ATARRERAR ([ LARM]) hE/ BRELRA 24,000 100%  RPEEEEERLR
“EE\ELANA
Jiutai Dadi Gas Limited (“Jiutai Dadi") PRC/ Limited liability company 24,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
8 July 2008 gas in the PRC
ERTAMRIARAR hE/ EREARR 10,000 100%  RYEHEEERAR
(IBEAs)) “ERRETACTRA REEXAR
Panshi Dadi Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Panshi Dadi") 26 October 2006 gas and CNG in the PRC
REMABHRERAT hE/ EREARR 12,000 100%  RYEHEEERRR
(TRZ A1) “TZ\#-A-ThA REEXAR
Da'an Dadi Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 12,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Da’an Dadi") 25 January 2008 gas and CNG in the PRC
BT AR ARERAA hE/ BRELRA 6,000 100% R EHERER AR
(TasAs)) ZF3/E=R=1=H
Baicheng Dadi Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 6,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Baicheng Dadi") 23 March 2006
REZN IR ARLR hE/ BREMAT 16,000 100%  RREHEEERAR
([FEELD]) “EENENA=TH
Zhenlai County Dadi Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 16,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural

(“Zhenlai County Dadi")

30 September 2009
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B O R R M ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—F-NFT_HA=+—HILFE

(CHEENBARETIT(HIFZEHS))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
AMEINER B8/ HEEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETR
(RMB'000)
BRI HARERAR hE/ BRELRA 10,000 100%  RPEEEEERLA
([@mEAM]) “ERRET-A=TH
Tongyu County Dadi Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Tongyu County Dadi") 30 November 2005 gas in the PRC
EETARIRAERAR hE/ EREARR 20,000 100%  APEREEE
(EBAR) “ERNET-ANE RARBERMR
BERREEY
Puyang Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Puyang Tianlun") 9 November 2009 gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
A RBRARARLA hE/ EREARR 13,000 100%  RYEHEEERAR
([3ukAh)) “TRE-ATEA
Dunhua Dadi Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 13,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Dunhua Dadi") 15 January 2007 gas in the PRC
ST A REAAERAR wE/ BREAAR 5,000 100%  REEREIRRG
([E#Ah)) “TT_F-RtH R
Jilin Dadi Technology Consultancy Limited ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 5,000 100% Engineering design and
(“Jilin Dadi”) 7 March 2002 consulting services
in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1. FRARIRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
A INESR B8/ REEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
HHERRIMRARAR hE/ EREAAR 10,000 100%  RPERREE
(FEZN) “E——%+-ACH AARHERMEA
EERRaEEy
Xinye County Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Xinye Tian Lun") 2 November 2011 gas, construction and

connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC

AR ARAA hE/ EREMAT 33,330 0% REEREEE
(M mR]) “EZNE-ARA AARBERMA
EERREEY
REGRARHE
Henan Luyuan Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 33,330 70% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Henan Luyuan”) 6 January 2005 gas, construction and
connection of gas
and sales of CNG

pipelines in the PRC

BERRIRRARLA hE/ EREARR 13,000 100%  HeERREE
(Fmag]) “T——%5A-THA AARHERMA
BERREEY
Song County Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 13,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Henan Songxian”) 24 June 2011 gas, construction and
connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11@). FARRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
AMEINER B8R/ BEEN
% WHERAH EEERER BHRE i ITERNCEY
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETT
(RMB'000)
AETER TERRARAA hE/ BREEAA 1,060 0% RPEHEREXRAR
((ErsRER)) ZEEENAZTZA
Shanggiu Luyuan Vehicle Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 1,060 70% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Shanggiu Luyuan Vehicle") 22 August 2006
AORBREARAA hE/ BRETAR 10,000 100%  REEEREE
(MAn#&E)) “E—5-ARA RARHERME
EEEREEY
Dongkou Senbo Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Dongkou Senbo”) 6 January 2011 gas, construction and

connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC

RABRARARARLA hE/ BRETAA 30,000 100%  AEREEE
([FsmEH) “TEMETA-T\R RARHERMA
BEREREEY
Kaifeng Xi'Na Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Kaifeng Xi'Na") 28 October 2004 gas, construction and
connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). FATKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
ARRINER/ B8/ REEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
EEPRMRARAA(EEDR]) hE/ BRELRA 10,000 80%  NPEFEEE
ZE-ZERANR AARHERMEA
EERRaEEy
Cao County Zhongtian Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 80% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Caoxian Zhongtian") 9 May 2012 gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
EEPRMRBRAA ([EEDR]) hE/ BREERH 12,000 80% RPERREE
“EEEMACTLA RARHE RIR
EERREEY
Shan County Zhongtian Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 12,000 80% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Shanxian Zhongtian”) 27 April 2006 gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
EEBEXRIAARAT e/ BREAAT 30,000 100%  MPEREEE
([BRAR)) ZEZE-ARR AARHERMA
EERRERN
Guangxi Luzhai Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Luzhai Tianlun") 6 January 2012 gas, construction and
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1. FARRE (&)

B O R R M ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
AMEINER B8/ HEEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETR
(RMB'000)
BEXRERZRRRARAT hE/ BRELRA 20,000 0%  RREEEREAAR
([MBEXMR]) “F-—ERR=T-A
Xingtai Tianlun Yunyu Vehicle Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 70% Sales of CNG in the PRC
Limited (“Xingtai Tianlun") 31 May 2012
DRRRRRARAA ([ZRAMR)) hE/ BREARH 10,000 100%  RHEREEE
“T-C#+-A=tH RARHERMA
BERREEY
Gulang Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Gulang Tianlun") 30 November 2012 gas, construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
ERREEARIRRARAA wE/ AREARH 10,000 70% R BRI B
(Ee)) “T-ZE+ZAMA FERE
Jilin Changling County Tianlun Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 70% New energy technology
Limited (“Changling Tianlun") 4 December 2013 development services
in the PRC
RPEEAAREEERAA hE/ EREARE 10,000 80%  APERREE
([ReEs ) “EZNERAZA AREHERNA
EERREEN
Dongming Wanji Natural Gas Industrial PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 80% Sales of pipelined natural
Limited (“Dongming Wanji") 3 June 2005 gas, construction and

connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1. FRARIRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
A INESR B8/ REEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
HEDEIARRARAR RE/ BREFLA 10,000 100%  RPERREE
([FEE) “ER-E-A- 1WA AARHERMEA
EERRaEEy
Heze Guanghe Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Heze Guanghe") 24 January 2002 gas, construction and

connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC

EEEBARRRARAT hE/ EREAAT 10,000 100%  APEREEE
([EmER ) “E-CHET-ACttH RARHE IR
EERREEY
Guangxi Guanyang Tianlun Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Limited (“Guanyang Tianlun") 27 November 2013 gas, construction and
connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

DT R RERRAERAT hE/ AREERH 10,000 100%  RHEHEREARR
[LEER)) ZECERATNA

Zhengzhou Shangjie Tianlun Vehicle PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
Gas Limited (“Shangjie Tianlun 18 April 2013
Vehicle")
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). FATKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
AMEINER B8/ HEEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETR
(RMB'000)
EHABRARARAR hE/ EREAAR 30,000 100%  APERERIES
([EEAR)) ZF-=F-BZ1@EA Rkt
Yunnan Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Engineering design and
(“Yunnan Datong) 24 March 2013 consulting services
in the PRC
SREXBRARARLA hE,/ EREARR 8,000 100%  RERREE
(reExa)) S o RAREERMA
BERREEY
Huize Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 8,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Huize Datong") 21 December 2007 gas; construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
BEXBRARERAT hE/ EREARR 10,000 100%  ReERREE
EEN:1) “EENE-ATIR RARHERMA
BERREREY
Gejiu Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Gejiu Datong”) 15 January 2009 gas; construction and

connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). FATKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
A INESR B8/ REEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
ERGABRRRARAT hE/ EREAAR 6,000 100%  RPERREE
([EEAR)) “E2-SEAAZA RARHE IR
EERREEy
Guangnan Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 6,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Guangnan Datong") 2 September 2010 gas; construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
ANERBRARARAT hE/ EREMAT 6,000 100%  APEREEE
(Fmoxa)) “E-=EAAZTRA RARHE RIR
EERREEY
Hekou Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 6,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Hekou Datong") 24 September 2013 gas; construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
RUEABRARARAT e/ BREAAT 5,000 100%  MPEREEE
([RLAR)) “E——5nATH AARHERMA
EERRERN
Yanshan Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 5,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Yanshan Datong”) 10 May 2011 gas; construction and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). FATKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
AMEINER B8/ HEEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETR
(RMB'000)
HIRBRARERAR hE/ EREAAR 10,000 100%  RPERREE
([axal) “ERNENAZTRA AARHERMEA
EERRaEEy
Honghe Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Honghe Datong”) 25 August 2009 gas; construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
EREABRARARLT hE/ EREMAT 5,000 100%  MEREEE
([BgAE) “E-EE+ACTCR RARHE IR
EERREEY
Ludian Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 5,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Ludian Datong") 22 July 2010 gas; construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
HREARIRARAR hE/ AREERH 10,000 100%  RREEEEERAR
([FEAR]) “E-ZELA=TH
Weishi Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Weishi Tianlun”) 30 July 2013 gas in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). FABKRE (& 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
A INESR B8/ REEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
EHFRARRRARAT hE/ EREAAR 10,000 100%  RPERERIES
([FExR]) ZB-=E\AZT5A Rkt
Jilin Yitong Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Engineering design and
(“Yitong Tianlun") 26 August 2013 consulting services
in the PRC
BAERARAA(EAGR)) HEEE/ BREFAH 610¢ 100% REBRRAAR
ZE3-=FrAT=H FERS
Hong Kong Xin Rong Limited Hong Kong/ Limited liability company 610* 100% Trading of natural gas
(“HK Xin Rong") 13 June 2013 equipment in HK
NETHERRZERMAERAT wE/ BRERAF 10,000 90% REEFREE
(FLgEE ) “EZ\E+ATER RARHERMA
BERREEY
Shantou Chaoyang District Minan PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 90% Sales of pipelined natural
Pipelined Gas Limited 15 October 2008 gas; construction and

(“Shantou Chaoyang”)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
AMEINER B8/ HEEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETR
(RMB'000)
IET AR RBRAA hE/ EREAAR 17,250 0%  HPEFREE
(MhEEE]) “NMRERAZTEA ARRHERMEA
EERRaEEy
Shantou Chenghai Gas Construction PRC/ Limited liability company 17,250 90% Sales of pipelined natural
Limited (“Shantou Chenghai”) 24 June 1994 gas; construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
BNTER R AR AT hE/ EREAAT 133,204 60%  HRPEREEE
(Mazx) “E-ZEAARA RARHE RIR
EERREEY
Chaozhou Huamao Energy Distribution PRC/ Limited liability company 133,224 60% Sales of pipelined natural
Limited (“Chaozhou Huamao") 6 September 2010 gas; construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
BEREMAERAR hE/ AREARH 10,000 100%  WREREREEE
(IEe%ael) ZECERA=TA HatiRE
Tangyin Yuneng Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Provision of designing
(“Tangyin Yuneng”) 30 May 2013 service of gas pipelines

in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1. FARIRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
A INESR B8R/ BEEN
£ WHERAH EEERER BHRE 4y ITERNCEY
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
ZRtHTARAT ([E8t L)) hEEE/ BREAAF 79¢ 100% REBETRE
“2-mE\ARA NEERE
Wah Shing Century Limited Hong Kong/ Limited liability company 79* 100% [nvestment in equity and
(“Wah Shing Century") 5 August 2014 assets in HK
IRRBREBRAA TE/ BRETAA 70,000 100%  RPERERNMER
(ERXmRE]) ZEEERACTEA
Beijing Tian Lun Investment PRC/ Limited liability company 70,000 100% Intermediary holding
Company Limited 23 May 2006 in the PRC

(“Beifing Tian Lun Investment”)

GREEERBERERAT hE/ BRERAF 343,320 100% RPERRTNMER
(ZE8R)) “E-MEmAZA

Beijing Hui Ji Energy Holdings Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 343,320 100% Intermediary holding
(“Hui Ji Energy") 2 April 2014 inthe PRC

AEARRRERERAT wE/ AREERH 265,411 90% MEHEREE /P8
([(KeitEER) ZTZ\EZATNA

Henan Tianlun Pipeline Company PRC/ Limited liability company 265,411 90% Sales and transportation
Limited (“Tianlun Pipeline”) 19 February 2008 gas/PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1. FRARRE (& 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
AMEINER B8/ HEEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETR
(RMB'000)
SHEELRERAA(=HEE]) hE/ EREAAR 24,000 100%  MEHERER
—%--%-FhA MAEBES/TE
Sanming Hui Ji Energy Company Limited ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 24,000 100% Sales and transportation
(“Sanming Huiji") 9 January 2012 gas, gas pipelines
connections/PRC
FNARRRERERAT hE/ BREFAH 50,000 85% MEsHEREE/ T8
([&NxR) “ER\E=AT+H
Suzhou Tianlun Natural Gas Pipeline PRC/ Limited liability company 50,000 85% Sales and transportation
Network Company Limited 17 March 2008 gas/PRC

(“Suzhou Tianlun”)

ERBTERNRARAT hE/ AREERHA 3,000 100% RPERREE
(MerzE) “EERET-ATCIR RARHE RIR
EERREEY
Li Quan County Hong Yuan Natural PRC/ Limited liability company 3,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Gas Company Limited 12 December 2005 gas; construction and
(“Liquan Hongyuan") connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC
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BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1. FATKRE (&)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
A INESR B8/ REEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
LG TERRRARAR hE/ EREAAR 3,000 100%  RPERREE
([%&EE)) “EEENATAR RARHE IR
EERREEy
Qian County Hong Yuan Natural Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 3,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Company Limited 18 September 2006 gas; construction and
(“Qianxian Hongyuan”) connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
AR ZARIEARAT hE/ BREERH 19,000 100% RPERREE
(&) ZT-ZFRA-T-H RARHE RIR
EERREEY
Jilin Qian'an Tianlun Gas Company PRC/ Limited liability company 19,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Limited (“Jilin Qian'an") 21 May 2010 gas; construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
BEg IR AERAT hE/ AREARH 10,000 100%  WHEREEE
(st l) —T—f=f=1-H AARHERMR
EERRERN
Hunan Zhongyou Zhiyuan PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Gas Company Limited 31 March 2011 gas; construction and

(“Hunan Zhongyou")
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1. FATKRE (&)

B O R R M ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
ARRINER/ B8/ HEEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETR
(RMB'000)
AR REZERARAT hE/ EREAAR 10,000 100%  RPERREE
(MK SR]) “B-nET-AZTIA RARHE IR
EERRaEEy
Jingzhou Tian Lun Clean Energy PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Company Limited 25 December 2015 gas; construction and
(“Jingzhou Tianlun") connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
I EBERATAREARA hE/ EREMAT 30,000 100%  MEREEE
(Tm)eRz)) “EERETCACTH AARBERMA
EERREEY
Sichuan Mingsheng Natural Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Company Limited 20 December 2000 gas; construction and
(“Sichuan Mingsheng") connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
I EER AR ERE LR hE/ AREAERH 39,800 100%  WHEREEE
(RipllE=:a)) “EZ-nENA-A AARHERMA
EERRERN
Xichuan Longcheng Natural PRC/ Limited liability company 39,800 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Gas Company Limited 1 September 2015 gas; construction and
(“Xichuan Longcheng”) connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC
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BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1. FRARRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
A INESR B8/ REEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
ST RIBEE EARRARAT hE/ EREAAR 20,000 8%  RPEFREE
([#E%IBE)) “ERtE-ATHA AARHERMEA
EERRaEEy
Lechang Anshunda Pipeline PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 85% Sales of pipelined natural
Nature Gas Company Limited 15 February 2007 gas; construction and
(“Lechang Anshunda”) connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

m)II4 ¢ EERRIEERAR hE/ EREAAT 51,145 100%  APEREEE
(re=ig)) “ANEERATZR AARBERMA
EERREEY
Sichuan Jintang County Tian Lun PRC/ Limited liability company 51,145 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Gas Company Limited 12 May 1993 gas; construction and
(“Jintang Gas") connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC

BRARRRARAA ([HRRR) e/ AREARHA 10,000 100%  WHEREEE
I s gl AARHERMA
EERREEY
Nantong Tian Lun Gas Company PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Limited (“Nantong Gas") 22 January 2017 gas; construction and
connection of gas

pipelines in the PRC
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1. FATKRE (&)

B O R R M ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
AMEINER B8/ HEEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETR
(RMB'000)
BUTRRIRARAR hE/ BRELRA 10,000 100%  HRERENEE
([Bulmz) B tEZATR MREE
Anshan City Tian Lun Gas Company PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Construction and
Limited (“Anshan Gas”) 17 March 2017 maintenance of gas
pipelines in the PRC
REGRERARARELAT hE,/ EREARR 10,000 100%  RERREE
([RERE]) “E-ZENATNH RAREERMA
EEEREEY
Wubu Changxing Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“WubuChangxing") 18 April 2012 gas; construction and
connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
AEERERARARELLR hE/ EREARR 12,000 100%  ReERREE
(TkisR&)) “EEEMATEA RARBERMA
BERREREY
Mizhi Changxing Natural Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 12,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Limited (“Mizhi Changxing”) 14 April 2006 gas; construction and

connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

). FARIKRE (©2) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
A INESR B8/ REEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
AR¥ETR
(RMB'000)
HERRESERARAT hE/ EREAAR 5,000 100%  RPEREZAUR
([ HErRER]) “2-\EWATIE R RE ERS
Shanghai Tian Lun Enterprise PRC/ Limited liability company 5,000 100% Consulting services and
Development Limited 14 April 2018 new energy technology
(“Shanghai Enterprise Development”) development services
in the PRC
FERRRARARAR hE/ EREARE 100,000 0%  APERRXAREE
([ EERRE]) “E2-\FEAT-H DRMRRERE
Shanghai Tian Lun Natural PRC/ Limited liability company 100,000 70% Sales of natural gas and
(Gas Limited (“Shanghai 11 April 2018 trading of natural gas
Natural Gas”) equipment in the PRC
AFEEPRAARAR hE/ EREARR 10,000 100%  AEREEE
((BFE2H]) “E-=f\A=TH AARBERMA
Shijiazhuang Jinming Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Shijiazhuang Jinming") 20 August 2013 gas, construction and
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B O R R M ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
AMEINER B8/ HEEX
£ HERAH EEERER BHRE 4y B E VIR S
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETR
(RMB'000)
PR RENERERERAT hE/ BREAAA 10,000 51% REEREXAR
(Mmhzs)) ZE-\EZAT-R HEHE
Sichuan Tian Lun Shuxin Clean Energy PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 51% Wholesales of natural gas
Limited (“Sichuan Shuxin”) 11 February 2018 in the PRC
KRBT AREZMRARAA hE/ EREARR 10,000 100%  RPERRENLE-
([%BXR) “E-\ENAZTH e R E MR
Xingyang City Tian Lun Intelligent PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Electricity generation,
Energy Limited 20 September 2018 supply and sales services
(“Xingyang TianLun") inthe PRC
R RAREEAT hE/ BRELRH 10,000 100% R ERRERNA
(FeEE) “2-\EEAZT/R R Rk AR
Henan Boju New Energy Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Promotion and consulting
(“Henan Boju") 28 April 2018 services of new energy
technology in the PRC
EEEARIMAERAA hE/ EREARE 10,000 100%  APERRATHERE
([EBXMR)) “E-/\fRA=TZR RREHE
Xiayi County Tian Lun Gas Company PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of urban gas
Limited (“Xiayi TianLun") 22 May 2018 and gas appliances
in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1. FARRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
A INESR B8/ REEX
£ wHRAH EEEREH BHRE 35 IRERANCE Y
Country/ Issued/
Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
ARETT
(RMB'000)
RHXRERGFERAF HE/ BREMLF 6,900 58.20% RAEREAARHEE
([RAXR]) “E-N\FtAT-A IRFARME
EEEY
Dongming Tian Lun Yunzhen PRC/ Limited liability company 6,900 58.20% Sales of natural gas,
Energy Limited (“Dongming TianLun") 11 July 2018 construction consulting

and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC

EEEREERAR((ATNE])  +E/ BREAAR 20,000 100%  RHEREEEAAR
“ZT-FNATLA HERMAEERR
B
Xiping Kaida Gas Company Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 100% Sales of natural gas,
(“Xiping Kaida") 15 April 2003 construction consulting

and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC

HAGARIRERAT e/ BRELAF 10,000 100%  RHERREERAR
((BEXR]) ZE-nE-A-H HERMAEERR
R
Nanzhao Tian Lun Gas Company PRC Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of natural gas,
Limited (“Nanzhao TianLun") 1 January 2019 construction consulting

and connection of gas
pipelines in the PRC

BTAREMERERAR hE/ EREARA 10,000 51%  RREREAAR
(IXeE3)) “E-NFRA=1+-H BEHE
Guangyuan Tian Lun Shuxin Energy PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 51% Wholesales of natural gas
Limited (“Guangyuan TianLun") 21 May 2019 in the PRC
* T RIERA B 31T A A 1,000 * The issued capital of Upsky Holdings is USD1,000.
E
K eE RN B BTN RS The issued capital of Tian Lun New Energy is HKD2.
BT o
EBEERONBEETRAEAA The issued capital of HK Xin Rong is USD100,000.
100,000 T °
ERTLANDBITREAEE The issued capital of Wah Shing Century is HKD100,000.
100,0007T °
o AR EEERNF AR b Shares hold directly by the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(@) Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2019 are
approximately RMB296,536,000 (2018: RMB293,901,000), of
which approximately RMB105,425,000 (2018: RMB95,725,000)
is attributed to Chaozhou Huamao, approximately RMB38,788,000
(2018: RMB39,348,000) is attributed to Tianlun Pipeline, and
approximately RMB39,615,000 (2018: RMB43,659,000) is
attributed to Suzhou Tianlun.

The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiaries are not
material.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for each
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.
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BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

1. FRARKRE (&

(@) EARHVEZFIMEER(E)

11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(@) Material non-controlling interests (continued)

BEEEBXEE Summarised balance sheets
BNER KRR ER Y PN
Chaozhou Huamao Tianlun Pipeline Suzhou Tianlun
W+=A=1+-H R+=A=1+-H R+=B=+-B
As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
“E-hE -\ ZE-nE —T-NFE ZBE-NFE —F-)\F
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
AR®TR AR%ETr AR¥Tx ARETE AR¥Tx ARET:T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
& Current
A= Assets 21,874 35,765 64,952 104,711 123,081 79,190
af Liabilities (42,132) (92,158) (73,375)  (140,404)  (155,160)  (135,955)

REFEARBETE Total net current

liabilities
*Ra Non-current
A= Assets
aE Liabilities
FERE Total net non-current

FEELE assets

FEE Net assets

(20,258) (56,393) (8,423) (35,693)

(32,079) (56,765)

165,064 171,636 428,866 483,022
= — (147,290) (174,060)

165,210 174,483
(141) (151)

165,064 171,636 281,576 308,962

165,069 174,332

144,806 115,243 273,153 273,269

132,990 117,567

\194 PEXARRIERERAT 2019FFEHSE




B O R R M ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11@). FARIKRE (&) 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
(@) EBEARHFEEFIMERE) (@) Material non-controlling interests (continued)
HEWmREE Summarised statements of comprehensive income
BMNER KRR RER S YIPN ]
Chaozhou Huamao Tianlun Pipeline Suzhou Tianlun
BEt-A=1t-HLEE HZEt-A=t-ALEE HEt-A=t-ALEE
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
“E-hE ZE-N\F ZE-hE ZE-\F ZE-hE CZET)N\E
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

ARBTR ARRTT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARET:T
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

WA Revenue 168,203 127,376 471,423 446,569 765,692 546,509
BRPTEHEATUZ  Profit before income tax 12,220 5,254 18,280 35,319 69,702 61,544
FriSHER Income tax expense (3,090) (1,313) (4,586) (8,791) (17,446) (15,410)
AF g Profit for the year 9,130 3,941 13,694 26,528 52,256 46,134
EfiA e Other comprehensive
income — — — — — —
Bire Total comprehensive
income 9,130 3,941 13,694 26,528 52,256 46,134
@irA MR Total comprehensive
BT income allocated to
s non-controlling
interests 3,652 1,576 1,369 2,653 7,838 6,920

JEEFI A Liabilities waives

EB#E attributed to
non-controlling
interest 8,173 — — — — _
[MFEEHIEZE  Dividends paid to
XA non-controlling
interests — — 1,381 1,459 5,525 10,484
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a). FABKRE (& 11(a). INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(@) EARHVEZFIMEER(E) (@

Material non-controlling interests (continued)

BEnREXBE Summarised statements of cash flows
HNER AtaBRER YN
Chaozhou Huamao Tianlun Pipeline Suzhou Tianlun
HZ+t-A=1+-ALFEE HE+-A=+-ALFE BE+t-A=+-ALEE
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
“E-hE ZE-N\F ZE-hE ZE-\F ZE-hE ZTN\E
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
AR®TT ARETT AR%®Tr ARETT AR%Tr ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
RETEN Cash flows from

HeRE operating activities
mEEL/ Cash generated from/

(fFA)®3E%  (used in) operations 14,664 16,443 (43,959) (104,218) 110,846 62,945
BRFIE Interest paid (4,112) (4,757) (18,744) (15,619) (5,010) (4,551)
BRMEH Income tax paid — — (979) (8,731) (17,213) (15,258)
mEEE) Net cash generated

EL/(FR)  from/used in)

FFRE operating activities 10,552 11,686 (63,682) (128,568) 88,623 43,136
REZH Net cash (used in)/

(f£8)/E%  generated from

BFRE investing activities (5,409) (14,392) 132,683 (53,877) (50,398) (7,074)
BMEES Net cash generated

Ex/ () from/(used in)

EopEitin financing activities 37 39 (60,831) 192,640 (34,640) (34,808)
ReRAE Net increase/(decrease)

ZENF in cash and cash

#i,/0f2)  equivalents 5,180 (2,667) 8,170 10,195 3,585 1,254
FMRER Cash and cash

Re%EEYD equivalents at

beginning of year 11,114 13,781 10,650 455 28,487 27,233
FREER Cash and cash equivalents

ReZEY at end of year 16,294 11,114 18,820 10,650 32,072 28,487

LA EER AR RIS HEAT RS - The information above is the amount before inter-company
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as

N follows:
B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
=F-NF —TN\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEE AR ZEE Investments in associates 562,642 521,270
HELEANRZIEE Investment in a joint venture 243,753 335,565
806,395 856,835

RSP HERHBENT

The amounts recognised in profit and loss are as follows:

BE+-A=1+—-HALEE

Year ended 31 December

—s-nE T )\F
2019 2018
ARMT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FE(REE N ERE Share of post-tax profit of associates

MEE () 58 41,372 19,495

B A E R AITE Share of post-tax loss of a joint venture
B BRI 5 (83,689) (64,435)
(42,317) (44,940)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b). R EZEARNIRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(4B THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
NTAEREERR=_ZE—NF+=A Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
=T —HEERBZBEATF 2019, which are held directly by the Group.
RZE—NF+-_A=+—HHH Nature of investment in associates as at 31 December 2019:

YRRZREMENT :

% EHuns EMRALER FrE R % BENME TTREE
Place of business/ % of Nature of Measurement
Name of entity country of incorporation ownership interest the relationship method
ASREARRERNBRAR HE/NEL 33.33% (MizE1) Bk
(TAREAR])
Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Inner Mongolia, 33.33% (Note 1) Equity
Gas Investment Corporation the PRC

Limited (“Inner Mongolia
Petroleum and Gas")

FENTHIERARARAA hE/TE 20.00% R ERE
(TERMTE D)

Suzhou Ping Zhuang Industrial Jiangsu, the PRC 20.00% (Note 2) Equity
Gas Co., Ltd

(“Suzhou Ping Zhuang”)

NG eRAERNERAA B/ 20.00% (BiE3) %
(MAEnsl)

Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Henan, the PRC 20.00% (Note 3) Equity
Company Limited

(“Henan Jiuding")

REDENHIR R AR EERR e/l 11.00% GETY E®E
(DEMERE D)

Chengdu Huaizhou Xincheng Sichuan, the PRC 11.00% (Note 4) Equity
Gas Company Limited

(“Huaizhou Gas”")
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE2—F—NF+_H="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Note 1: Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas was incorporated on
11 December 2014 and mainly engages in the construction of
long-distance petroleum and gas pipelines, and investment in
the petroleum and gas industry. Inner Mongolia Petroleum and
Gas is a strategic partner for the Group, providing access to new
customers and markets of the upstream gas industry and creating
synergies with the subsidiaries of the Group.

Note 2: Suzhou Ping Zhuang mainly engages in the sales of bottled gas.
Suzhou Ping Zhuang provides access to new customers and
markets.

Note 3: Henan Jiuding was incorporated on 23 March 2016 and mainly
engages in financial leasing, financial leasing assets trading, fixed
income securities investment, inter-bank borrowing investment
and other financial business. Henan Jiuding is a strategic partner
for the Group, and can finance potential industrial customers
substituting its energy supply from coal and electricity to
pipelined natural gas and create synergies with the subsidiaries
of the Group.

Note 4: Huaizhou Gas mainly engages in the sales of natural gas,
construction and connection of gas pipelines, and construction
and operation of gas stations etc. Huaizhou Gas provides access
to new customers and markets, and create synergies with the
subsidiaries of the Group.

Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas, Suzhou Ping Zhuang, Henan
Jiuding and Huaizhou Gas are unlisted companies and there are
no quoted market prices available for the equities. There are
no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in the
associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h). IRFEZSEABRMNIRE  11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
(4& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

BEQATNHEMBER

THIRTESARYNAKEE
R HY P S o R SRR L ) B
EREME - PINEME S RRIARE
BENRPBHmEAT 2 OEE
MIERAEERIGUFHREND
B WHRIR T BAEERRDER
FRERRE - BRY QA BENH
EUANLE R ERETHEE

Summarised financial information for the associates

The tables below provide summarised financial information for Inner
Mongolia and Henan Jiuding, which in the opinion of the director,
are material to the Group. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant
associates not the Group’s share of those amounts. They have been
amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the
equity method, including fair value adjustments and modifications
for differences in accounting policy.

2 o
EESEXBE Summarised balance sheets
ZEEY:
Inner Mongolia AEAE
Petroleum and Gas Henan Jiuding
R+=-A=t+-H R+=A=t+-H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
“g-nF 0\ C¥-RE B
2019 2018 2019 2018
ARETR AREFT ARETT AREFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
piikl] Current
BeKA2SEY Cash and cash equivalents 18,534 18,312 2,127,154 467,248
HivnBEE Other current assets 144,998 145,122 14,742,631 15,975,577
REEELS Total current assets 163,532 163,434 16,869,785 16,442,825
HEngak Other current liabilities
(BAEERED) (including trade payables) (1,403) (2,171)  (13,728,487)  (13,385,331)
REABEE Total current liabilities (1,403) (2,171) (13,728,487) (13,385,331)
FERE Non-current
HiensaeE Other non-current assets 2,064 664 105,329 60,403
FERBEELT Total non-current assets 2,064 664 105,329 60,403
HEiIEREaE Other non-current liabilities (2,800) (2,800) (741,149) (813,092)
BREs Total equity 161,393 159,127 2,505,478 2,304,805
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b). BEmEARNIRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(4) THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
BENANREENKER Summarised financial information for the associates
(&) (continued)
HEWBREE Summarised statements of comprehensive income
ZELp:
Inner Mongolia AEAE
Petroleum and Gas Henan Jiuding
BET-A=t-HLEE BE+-A=t-HILEE
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
“E-NF —T-N\F “E-NE —E-N\F
2019 2018 2019 2018
ARETR AREFT ARETT AREFTT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 10,179 10,373 501,151 357,916
bR S8 A0 A Profit before income tax 3,021 3,358 267,564 125,479
AEFE Profit for the year 2,266 2,526 200,673 93,509
FalEEE Total comprehensive income 2,266 2,526 200,673 93,509
BHEHBER TR Reconciliation of summarised financial information
FT 251 K078 2 0 75 & R LB & R 7 Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to
S RMEM L - the carrying amount of its interests in the associates.
ABEEHHE Summarised financial information
RELp:E
Inner Mongolia AR
Petroleum and Gas Henan Jiuding
BEt-RA=1t-HILEE BEt-A=1t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December Year ended31 December
—E-hE —E-N\F “E-NF —E-N\5F
2019 2018 2019 2018
ARETT ARETL ARETR AREFTL
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BNFEE Opening net assets 53,037 156,600 2,304,805 2,211,296
AEFIE Profit for the year 2,266 2,626 200,673 93,509
HRFEE Closing net assets 55,303 159,126 2,505,478 2,304,805
BN AR Interest in associates
(33.33% #120%) (33.33% and 20%) 53,792 53,037 501,096 460,961
REEE Carrxing value 53,792 53,037 501,096 460,961

China Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 20 1/




B OB M SRR Y RE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b). B EARRARE
(&
BEARNERMBER
(/‘gj

=

A5 FEEAXHIBEE
PR EXX P ERR S s S - AR
TR BB REZENMEIEE
R AR AR

11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for the associates
(continued)

Individually immaterial associates

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the Group
also has interests in two of individually immaterial associates that
are accounted for using the equity method.

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EARIZEE RBE S A FH)  Aggregate carrying amount of
BEmEBE individually immaterial associates 7,754 7,272
NEEBFT{H{D5E4E%E ©  Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of:
FELE T Profit from continuing operations 482 (49)
4R Post-tax profit or loss from discontinued
bRiiizER operations — _
HAtnsR e W Other comprehensive income = —
IR E W Total comprehensive income 482 (49)
NTAEREBRR=_E—NF+=A Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at 31 December
—t+—HEERAZEERA . 2019, which are held directly by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(). IR REZSSEABRIIIRE  11(b).INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
(&) THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

BERTRNEERKEER Summarised financial information for the joint venture
N_E—NEFE+_A=+—RHHE Nature of investment in joint ventures as at 31 December 2019:

ERRIZREMENT :

8 $80% BEMALER FERERER % BENEE FERE
Place of business/ % of Nature of Measurement

Name of entity country of incorporation ownership interest the relationship method

AABERRIERREEEP L HE/ T 40.00% (Bt 5) e

(BRa%)([iEBERRES])
Henan Yuzi Tianlun New Energy Henan, the PRC 40.00% (Note 5) Equity

Investment Fund Centre
(Limited Partnership)
(“Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund")

MizE5: JIMBEXRMELN-ZT Note 5: Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund was incorporated on 27 June 2018
—N\FRAZTEHKT - mainly engaged in investment in coal-to-gas conversion
DEN A HEE SRR projects in the townships in Henan Province and the upstream
B R ETHRAREZEGE and downstream natural gas industrial chain, to capture the
TIRE - YR BERAR opportunities brought by the rapid development of the natural gas
EFERREREROEE - industry in the PRC and explore the huge potential of the natural
FROBEBEEEED - ZHA gas market in the townships in Henan Province through making
EARERARTEHEXR full use of the strengths of the Group.
&
MEBRERMESAIELTAR Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund is unlisted company and there are no
HERELSBEMSHME - NEEES quoted market prices available for the equities. There are no
BRRZERTETASERE - contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in a joint
venture.
THIRTHAEEEANEER The tables below provide summarised financial information for
AMPBEERE - IEENES Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund, which in the opinion of the director,
BB A &R RE iRz H 25 are material to the Group. The information disclosed reflects the
ROEEE - MR A E B IS amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint
B ()RR o Wk Rk = B A 58 A4 venture not the Group’s share of those amounts. They have been
AR PTER AR - ’@%%ﬁ@fﬂﬁ amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the
BERRABRUARRSHERERE equity method, including fair value adjustments and modifications
FEREIE R © for differences in accounting policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b). B EARNIRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
BERTRNEENKEER Summarised financial information for the joint venture
(& (continued)
EEEEXHE Summarised balance sheets
EBEXRRES
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —T— )\
2019 2018
ARET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Current
HeRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 179,526 1,213,206
HEMmshEE Other current assets 110,451 5,332
MEVEEMREE Total current assets 289,977 1,218,538
HivmBafs Other current liabilities (including trade payables)

(BIEEMERR) (1,152,079) (1,144,209)
mENBEARE Total current liabilities (1,152,079) (1,144,209)
IEREB Non-current
HEMIERBIEE Other non-current assets 2,235,664 922,005
IERENE EMEE Total non-current assets 2,235,664 922,005
HEMIERBaE Other non-current liabilities (331,470) —
HEmER Total equity 1,042,092 996,334
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE—F—NF+-A=1—HIFZE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b). BEmEARNIRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(#& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
EEQNTFNEENKER Summarised financial information for the joint venture
(#&) (continued)
HERBRGE Summarised statements of comprehensive income
MEEREXRRES
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
BE HE

+=B=+-8 +-A=t+-A
LEE EASE

Six months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

—E-hEF —T-N\F

2019 2018

AR%T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

KA Revenue 114,166 678
BRFT{S R AT Profit before income tax 8,321 (2,673)
RE /AEFIE Profit for the year/period 11,094 (2,669)
IrE W EEE Total comprehensive income 11,094 (2,669)
BERF Dividends declared 15,160 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE—F—NF+=A=+—ALFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b). B EARNIRE 11(b). INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(4& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
EEQNTNEENKER Summarised financial information for the joint venture
(#&) (continued)
HEH B E R AT Reconciliation of summarised financial information
FTIE2F B ENBKEREEGE A F Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to
= REERN LT the carrying amount of its interests in a joint venture:
HBEERHE Summarised financial information
TEBERmES
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
BZE HZz

+=A=t-8 +=A=t-A
LEE LKA

Six months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

—E-NE —E-N\F

2019 2018

AR%T ARBEFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

HONFEE Opening net assets 996,334 —
& Capital contribution 49,824 999,003
RE,/ANEAFIE Profit for the year/period 11,094 (2,669)
S & Dividends declared (15,160) —
HRBEE Closing net assets 1,042,092 996,334
B &R (40%) Interest in a joint venture (40%) 432,609 398,010
REEE Carrying value 432,609 398,010
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12.

(a)

(b)

(c)

FrEsiEH

AR R RERBER % B o
PRSP BIZ AR RIS o

ERRBH
BE-—T-NE+-A=+—H1
rZE-N\EFE+ZA=+—HILF
B AEEERFLRREE
ERFIE - A BESNEENE
B (BE16.5%) °

HEREAEH ([PEdE
Frig®i )

RATFRBRFREFMA TR
A BT BECEREE  RE
E-ZT-NFt+-_A=+—HBEZ
T N\F+_A=+—HILFE "
ZERREBIEBRPEATEHRA
KRG E R FERB M e 2 VA TEF
SR ERIREE BRZZE—NF
HEAR BRRE LHBRE -
HiRE®  HRKfm - M)IHE -
CEMR KABERERRERHA
W TEZBEEHAFZEETER
BERRE A% (T — N\F:
15%) 50+ HBRAI AR EHF 2 A
HRAMPECEMEHBEEEA
25% (ZZE—\F : 25%) °

BERSHRNMEHERS

B BB I SRR B RE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Company and Upsky Holdings are not subject to profits tax in
their respective countries of incorporation.

Hong Kong profits tax

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there are no
Hong Kong profits tax applicable (tax rate 16.5%) to any Group
entities.

PRC corporate income tax (the “PRC CIT")

All the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are subject to
the PRC CIT, which has been provided based on the statutory income
tax rate of the assessable income of each of such companies during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules and regulations.
The CIT rate of all the relevant subsidiaries operating in the PRC
is 25% (2018: 25%), except for Gansu Baiyin, Liquan Hongyuan,
Qianxian Hongyuan, Baiyin Wantong, Gulang Tianlun, Sichuan
Mingsheng, Jintang Gas, Mizhi Changxing and Wubu Changxing as
they were approved to entitle to the CIT Preferential Policies for the
Development of the Western Regions and the CIT rate of 2019 is
15% (2018: 15%).

The amount of income tax expense charged to profit or loss
represents:

BE+T-A=1+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —E-N\F

2019 2018

AR%T AREEF T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

B HIRTS Current tax on profits for the year 252,363 261,800
EREFTSHE (M5230)  Deferred income tax (Note 30) 61,552 2,644
313,915 264,444
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12. FRISBER (& 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
(c) HEE¥EMSH (HE®ZE (c) PRC corporate income tax (the “PRC CIT”) (continued)
BBl (&
B AMYIERFTS T & F EER The difference between the actual income tax charge in profit or loss
BERM TR G E R TS AT A AT and the amounts which would result from applying the enacted tax
BFIEMEERAGINAT ¢ rate to profit before income tax can be reconciled as follows:
BE+-A=+—RHILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B P15 FR AR Profit before income tax 1,127,380 864,804
WEEESARMA 2 Taxcalculated at statutory tax rate
EEMERETE ZHIB  applicable to each Group entity 291,668 249,170
EARB AU Income not subject to tax (12,279) (7,695)
AR ER Expenses or losses not deductible
for tax purposes 23,712 1,437
RIERIEIETIIA Tax losses with no deferred tax assets
BEMTIE) recognised (i) 1,407 7,888
¥ B AR Withholding tax on profit to be distributed
HANFLIA (ii) in future (ii) 9,407 13,644
313,915 264,444
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12. FiEHER (&

hEREEH ([ PEdE
Frig® ) (&

BE_T-NF+-_A=t—HLt
FE - MEFHBERAYER28%
ZZE-\F :31%) °

(c)

(i)

(ii)

BRARERREHRBEEN
M8 - FH2HMEE30(C) °

ANEL B R B A I A R
IRERAR KRB AN E
EMPEAMMEH - 1858
HESMER A RIE IR
REIKER S BERA - A
FXAEETEAMFAF
BRI B TRIRATS IR &
5% - WILKH B AR EE
FTEER FT1S T I R 7% 19 13
RS - it AREER
FEAMF AR D EHRE
MASERNEBREIE
KPS

B Ot R R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(c)

PRC corporate income tax (the “PRC CIT”) (continued)

The weighted average effective tax rate for the year ended
31 December 2019 is 28% (2018: 31%).

()

(i)

See Note 30(c) on the tax losses with no deferred tax assets
recognised.

Withholding income tax is provided on the dividends and
intra-group interest charges to be distributed by the Mainland
China subsidiaries of the Group. The relevant overseas holding
companies have successfully obtained endorsement from
Mainland China tax bureaus to enjoy the treaty benefit of 5%
withholding income tax rate on dividends received from the
Mainland China subsidiaries of the Group and 7% withholding
income tax rate on interest charges from the Mainland China
subsidiaries. Accordingly, withholding income tax has been
provided at respective tax rate of the dividends and interest
charges to be distributed by the Mainland China subsidiaries
of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12. FREHER (& 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(c) HEE¥EMSH (HE®ZE (c) PRC corporate income tax (the “PRC CIT”) (continued)
FB®il) (&)
BEMRE WRMAR I N B BN The tax credit relating to components of other comprehensive income
MIBERIT : is as follows:

BET-A=t-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

“B-NE “F-0\F
2019 2018
BBt HESR BREi% BBt HEER BRBife
Before tax Tax credit After tax Before tax Tax credit After tax

ARETR  ARBTR  ARRBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RABEEEER Fair value gains on financial
EEEA assets at fair value
Hfpfra M through other
NeREE comprehensive income

DREE
EEE 931 (233) 698 17,420 (4,355) 13,065
Eizalia Other comprehensive income 931 (233) 698 17,420 (4,355) 13,065
BIREFGH Deferred income tax
(PizE30) (Note 30) — 233 — — 4,355 —
13. ERWE 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@ EX (a) Basic
AEXRGREEBEEBNAR A Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated by dividing the profit
BENFE  BRIAFANEBITER attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
fREINEFHEEHE - number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
BZE+=-A=+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FEBBRAAR Profit attributable to owners of
FTEE (ARBTFIT)  the Company (RMB’000) 789,179 569,142
BEITEERAINME  Weighted average number of
9 (FET) shares in issue (thousands) 990,849 989,615
BRI Basic earnings per share (RMB per share)
(SR ARETT) 0.80 0.58
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13.

(b)

Rz (&)

g

BEERWSRRA A HENE
B BB LR REDEITE
BB INE O IRBGHE - N
E-HuUnNENEEEBR: B
- URIREHEmNS  TRER
TR BB RERBRRITE T K
SHIRREZETORM BB RE
BREBAABE(RRE2FFY
MISERME ) BITLESHERK
FERTWARBRT @ AJEREH
TTRERNBB RGN - E—FR
BETHRN B HEKINETFY
BEEEE N8 - BIERFE
WEERKER TR D&

Bt R M EE (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one
category of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. For the
share options, the number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options less the number of shares
that could have been issued at fair value (determined as the average
market price per share for the year) for the same total proceeds is the
number of shares issued for no consideration. The resulting number
of shares issued for no consideration is included in the weighted
average number of ordinary shares as the denominator for calculating
diluted earnings per share.

BE+=-RA=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hE —T-N\EF
2019 2018
FEHEBRAAF] Profit attributable to owners of
FiEE (ARBTIT)  the Company (RMB'000) 789,179 569,142
DETEBARRINE  Weighted average number of shares
FH8 (F5T) in issue (thousands) 990,849 989,615
FEE - Adjustments for:
— Hp#E (F&1) — Share options (thousands) 4,235 3,724
STEBESRINESR Weighted average number of
L EmAR Y nE ordinary shares for diluted earnings
R (FET) per share (thousands) 995,084 993,339
WEsRkS Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share)
(B AR®ETT) 0.79 0.57
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14A, EREEE 14A. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(i) EBERBERABERNSHE (i)  Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
EHEERERITH T $5EE The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts relating
HEHFRE - to leases:
—T-hEF
—A—8
—E-hF 1 January
2019 2019
ARB TR ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERREEE Right-of-use assets
b fE R Land-use rights 244,896 227,209
BF Buildings 6,800 3,407
251,696 230,616
HEaE Lease liabilities
Mk Current 3,606 1,878
JERED Non-current 6,060 4,484
9,666 6,362
HE-Z—NF+A=+—8H1t Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
FEAN FREBEEEEBMNARE 31 December 2019 were RMB30,346,000.
30,346,0007T °
RE—FE AEEEHEEBEMNK In previous year, the Group recognised the land use right in lease

T R 1t {5 PR A (B 14b) © prepayment (Note 14b).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14A. EREEE (& 14A. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
(i) BRARINEHE (ii)  Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Gt elaERIIRA Ty S REE The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the
HEHFR - following amounts relating to leases:
D
—E-hE
+=BA=t+—H
EFE
Year ended
31 December
2019
AR®BT R
RMB’000
FCREEENTEER Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
T A Land use rights 6,873
BT Buildings 2,393
9,266
FExHGIABBER) Interest expense (included in finance expense) (Note 10)

(B3 10) 496
2009FHEEEEEANRe LA The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was RMB1,677,000.
BR/ARY1,677,0007T °

(iii) XEEMHEETFEREEET (i) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
BRI accounted for
AEEHERRBEF HESRM The Group leases various buildings. Rental contracts are typically
BRLIZ28FHEFHR - BT made for fixed periods of 1 to 28 years, but may have extension
BEE BT ATl BT EERE - options as described in below. Lease terms are negotiated on an
EHREATIEHEENER FET individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
Pk - A RE B E S A O R SR 16 conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
- HEMRTEBELEARE than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
MEEEEMNERTE ZINGE lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
ARY - HEEETSRIEERE purposes.
R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14A. EFREEE (2

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

AREENRE

BT HERS W B FEMST
iast XA M B RN RIEEE
MENKE IR RIESFHFE
BRMERZEETER - BFIHE
BN AREEEHTGEER
REENHERE -

BHEBRERNMKILLHEERE
;]

AEERFHERSEHEEEN
RIEHEREZE  WEARELE
PTAMEEERE T MR ARER
SEENEE

EREHERRE  BEERTE
REEEZERSZEMEBAEE
HEANFEMEN - MREEMEE
HRAGAEN ARBBEEES
BEEMEEMRA -

RZZE-NWF+ZA=+—H0 &k
EEEL AR 4,035,000 TH =
b AR TE HERE IR -

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H &
EREEEFRIRITERNEM -
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14A. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Variable lease payments

Some building leases contain variable payment terms. It initially
measured using the minimum fixed lease payment at the
commencement date, will be revised based on the valuation result
and actual performance result every year. The Group reassesses the
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities when the lease payments are
revised.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in building leases
across the Group. These terms are used to maximise optional
flexibility in terms of managing contracts.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option. Extension options are only included in the lease
term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was in the process of
obtaining the legal title of land use rights with carrying amount of

approximately RMB4,035,000.

As at 31 December 2019, no right-of-use assets was secured for
bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14B. LEASE PREPAYMENT

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating
lease payments for land located in the PRC, the net book values of

HIREFES TN which are analysed as follows:
BZE+-A=+—RHILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FHEREFE Opening net book value 223,400 223,872
EREEAEEE Transfer to right-of-use assets (Note 14a)

(M¥7E 14a) (223,400) —
g SN Acquisition of a subsidiary — 2,730
0 Additions — 2,905
BHER Amortisation charge — (6,107)
FAEREFE Closing net book value — 223,400

(i)  AKEFAE L ERENH
HEHATTHERS ©

(ii) RZE-—NFF+ZA=+—
H - RFEEBEEHARE
11,066,000 7T #) & # f A3
W) TE HEFE IETE IR AR -

(i) RZT-NF+-A=t+—
B - & A RIRTT
A KA o

(i) All the amortisation of the Group’s land use rights was
charged to administrative expenses.

(i) As at 31 December 2018, the Group was in the process

of obtaining the legal title of land use rights with carrying
amount of approximately RMB11,066,000.

(iii)  As at 31 December 2018, no land use rights was secured for
bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15. TBE - BERREE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BARE
BF REREES RREE REH EEIR @t
Office
Equipment equipment
and Gas and motor
Buildings machinery pipelines vehicles CIp Total

ARRFL  AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARRTR ARETR
RMB'000__ RMB'O00 _ RMB'000 _ RMB'000 _ RMB'000__ RMB'000

R=E-N§-A-H At 1 January 2018

R Cost 402,041 331,924 1,631,814 57,144 358980 2,781,903
ZiiE Accumulated depreciation (54,637)  (105464)  (236,058)  (31,949) —  (428,108)
REFE Net book amount 347,404 226,460 1,395756 25,195 358,980 2,353,795
BZ-Z-N\F Year ended 31 December 2018
TZA=t-HLEE
ENERBE Opening net book amount 347,404 226,460 1,395,756 25,195 358,980 2,353,795
KT AR Acquisition of subsidiaries 6,144 3,703 48,400 2,405 — 60,652
#m Additions 4,183 9,127 3,458 4,968 398,332 420,068
EETREAN ‘ Transfer from CIP 50,194 4331 213,445 163 (268,133) —
EERANREE Transfer to investment
properties (22,985) — — — — (22,985)
HE (H732) Disposals (Note 32) (557) (1,104) — (330) — (1,991)
BREFAT Disposal of subsidiaries - - - (5,929) - (5,929)
HEBA (H8) Depreciation charge (Note 8 (17.548)  (33,088)  (68306)  (5571) — (14513)
FREMFE Closing net book amount 366,835 209,429 1,592,753 20,901 489,179 2,679,097
WZZ-NE+ZA=1—H At 31 December 2018
N Cost 434,142 346,884 1,897,117 55,354 489,179 3,222,676
Z5HE Accumulated depreciation (67,307)  (137,455)  (304,364) (34,453) —  (543579)
RHFE Net book amount 366,835 209,429 1,592,753 20,901 489179 2,679,097
HEZZ-NF Year ended 31 December 2019
T-B=+-HLEFE
ENEAERE Opening net book amount 366,835 209,429 1,592,753 20,901 489,179 2,679,097
b SNGIGIERLY) Acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 35) 5,163 71 26,535 330 — 32,099
&1 Additions 979 9,555 11,730 5,124 273,392 300,780
ERIREA Transfer from CIP 41,707 31,710 440,068 40 (513,525) -
SERANENE Transfer to investment properties (1,388) - - — - (1,388)
& (1 32) Disposals (Note 32) (44) (223) (176) (332) = (775)
BEF R (i 36) Disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 36) — — — — (16,930) (16,930)
FEZH(HES) Depreciation charge (Note 8) (17,477) (32,939) (88,419) (3,990) = (142,825)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 395,775 217,603 1,982,491 22,073 232,116 2,850,058
R=F-NF+=AZT—B At31 December 2019
B Cost 480,462 385469 2,375,274 55,999 232,116 3,529,320
2iHiE Accumulated depreciation (84,687)  (167,866)  (392,783) (33,926) —  (679,262)
REFE Net book amount 395775 217,603 1982491 22073 232,116 2,850,058

\2 16 HEXGARIEBERAT 2019FFEHS
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(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

TEBRAERHARYE
131,340,0007c( == — N\
F: AR #¥112,761,000
TO)TE TSHEMA ] R8N -
M AR 176,000T(=F
— \F: AR #¥376,000
TI)FFAITDEBR]
i % A K #11,309,000
T(ZE—-—NF: AR
11,376,0007T) RIET A [1T
BRER]H -

—NF+=ZA=1—
B - AR¥3,028,0007TH)
¥ AR 13,693,000
TR REEBRIERAR
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&) -

T-NF+ZA=+—
EI EEET BHARME
151,202,000 0( =& — )\
F: A R #160,403,000
T EFREEEE FER
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RZE-—NLFRZEZ
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IRFZRENFTERALT
ERRREHRE  BRIERAR
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HEFER AEEHE
BEREED BRI RK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(@)

(b)

(d)

(e)

Depreciation expense of approximately RMB131,340,000
(2018: RMB112,761,000) has been charged in cost of
sales, RMB176,000 (2018: RMB376,000) in distribution
expenses and RMB11,309,000 (2018: RMB11,376,000) in
administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2019, buildings and pipeline
network amounting to approximately RMB3,028,000
and RMB13,693,000 respectively were secured for other
borrowings approximately to RMB5,000,000 (Note 29) (2018:
Nil).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was in the process
of obtaining the legal title of buildings with carrying
amount of approximately to RMB151,202,000 (2018:
RMB160,403,000).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the CIP mainly
comprised the gas pipelines, LNG and CNG storage stations
being constructed in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
capitalised borrowing costs amounting to RMB29,577,000
(2018: RMB30,962,000) on qualifying assets. Borrowing
costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its
general borrowings at 6.36% (2018: 6.32%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

16. REMFEMHE

(a)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hEF ZE-)N\F
2019 2018
ARMT T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
£ At beginning of the year
AR Cost 68,268 40,547
2iiTE Accumulated depreciation (16,631) (9,720)
EHFE Net book amount 51,637 30,827
R For the year
HREEE Opening net book amount 51,637 30,827
BAEE  BREREEEA Transfer from property, plant and equipment 1,388 22,985
HEER Depreciation charge (2,978) (2,175)
FREMFE Closing net book amount 50,047 51,637
F# At end of the year
AR Cost 69,698 68,268
2iE Accumulated depreciation (19,651) (16,631)
REFE Net book amount 50,047 51,637
FRAREED) Fair value at end of the year (b) 103,118 111,366

THlEEE RN BEPRER

(@)  The following amounts have been recognised in profit or loss:

BE+-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF ZE-)N\F

2019 2018

ARBTT AREEFTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AEWE Rental income 3,271 3,409

izl ON: Direct operating expenses from

WEMEHER properties that generated rental income

ERKEER (2,978) (2,175)

203 1234

RIE-NFER-_E—N\F+_A
=+—H8 AEERRKEERE
EWES R EFEEE -

\2 18 HEXGARRERERAT 2019FFEHS

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairment and maintenance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16.

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

REERIEEEEESTHT ¢ (b)  The Group’s investment properties are analysed as follows:
R_E-—NEFEr-_ZFT—N\F+=HA As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the fair value of investment
—+—H HEUFEHEFNAERKR property is measured using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).
R ERE AN D EBENEZ(ES3
E) -
REERBR AR EE R E L The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
BRANESEHBER  BRAAEBERE fair value hierarchy levels as at of the date of the event or change in
BEEE A o circumstances that caused the transfer.
ZE-NARZE-NFARNFL 2 There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the years of
3[E 2 M AT r e o 2019 and 2018.
1L Valuation techniques
RENEHENGENREELER The valuation of investment properties is determined using the direct
EEE o TR MENEE comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable properties in close
EREZEFH(FINMERERD proximity are adjusted for property’s size and the ageing degree.
FRER)WEEELFE -
HEATAERHARSE The significant unobservable inputs adopted include:
ERIMIGER — ERYENER Recent market price — Based on the actual market selling price of
THERE the properties;
VIFEEE — ERXYENEREE Property’s size — Based on the size of the properties;
EFERAFR — ERYMEENDE The ageing degree — Based on the years of the properties used.
FER -

DREE
it — WAKE Fair value
Description ARETF T B FABRGARE
— Office building RMB’000 Valuation technique Unobservable inputs
W=2-AET=A=+—-8 103,118 BRI R STHRARES,.880- 1041771
At 31 December 2019 Direct comparison approach RMB5,880 - RMB10,417 per square meter
RZE-N\F+-HA=+—H 111,366 ERLEE FFRARE6,202-10,9127T
At 31 December 2018 Direct comparison approach RMB6,202 - RMB10,912 per square meter
MeEBAEFRHARK2978,000 (c) Depreciation expense of approximately RMB2,978,000 (2018:

T(ZE—N\F : AR¥2,175,000
TC)TE [$HERA] s o

RMB2,175,000) has been charged in cost of sales.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

16. REMEME (& 16.

(d) HEEZRH (d)

AEERFARBERBEEHEE

BEFREMFEE - R REN
RIERERNEE - RERE M
F5 . 1~ R] S8 BH A i R R AR T R
EAHMHRETRANKERE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Leasing arrangements

Certain investment properties are leased to tenants under long-
term operating leases with rental payable at regular intervals during
the year based on the payment terms. Minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of investment properties not
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are receivable as

WsREEn T follows:

W+=BA=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within 1 year 2,767 2,813
—FLAHENEBB=F Later than 1 year but no later than 3 years 3,034 3,840
=FE More than 3 years 2,399 3,236
8,200 9,889

(e) R=_T-—hER-Z—NF+=A (e)
=t+—HB BREUEMETEEE
RITIE TR -

\220 PEXARRIERERAT 2019FFEHSE

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, no investment properties were
secured for bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

&F

BE fer EREs a% AEBE @t
Contractual
Operating Computer customer

Goodwill rights software Network  relationships Total

ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'OOO ~ RMB'OOO ~ RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R-Z-\§-A-H At 1 January 2018

R Cost 1,771,954 1,157,642 2,297 319,789 401,910 3,653,592
ZETHH Accumulated amortisation —  (156,905) (1,737) (41,013) (46,299)  (245,954)
e Net book amount 1,771,954 1,000,737 560 278,776 355,611 3,407,638
BE-E-N\§ Year ended 31 December 2018

TZA=t-HLEE

ENERFE Opening net book amount 1,771,954 1,000,737 560 278,776 355,611 3,407,638
- SN Acquisition of subsidiaries 227,496 68,549 4 161,528 — 457,577
0 Additions — 2,085 333 — — 2,418
BHER Amortisation charge — (52,675) (471) (11,147) (16,336) (81,129)
FRERFE Closing net book amount 1,999,450  1,018,6% 426 429,157 338,775 3,786,504

RZZ-NE+=A=+—H At 31 December 2018

AR Cost 1,999,450 1,228,276 2,634 481,317 401910 4,113,587
KEtEE Accumulated amortisation —  (209,580) (2,208) (52,160) (63,135) (327,083
EEFE Net book amount 1,999,450 1,018,696 426 429,157 338,775 3,786,504
BE-Z-NF Year ended 31 December 2019
TZAZ+-HIEE

ENREFE Opening net book amount 1,999,450 1,018,696 426 429,157 338,775 3,786,504
WEEF AR (F13E35) Acquisition of a subsidiary

(Note 35) 87,682 79,547 — — — 167,229
)| Additions — 450 11,016 - - 11,466
BHER (Ts) Amortisation charge = (55,573) (697) (17,121) (16,836) (90,227)
FRERFE Closing net book amount 2,087,132 1,043,120 10,745 412,036 321,939 3,874,972
RZE-A&E+=A=1—H At31 December 2019
A Cost 2,087,132 1,308,273 13,650 481,317 401,910 4,292,282
2t Accumulated amortisation - (265,153) (2,905) (69,281) (79,971) (417,310)
EHFE Net book amount 2,087,132 1,043,120 10,745 412,036 321,939 3,874,972
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17. B EE (& 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(@) #H=Z=—Z=—N&+-_A=+—H1t (a) During the year ended 31 December 2019, amortisation of
FE o HARES87,608,0007T (= approximately RMB87,608,000 (2018: RMB78,084,000)
T—)\F: AR¥78,084,0007T) was included in cost of sales, and RMB2,619,000 (2018:
BBESHTE [SHEMA ] X8 - 4 RMB3,045,000) was included in administration expenses.

AR#2,619,0007T(=F—/\5F :
AR 3,045,000 7T ) B #ESHTE [1T
HEM] 3T -

(b) EERE (b) Impairment for goodwill

ERERE T ARMERERNERN Management reviews the business performance based on subsidiaries
EBRR  UREEMFE - ES and type of business. It has identified Jilin Zhongji, Puyang Tianlun,
K AEER - TES% RO Henan Luyuan, Henan Songxian, Dongkou Senbo, Kaifeng Xi'Na,
wE - FAHEMN BEEPX BEH Caoxian Zhongtian, Shanxian Zhongtian, Gansu Baiyin, Yunnan
FR - HEQR  EZmAE - Datong, Heze Guanghe, Dongming Wanji, Chaozhou Huamao,
B BT - BMNER LR Shantou Chenghai, Tianlun Pipeline, Suzhou Tianlun, Sanming
B RERRER - HINKE - Huiji, Lechang Anshunda, Hunan Zhongyou, Jilin Qian’an, Liquan
ZHEE ZE%EE HEf Hongyuan, Qianxian Hongyuan, Sichuan Mingsheng, Xichuan
o EMEE  BRER  HR Longcheng, Jintang Gas, Mizhi Changxing, Wubu Changxing,
= PYJIBAEE - HT)IIBERK - 2 =M Shijiazhuang Jinming and Xiping Kaida as the subsidiaries which are
RKBERE - RERA - AR subject to the annual impairment testing on goodwill.

SHAMAEFIERTETFERE
RERHNT AR -

it FARERFPBERE AL ERA The above subsidiaries all engaged in distribution and sale of
REXRIHEMMRRE BEERE natural gas, and connection of gas pipelines in the PRC. Goodwill
% o BIREIREE 5 HBEIREER is monitored by management at the operating segment level. The
2 U TASEREELEILNGE following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each CGU:
BAOBRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17. B EE (&= 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(b) FEBREE(E) (b) Impairment for goodwill (continued)
B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HME Jilin location
HMRFH Jilin Zhongji 89,045 89,045
BT Jilin Qian’an 3,089 3,089
HEEE Gansu location
HERAR Gansu Baiyin 86,715 86,715
A A R 1 Henan location
ES XM Puyang Tianlun 6,167 6,167
AR Henan Luyuan 7,663 7,663
pElEaN=T0 Henan Songxian 8,115 8,115
EEDPiER Kaifeng Xi'Na 10,079 10,079
M BERK Xichuan Longcheng 33,533 33,533
TPz Xiping Kaida 87,682 —
AR I g Hunan location
NGImEeSE Dongkou Senbo 7,572 7,572
i Ealaabi: Hunan Zhongyou 20,353 20,353
EmE Yunnan location
EEAB Yunnan Datong 16,778 16,778
LR @, Shandong location
HHHAX Caoxian Zhongtian 11,401 11,401
PN Shanxian Zhongtian 14,222 14,222
SR ES Heze Guanghe 61,656 61,656
RAEH Dongming Wanji 14,967 14,967
ERE Guangdong location
ERINEE IR Chaozhou Huamao 166,070 166,070
MIEEDEH= Shantou Chenghai 65,937 65,937
ItRRmIEELE Beijing Tian Lun Investment Group
KmAREH Tianlun Pipeline 265,503 265,503
RN K Suzhou Tianlun 188,697 188,697
—HHER Sanming Huiji 22,518 22,518
LB 7 )EE Lechang Anshunda 28,063 28,063
il Shaanxi location
BRRR Liquan Hongyuan 90,106 90,106
BBRIR Qianxian Hongyuan 57,978 57,978
RAERE Mizhi Changxing 52,215 52,215
RERHE Wubu Changxing 29,497 29,497
Y116 15, Sichuan location
o)1 BREE Sichuan Mingsheng 249,305 249,305
SEMR Jintang Gas 246,422 246,422
AT i, Hebei location
AXHESH Shijiazhuang Jinming 145,784 145,784
2,087,132 1,999,450
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17.

(b)

BIEE(E

FEERE (E)

REEHETHRIKESREIIRE
EREEFEETE - At EITAFNA
BRI RETRR - KREEEL
ZMOFHMBEAE  EFENE
AT MEEBNFHASBEEDR-
BEZAFHRIN\FHORSR
ERAA TPl A EHg R EE D
P8 BEEMERKEHSEERE
ML e ZIERENEBESEHR
EITMREEXRFNRAFIEER
Ko RRBEEFRR MEEEE
EETHReELETAROESEN
FRBRORSIEAEEBHNER
T REEHETH AU E S IR
TEERKEEHR -

BT RBRILR K RIRE SEMR
TEHERT  URE—RAOEAMm
ReELETNEAFHERER
- REBRRUNBATTRE
REME - AR BBERIER R mE
BEENAMREELETHEE
BEARE - AtEEAFHEER
- REERERUALBATITRE X
HHRE - BREELETHRIKILR
RieREEERARF—RIEET
A EERY
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17.

(b)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment for goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period, while in some circumstances, an eight-year period is
taken into consideration. Cash flows beyond the five-year or eight-
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below until the expiry of the relevant operation periods or operating
rights. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the gas business in which the CGU operates. In the opinion
of the Company'’s directors, the recoverable amounts of the CGUs will
not be lower than the carrying amount even if taking into account a
reasonably possible change in a key assumption on the calculations
of recoverable amounts of the CGUs.

Except for the CGUs belongs to Beijing Tian Lun Investment Group,
the other CGUs belongs to the same geography share approximately
the same compound annual volume growth rate, long term growth
rate and pre-tax discount rate. The CGUs belongs to Beijing Tian Lun
Investment Group share approximately the same compound annual
volume growth rate, long term growth rate and pre-tax discount
rate, as their business models are similar to each other. The CGUs
in Beijing Tian Lun Investment Group and the other CGUs in the
same geography had been grouped together for presentation only,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BREE (& 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
BmERE(Z) (b) Impairment for goodwill (continued)
ZE-NFEREERERRAN The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2019 are
SRR T as follows:
TEXfR
EMEN HEEH THES HEEY ZEEY LREN EREH RERE WEEY MIEH TiEH
Beijing
Tian Lun
Jilin- Gansu  Heman  Hunan  Yunnan Shandong Guangdong Investment  Shaanxi  Sichuan Hebei
Location  Location  Location  Location Location  Location Location ~ Group Location Location Location
HE(FEREY) Sales volume
(% annual
growth rate) 9% 10% 15% 17% 44% 19% 30% 20% 14% 13% 25%
HEE(FERES) Sales price
(% annual
growth rate) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
HpaCER A Other operating costs
(AREFT) (RMB'000) 27,122 13853 24487 9814 10267 15116 14846 23236 22,732 24337 7,556
FERRY Annual capital
(\R®FT) expenditure
(RMB'000) 8650 4050 10686 5662 2794 1257 11040 11317 26216 11930 3326
R (PA%) Gross margin
(% of revenue) 34% 21% 30% 36% 38% 29% 25% 14% 37% 42% 31%
RipERx Long-term growth rate 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
HAKAE Pre-tax discount rate 0% 18% 0%  18%  18%  19%  19%  17%  18%  16%  19%

China Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 225/




B OB M SRR Y RE ()
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R E—NFF A=, —HIFFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17. B EE (& 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(b) FEBREE(E) (b) Impairment for goodwill (continued)
—E - N\FEREEFERRAN The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2018 are
RASR R - as follows:
VNG
thEE UERE ERE WREY Z@EN LREN RREN RARE KERY MIEH THEH
Beijing
Tian Lun

Jiin~ Gansu  Henan  Human  Yunnan Shandong Guangdong Investment ~ Shaamxi  Sichuan Hebei
Location ~ Location  Location ~ Location  Location ~ Location  Location ~ Group  Location  Location  Location

HE(FEREY) Sales volume
(% annual
growth rate) 14% 13% 16% 22% 59% 19% 37% 23% 17% 15% 32%
HER(FERES) Sales price
(% annual
growth rate) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
HpaCER A Other operating costs
(\RBFT) (RMB'000) 23008 12208 18711 10392 8736 12880 13560 20541 2180 26398 8739
FERRY Annual capital
(\R®FT) expenditure
(RMB'000) 9281 3727 10274 3780 2,154 1,181 9277 12478 26423 8920 4800
EHE (RA%) Gross margin
(% of revenue) 33% 28% 30% 33% 46% 34% 23% 15% 40% 40% 32%
RipERx Long-term growth rate 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
HAKAE Pretax discount rate 0% 18%  19%  18%  18% 1% 19%  17%  18%  16%  19%
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17.

(b)
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FEERE (E)
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HERTFH/\FRAHNFIF
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HEEBSIFH/\FRAMFH
FREX - At EEERHABRE

g
=/E °©

Hipg 2 AR E ETHE
TERA - BERATZEEHEE K
EEMAREE - EREREAEF
MEBERTERLERA - TR
IRARIEL AR  BHEREATR
MR S EE AR B Ak AN BB FE G o
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FEARAESERNFAREHR
ERA - W ERXRBEEREEER
BELREENEERER G

=
7t

EHRBENE ATHERERKF R
AR 5\ TR I S 95 R
WAEDE - ERBEBEFKFEE
o

PIRAH R REZREEEE
EETEZERGELETHBN
WIMNEBRZRIE R SAEfET

FRERAEBLIR R ATATLL R - W
PR A R [ 13 PO 45 TE LR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(b) Impairment for goodwill (continued)

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU
within the operating segment.

Sales volume is the average compound annual growth rate which
is based on past performance and management’s expectations of
market development over the five-year or eight-year forecast period.

Sales price is the average annual growth rate over the five-year or
eight-year forecast period, it is estimated to be stable during the
forecast period.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do not
vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management forecasts
these costs based on the current structure of the business, adjusting
for inflationary increases and these do not reflect any future
restructurings or cost saving measures. The amounts disclosed above
are the average operating costs for the five-year or eight-year forecast
period.

Annual capital expenditure is the expected cash costs in the
subsidiaries of each group. This is based on the historical experience
and the long-term assets investment plan of the management.

Gross margin is the average margin as a percentage of revenue over
the five-year or eight-year forecast period. It is based on the current
sales margin levels.

The long-term growth rates are based on management’s best
estimates with consideration of both internal and external factors
relating to the CGUs.

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant locations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18. RERIESNETRT 18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
B

Z~

AEEFA TSR T

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —EF-N\F
2019 2018
ks ARET T ARBET T
SREE Financial assets Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
VABESRRK 2R Financial assets at amortised cost
ATERNSREE
FEUAR T Trade and other receivables
E A FEUGK (exclude prepayments,
TERETERK value-added-tax to be offset,
ERBENR prepaid income tax and
TES RS RLAN other non-financial assets)
EMIESmEE 20 877,627 1,077,788
RENRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 1,349,836 1,075,907
SRR E Restricted cash 24 235,723 278,171
WARBEFERE Financial assets at fair value

""""" BE R AEMER S through other comprehensive

WS mEE income 19 130,348 78,815

’A/‘t{ﬁfﬁﬁiﬂﬁ Financial assets at fair value

ST AR through profit or loss
iﬁ‘ﬂﬁ% 23 — 305,000
2,593,534 2,815,681

cRIAE Financial liabilities
AR ANEHE R B (& Liabilities at amortised cost

FERTBRFR I Trade and other payables

EAbERTR (exclude accrued payroll

TRIEEHES and welfare payables and

RAaFFE A other taxes payables)

FESITIA 28 1,104,642 1,295,446
(EE Borrowings 29 5,192,402 5,418,048
HEAE Lease liabilities 14a 9,666 —

6,306,710 6,713,494

AEE DR T AR S E Rk

OFFRMES - AEEmE SRS F
TAMBNESERRERSBRE
AEEARKRKBAR FEHESR
BEMKREEE -

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the financial
instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each
class of financial assets mentioned above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE—F—NF+-A=1—HIFZE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19. UAREEFEAH 19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

SETTARMES W THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
THNERMEE INCOME
AR EEGTEB LB AEM Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
FElENEREERE include the following:
Rt+=A=+—~H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000

FRBEE
#mTH—JFEm

Non-current assets
Equity instrument — unlisted securities

— MRRATERE () — Gas industry equity interest (i) 79,746 78,815
W+=A=+—H
As at 31 December

—2-nE  —EF)\F

2019 2018

AR¥T ARBTTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RENEE
BERTHE
— MUY (i)

Current assets
Debt instrument
— Notes receivable (ii) 50,602 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19. UAREEFEAH 19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

BEETAHMEEU THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
mNEMEE (&) INCOME (continued)

(i) HUAREEFEBEHSZEF () Equity instrument at fair value through other
AEMGERENERTE comprehensive income
RZE-NF+ZA=+—HEkKZ= As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s total percentage
T-NF=ZA=+—H xEEY shareholding in the investee was 19%.

WIRE T HFILLHI R 19% -

FR PN 52 [ 0 48 M R S0 4 1R B 77 B This investment is classified as financial assets at fair value through
MERFE  WELESEAUR other comprehensive income, rather than as an investment in an
nEEFEAEEFHTALMES associate, because the Group does not have the power to exercise
W= emERE - MIEHHERA significant influence over the investee. Although one representative
MIEE - HAREBEZR—ER has been assigned to the investee as its director of the board,
FIERWIREFNESEKE - K the Group’s determination that it does not exercise a “significant
EERREERRETBMNEAY influence” over the investee has been based on the following factors:

& HEKEBREATHESE

o ARAEEBN VSRR - . The Group does not have a significant influence in respect
WAEE IR B TS RER of the voting power in the policy-making decisions of the
HIREEEERTE investee due to the minority shareholding position;

. NEEBEWIRE T BT 7 . There are no interchange of management personnel or sharing
EEREABBBMEMEE of technical information between the Group and the investee;
HE

o B AZ B A T8 ok Al s HY . There are no potential voting rights that are currently
VETER 2R - exercisable or currently convertible;

. REBE BRI E 77 88t . The access to the financial and operating information of the
BAGEEFEETEEHmKR investee was very restrictive for the Group;

PRI

. AN - AREER BT FEER . In addition, the Group made a few proposals to the board of
WIRETEESREETE the investee in prior years, such as the dividends distribution
& Bl R o ELET B AN E plan and senior management assignment to the investee etc.,
BRETNERERERIK and all of these proposals were vetoed.

F o BLEEBRORER -

AREBEEAHEET AELM Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
FERENeREETAHEESR measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet are
BERAZR AR EEREZ  REFE categorised by level according to the significance of the inputs used
REANEZHRELRDSE - in making the measurements.
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(i)
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BETT AR GRS
BNTHMEE (&)

UAaRBEFEEESE
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(#&)

AEENBRR AN EHEREHL
BRANENAE  BRAAEBEE
MEBHEIEA - REEEADAR
EBEFEAHEZHTARLMEAR
2NEMEENEIBE LA EER
BEEHIEA -

—E-NAFFHZA=+—H &t
TRERENA L EBEHEENE
A BB EHE A A Asset Appraisal
Limited #E1T{H{E - (LA TIZAMETT
ZE  WRERXSEIRXHEBER
B [ ETEEE ] UAREE R kB M
BEATMSLELOAREER EHH
FREFEFRSIEAAABERER
E3E -

REMSER BB HEEU
EERBORXZEEDMB2HH
TRKMEEFEREE - EEKF
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SYEAMEENHERR - BRHE
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AEERZFHEEE -

B Ot R R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19.

()

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Equity instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer. There were no transfers in
or out of Level 3 fair value measurements for financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income during the year.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of unlisted equity
investment are valued by independent professionally qualified
valuation firm Asset Appraisal Limited and calculated by using
the market approach to determine the fair value of the assets by
reference to the transaction prices, or “valuation multiples” implicit
in the transaction prices, of identical or similar assets on the market,
which results in these measurements being classified as Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy.

In applying the market approach, a few valuation multiples are to be
determined by dividing a financial parameter by the transaction price
paid for similar business enterprises, such as historical or prospective
turnover or profit at a given level. Valuation multiples are applied to
the corresponding financial parameter of the subject asset in order
to value it. Adjustments are required to the transaction prices or
valuation multiples to reflect the differentiating characteristics of
the business enterprises and the comparable business enterprises
for which the transaction prices or valuation multiples are known.
The multiples adopted in the valuation are among price/earnings
and price/EBITDA, and the value of unlisted equity investment
was determined by the average of the results calculated using the
different multiples.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
UAREEFERH 19.

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

BHEH AR 2
S BERE (H

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

(i) UUAREEFEBEHE#EF () Equity instrument at fair value through other
AHEMSGERENERZRTIA comprehensive income (continued)
(%)
BREEXT BB A (E3E) Information about fair value measurements using significant
WA AEEEEE unobservable inputs (Level 3)
FABERA TABERARAA
i DAEE fhiER FABEHA (B mEys) EE]ES
Unobservable
inputs
(probability- Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Weighted unobservable
Description Fair value technique inputs average) inputs to fair value
(AR®TT)
(RMB'000)
kLigERE
Unlisted equity investment
—RIE-NE+ZA=t-H 79,746 ik L 14.50 SEHE - A EEES
— As at 31 December 2019 Market approach Price/eamings The higher the ratios,
REZEFTESBANTIZL 9.70 the higher the fair value
Price/EBITDA
—RIE-\FTZA=1-H 78,815 [ [ 13.03 &R AAEESR
— As at 31 December 2018 Market approach Price/eamings The higher the ratios,
REESHAEEHAMELL 9.32 the higher the fair value
Price/EBITDA
(i) UAAREEFEBE®EE (i) Debt investments at fair value through other
AHMEGEWBENERRE comprehensive income
TH

AonBEFEBREZSH AR
FAEKREMNEHRRETABEREK
B - BREEBRASNEFPEWEIR
RN E S - REBRLTR
ANEERERAES R RS - R
WD MRS 48 L Em LR
TR - AEBRARSRENR
FERTBLERERBNORAEE
HRARBERANKAR
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Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
comprise notes receivable. Notes receivable consist of bills received
as payments from customers. Certain subsidies of Group’s turnover
of notes receivable is high and the Group utilises the bills to settle
payables to suppliers or redemption from bank before the bills
mature. The Group measures the fair value of the notes receivable
using the discounted cash flow method, which gives rise to fair
values approximating the cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE2—F—NF+_H="1—HIFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19. UAREEFEAH 19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

SETTARMES W THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
HNEREE (&) INCOME (continued)
(i) STABZMEMEZESUWER (i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other
ot | comprehensive income
REZAREE B A TFEFTAE During the year, the following gains were recognised in profit or loss
mMEAARE W and other comprehensive income:
—E-hF —T-N\F
2019 2018
ARBTR ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ST AHABERE Gains recognised in other
Wz AR FIS comprehensive income (Note 27)
(2RMKIzE27) :
B & 1B RS Related to equity investments 931 17,420

SFAHMBETE — F58  Loss recognised in profit or loss

(Z2RME7) in other losses — net (Note 7)
EERIRE IR Related to debt investments 2,337 —

(iv) MU2an@EA2EHSFAHM  (iv)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Al ENEmEENAARES are denominated in RMB.
(& o
(v) LiiemEELHRE- (v)  None of these financial assets is impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20. FEWARFR R H At AR

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

EN
B+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FEUAR TR — 48%E (a) Trade receivables — gross (a) 303,546 463,367
W R E R Less: provision for impairment (14,391) (9,446)
N EE Bills receivables 3,043 50,949
SELNE Prepayments 597,417 319,461
JE U BE RS 7 5RIE (a) Receivables due from related parties (a)

(fi5%37) (Note 37) 501,875 463,573
HAth EUR Other receivables 169,206 202,751
T RE RS Less: provision for impairment (290) (280)
EEREERR Value-added-tax to be offset and

TR FTS R prepaid income tax 37,366 31,344

1,597,772 1,521,719
W REITERR Less: long-term prepayments (49,648) (59,454)
mENER D Current portion 1,548,124 1,462,265
(a) MRHEE—METEFPHE (@  The credit period generally granted to customers in relation

EMAMER - HRITER
KEBRBER  AEEAERE
ZRUGERFEUR - A BREH
WERT  BEEEBTIER
EPMEERE - LEHR
EERE - —RIBP T
BRAF - UTREEARYE
488,258,000t (= — N\
F: A K %437,559,000
T) R RE R 7T B B 5K0R -
BERRREZBHZ5IK
YRR R B D AT -

to sales of pipelined gases is up to two months. As for the
customers in relation to engineering construction service,
the Group generally requests advance payments, and in
circumstances of credit sales, management closely monitors
the credit quality of the customers, and credit period was
granted case by case with maximum of 2 years. The following
is an ageing analysis of trade receivables and receivables
due from related parties in trade nature amounting to
RMB488,258,000 (2018: RMB437,559,000), presented
based on invoice date at the end of the reporting period:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE—F-NFT_HA=+—HILFE

(CHEENBARETIT(HIFZEHS))

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FEWERF X EfifEY  20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
R(E (continued)
(a) (%) (a) (continued)
R+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—F-hEF —T-N\F
2019 2018
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=+TRUAT Less than 30 days 659,252 780,231
—+t—XEATX 31 days to 90 days 22,683 39,765
ht+—XRE—F 91 days to 1 year 47,986 43,832
—FEEMFE Over 1 year to 2 years 32,433 13,233
RF A E Over 2 years 29,450 23,865
791,804 900,926

I U B 5 e L s R LSk A B
mEAERAEBEELRA—
B o

R L2 B R A EL At MK R B
HMEREEHFSRME
3.1 ° BUERR N H Al fE UL
RANEMERZERED
MEEE -

HHER  HEREARRE
Br bR RS
BfE - AEENFE EAE
AEHER®

I W R R % At P W R 9 PR
EEBENRAREHE -

RZB-NF+=ZA=+—
A AEEREABEHNAAR
# 23,940,000 7T H9 FE U BR
REERIERAEBEERE
BY(ZT—N\F: AR¥
24,933,000 7T 1 JE U7 BE 3¢
1ERERY)) (H3E29) °

(d)

(e)

(f)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

See Note 3.1 for the movement on the provision for
impairment of trade receivables and other receivables. And
the other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2019, the trade receivables with
carrying value of approximately RMB23,940,000 (2018:
RMB24,933,000) were pledged for the Group’s borrowings
(Note 29).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

21. HtFEREEENEE

21. PREPAYMENTS RELATED TO OTHER NON-

FOBERREN CURRENT ASSETS
B+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR®T T AREETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JEATARHEUR BEFRIE (i) Prepayments related to share purchase
agreements (i) 41,788 70,108
REFEEZRXTEN[IN Prepayments related to long-term
assets construction 7,621 62,705
49,409 132,813

(i) RZE—NhF+=A=+—
B B RBEBARE
41,788,000( = & — N\
&F: AR¥ 70,108,000 7T)
EIEEE M RITEEMAL
ENRIRIESR -

(i) As at 31 December 2019, prepayments amounting to
RMB41,788,000 (2018: RMB70,108,000) were related
to the prepayments made for purchasing the equity of other
private companies in gas industry.

4
22. FE 22. INVENTORIES
R+=B=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR®ET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MREERME Materials for gas pipelines 202,042 198,154
SHFEm Consumables 2,907 1,899
204,949 200,053

RZE-NFER-_E—N\F+_A
—+—H REGFEFIRKEXE
o

TFERAERBAEBERZIALT
ABEREANERO/ARY
3,772,782,0007t( = Z — \ £ :
AEK#®3,001,819,0007T) °
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As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, no inventories write-down was
provided.

The cost of inventories recognised as the Group’s expense
and included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
RMB3,772,782,000 (2018: RMB3,001,819,000).
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PN =E: A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

TH
DAREEFEEESEF (@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
ABEHNEMEE
R+=A=+—~H
As at 31 December
—E-hF ZZT-N\F
2019 2018
ARETT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
REBEE Current assets
SEERE () Investment in a trust (i) — 300,000
RITIE I E M (i) Bank financial products (ii) — 5,000
— 305,000

RZE—tF=ZA=+—
B FRELERQF(H
RIEFE)) (IR AW
EEARKE) MWIKE S
B RNEBE B A S FIR
FULzE c M—F—+ 4 A
+H  AERmARER R
ERARIRERRETEE R
#EH—EASTERERE
AR —BEFNETERE
Wi HEReBEAARE
300,000,0007T * #aEHAR
ZF o EARATHAEER
HHERERD - Rt o5E
BREEE -

(i)

On 21 March 2017, the investment in trust with Zhongyuan
Trust Company Limited (“Zhongyuan Trust”), which is
ultimately owned by the People’s Government of Henan
Province, was matured and the respective principal and
dividends were collected by the Group. On 7 April 2017,
Henan Tian Lun Gas and Zhongyuan Trust, entered into a new
trust investment agreement amounting to RMB300,000,000
in relation to the investment in a portfolio of trust financial
products managed and maintained by Zhongyuan Trust for
a term of two years. The investment in trust fund can be
redeemed by the Group at its will, and therefore is classified
as a current asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23. UAREEFERHRE  23.
@Eﬂ*ﬂ\ﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ’gﬁﬁﬂ
B (&

(@) UUAREESEEELSHF ()
AEBENEREE (&)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(&)

ééﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]@fﬂﬁ@%}%ﬁ
RERZIMHRBRLET - I
MAHNERRRE X5
= AR K5 N R SRR

RE% ©

RZT—NFMA - KXEE
RETZERERE BRI
@ A R % 8,984,000 7t ( Hf
F7) -

RITEFEMRUTREEE
FHRITEERER R IEDT
Ao IRITEMEMNAR
BEZEEBRRESRERAT
SNEARZERBEHR
BRI E - AREE
EAREBEERANEIEA
(MH3E3.3) °
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()

(i)

(continued)
The fair value of the investment in trust is measured by the
discounted cash flow model with key assumptions including
expected return rate, counter-parties’ credit risk and market
interest rate.

On April 2019, the investment in trust was disposed by the
Group, with a gain recognised of RMB8,984,000 (Note 7).

Bank financial products are non-derivative financial
products purchase from major listed banks in the PRC with
comparatively lower risk. The fair values of bank financial
products are based on the cash flows discounted using a
rate based on the market interest rate and the risk premium
specific to the investments. The fair values are within level 3
of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE—F—NF+-A=1—HIFZE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23. UAREEFERH 23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

SETABENETR THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
IH(ZE

(b) FABZHNEE (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
REZAREEBATFEETAE During the year, the following gains were recognised in profit or loss:

BE+T-A=1T—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hE —T-N\F
2019 2018
AR%T T AREEFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EiEs A RIEERIIE  Investment gains on cross currency swap — 8,055
SR ERIE Investment gains on investment in a trust 8,984 30,509
RITIBBE RABU A Interest income from bank financial products 433 4,819
(c) ULSREERTLERE - (c)  None of these financial assets is impaired.
24. BERRELSZEEY 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(@) BHERREEEY (a) Cash and cash equivalents
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —T-)\F
2019 2018
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FHERE Cash in hand 54 151
RITIF K Cash at banks 1,349,782 1,075,756
1,349,836 1,075,907
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

24. BERBEEEY 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(& (continued)
(@) BERRESEEW(E) (@) Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
FHB 2 RRITERTIATIEE Cash in hand and at banks are denominated in the following
FHE - currencies:
R+=—HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREE RMB 1,335,466 1,053,652
ETT usbD 22 20,786
B HKD 14,348 1,469
ReENREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,349,836 1,075,907
AN RBEHEN AR IR AINE The conversion of the RMB denominated balances into foreign
N5 A o R B EE ST currencies and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC are
B AT A8 4 O HNE B 6 B AR Bl &2 subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
VAR o promulgated by the PRC government.
(b) ZRHERE (b) Restricted cash
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-hF - N\F
2019 2018
ARET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREE RMB 208,700 233,710
i HKD 27,023 28,454
ETT usD — 16,007
IR IR E Restricted cash 235,723 278,171
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

24. BERBEEEY 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(45 (continued)
SREBEE (Z) (b) Restricted cash (continued)
RZE—-NF+=-_A=+—H" As at 31 December 2019, HKD30,166,000 (approximately
7B #30,166,0007T( 89 & A B RMB27,023,000) are restricted deposits held at bank as
¥ 27,023,00070) (ZZF— N\ F: reserve for serving of debt for loans provided by the bank (2018:
2,332,000k 7t X B ARE USD2,332,000, approximately RMB16,007,000, HKD32,473,000
16,007,000z * /& ¥ 32,473,000 approximately RMB28,454,000); RMB200,000 is restricted
JC %1 B A R 28,454,000 7T ) deposits held at bank for purchasing natural gas from the
BERHRE - FHRRIEITERIR suppliers (2018: RMB3,710,000); and RMB208,500,000 (2018:
TREERNEERE: AR RMB230,000,000) is held as the deposits of notes payable.
200,000 (=& —N\F : AR
3,710,0007T) tE it HEREEE
RKARMEBRIRITHRES A
R #208,500,000( = ZF — )\ F :
A R ¥ 230,000,000) JTiE AR
EREENRES
R ZAS H iR A< 2= F) 25. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
RIBEE ZBER BRI @t
Number of shares  Ordinary shares  Share premium Total
(FH&) AREFT ARBETT AREFT
(thousands) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BRTLAR: Issued and fully paid:
RZZE-NE—-H—H At January 2018 989,615 8,340 1,264,114 1,272,454
“Z-\EEREHSE  Dividends relating to 2018
(Pi3E31) dividend (Note 31) — — (75,963) (75,963)
R-E-N\§ At 31 December 2018
+ZA=+-H 989,615 8,340 1,188,151 1,196,491
“E-NFERENE  Dividends relating to 2019
(Pfi531) dividend (Note 31) — — (211,838) (211,838)
IBEBBRHERT 1T, Issue of shares pursuant to
share option scheme 10,000 90 53,053 53,143
RZE-h§ At 31 December 2019
+-A=+—-H 999,615 8,430 1,029,366 1,037,796

RAARIERRNEECHELER
2,000,000,000 % ( =& — N\ 4 :
2,000,000,000% ) © R HEE B
B0l (ZE—/\F : &KMA
BEHEK0.017T) °

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000
shares (2018: 2,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HKD0.01
per share (2018: HKDO.01 per share).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

26. AR AEBZN 26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

R-ZT—1tF ARAR=REER
BT R - X TN
EERRETERNTE ERT
B #a1 R B et F I E R A
HEENZEE - =02 HERE
ARZF-N\FLATNHE=ZF
—hFLtA+EBEHERTETSE
—H)) ZAE=D2—NBRER
RZF-NAFLATNRE=ZT=
TELATERHEARTETS
—H) - Hfp=o2z— m%&%T
R-Z_ZEFLATNREC

_*ﬁtﬁ+t5%ﬁWﬂ@U%
=8  HRUESNITEGER
EERE - REEREAANDEZT
B - AEET AT RHEER
1% LIREMEESE(T B -

RZZE—NFELA+H8"
—ﬂitﬂ+t5&_f—h¢
NAZRH  ARATTETRHER
10,000,000 17 B Rz 1 - 1THEER
FZ4.97 BT - WRHIR SRR
ABARE44,314,0007T © 1T{Ef#
s - REEE RN A
#70 10,000,000 f% -

\242 PEXARRIERERAT 2019FFEHSE

In 2017, share options were granted to three directors of the
Company. The exercise price of the granted options represents the
highest of the closing price on the date of grant, the average closing
price for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant, and the nominal value of the share. One third of the share
options may be exercised within the period from 18 July 2018 to 17
July 2019 (“tranche 1"); another one third of the share options may
be exercised within the period from 18 July 2019 to 17 July 2020
(“tranche 2"); and the remaining one third of the share options may
be exercised within the period from 18 July 2020 to 17 July 2021
(“tranche 3"). The share options are conditional on the directors’
remaining in the entity’'s employ for a specified period of time. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the options in cash.

On 16 July 2019, 17 July 2019 and 2 September 2019, the
grantees exercised a total number of 10,000,000 share options, the
exercise price was HKD4.97 per share, with a total cash received
approximately RMB44,314,000. Upon the exercise of share options,
the total number of the shares held by the directors of the Group
increased by 10,000,000 shares.




26. AR ABERNHN

(&

m=

RITERHIEE B M AR T

B O SRR (])
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE
(2 FEEABARE T (BIESFHE))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

HITEENZEENT related weighted average exercise price are as follows:
FI91TEE R EAES A
BRAEY Number of
Average exercise share options
price in HKD (F&t)
per share option (thousands)
R-ZT—hE—HF—H At1 January 2019 4.970 15,000
2171 Exercised 4.970 (10,000)
R-E—h#F At 31 December 2019
+=—BA=+—H 4.970 5,000
FHTEE Rfn HARE S B
TRE Number of
Average exercise share options
price in HKD (F&H)
per share option (thousands)
RZZFE—N\F—HA—H At1 January 2018 5.698 22,570
BERR Forfeited 7.142 (7,570)
R-E—NF At 31 December 2018
+=BA=+—H 4.970 15,000

N-E—-hE+-_A=+—H8B &
5,000,000 R1TEHEERRHEH (=
Z— \£F : 15,000,00017) » £
&4 (== — \4F : 5,000,000 1%

AIITHE - REBIE—ZE—NE+-A
=+— B4 /E®10,000,000%
MRAERITE(ZT—\F: &) -

As at 31 December 2019, out of the 5,000,000 outstanding
options (2018: 15,000,000), nil options (2018: 5,000,000) were
exercisable. 10,000,000 of the share options were exercised for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: none).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

26. Uty AEBA AT 26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(&

m=

FRRITEHENBIHBMITEE
e

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following
expiry dates and exercise prices:

e BAMZ BT M2

®¥H 3HA BREY BREHE BREHE BREHE

Exercise price Number of Number of Number of

in HKD per share option share option share options

share option forfeited exercised outstanding

(F31) (F3) (F3)

Grant date Expiry date (thousands) (thousands) (thousands)

“2-MF-A=t+tH “T-\F-A=-t+tH 7.142 7,570 — —

27 January 2014 27 January 2018

“E—+F+tA+/\H “E-NFEATEH 4,970 — 5,000 —
18 July 2017 17 July 2019

“E—tFtATNR “ZTFLATLA 4.970 - 5,000 -
18 July 2017 17 July 2020

S s RVAE! “E-—5tATtH 4.970 — — 5,000
18 July 2017 17 July 2021

5,000

RZZE—tFELA+NART=H
EFMEN AL EAERAZENX G
BEILET HRE—H §6HK
TEEHRN A BERBE0.93
T EREZS §HBRTESH
R ARBEABMELLILT: ¥
REZH §HEBETEFHEND
R EEARBE1.2070 - HZER
BANBEREEANE T HKT
B(SRBEA497 L) EM1THE
B F—H F_HMEZHKH
Z( 5 B £36.21% * 35.67% A
34.17%) * lREW K (1.67%) -
ITHREMBEN(2.8)  BEEE R (5.14%) -
HRE—H F_HLREZHH
BFEERERBFNE(HAAF0.78% -
0.90% F11.03%) ° & &) F JHE
RARESGAREREFTE -

BERXTESNRENESERAN
A AR AITRE9

\244 PEXARRIERERAT 2019FFEHSE

The fair value of options granted on 18 July 2017 to three directors
was determined by using the binomial valuation model. For the
tranche 1, the fair value of options granted to the directors was
HKDO.93 per option; for the tranche 2, the fair value of options
granted to the directors was HKD1.11 per option; for the tranche 3,
the fair value of options granted to the directors was HKD1.20 per
option. The significant inputs into the model were spot share price of
HKD4.97 at the grant date, exercise price shown above, volatilities of
36.21%, 35.67% and 34.17% for tranche 1, tranche 2 and tranche
3, respectively, dividend yield of 1.67%, exercise multiples of 2.8,
forfeiture rate of 5.14%, and an annual risk-free interest rates of
0.78%, 0.90% and 1.03% for tranche 1, tranche 2 and tranche
3, respectively. The volatilities were based on the daily historical
volatility of the Company.

See Note 9 for the total expenses recognised in profit or loss for
share options granted to directors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27. RENEFWRE 27. RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(@) f#& (@) Reserves
NAREETE
BHSHFA
Hitira Rz
EXGRE EERE SREE @t
Financial
assets at fair
value through
other
Capital Statutory  comprehensive
reserves reserves income Total
ARETFT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
RZZE-NE—-H—H AtlJanuary 2018 (56,077) 195,185 14,418 153,526
B —@%E(M15E19)  Revaluation-gross (Note 19) — — 17,420 17,420
Bff — BB (PI7E30)  Revaluation-tax (Note 30) — — (4,355) (4,355)
BB Appropriation (i) — 150,070 — 150,070
Wi D B R AR Acquisition of additional
interests of subsidiaries (39,563) — — (39,563)
B IR E Employee share option scheme:
—BIRB0EE — Value of employee services 4,834 — — 4,834
RZZ-N\§ At 31 December 2018
+ZA=+-H (90,806) 345,255 27,483 281,932
RZZE-NE—-HA—H At1January 2019 (90,806) 345,255 27,483 281,932
B — @ (M 19)  Revaluation-gross (Note 19) — = 931 931
Eft —HB (f13530)  Revaluation-tax (Note 30) — — (233) (233)
SEEGIMRRERBHE  Waives liabilities from
non-controlling
interests 12,260 — — 12,260
B ) Appropriation (i) = 162,166 = 162,166
BIBRETE Employee share option scheme:
—BIRBMER — Value of employee services 6,303 — — 6,303
— RBERE — Issue of shares pursuant to
BEEGLU share option scheme (8,829) = = (8,829)
R-Z-NF At 31 December 2019
+=-RA=+-H (81,072) 507,421 28,181 454,530
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27. mENBEFEKRE(E) 27.

(@) f##E(#E) (a)
(i) AT (i)

KR BEARRERER MARER
BRI T B A F A B ([
BFom ) wESERARNR
E o REFRARAEREBEFE
EER > NRBEANASRTEE
AHERIBEE M FRATEALN 10% B
EERERBAES c ERETF AT
HEE BB AE R MREEDEME
K50% 8 - RRAIMBEREREHE
— R

EEBBAESARARNRHBES
EER(NE) - TReEBIERRR
R R B IR LL 1 R BB R 31T
AL - MEEITRATRIEERBRA
BB NDNEMELRN 25% -

BE_ZT-hF+_-_A=+—H
EE - ETHEF QR AL
FEERBABEEANARE
162,166,0007T( —F—/\F : A
[R# 150,070,000 7T) °
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RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(continued)

Reserves (continued)

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
Articles of Association of the companies incorporated in the PRC
now comprising the Group (the “PRC Subsidiaries”), it is required
to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profits of the PRC
Subsidiaries, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined
under the PRC accounting standards, to the statutory surplus
reserves fund before distributing the net profit. When the balance
of the statutory surplus reserves fund reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries, any further appropriation is at the
discretion of shareholders.

The statutory surplus reserves fund can be used to offset prior years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholding,
provided that the remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserves
fund after such issue is not less than 25% of registered capital.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, approximately
RMB162,166,000 (2018: RMB150,070,000) were appropriated to
the statutory surplus reserves funds from net profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27. REMEFWRE (& 27. RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(continued)
(b) BEFWH (b)  Retained earnings
AREF T
RMB’'000
R-—E—N\F—H—H At 1 January 2018 1,352,373
FEENARTMEENFE Profit attributable to owners of the Company 569,142
B Appropriation (150,070)
R-ZE-—NF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2018 1,771,445
R-ZE—NnF—H—H At 1 January 2019 1,771,445
FBNARRIFEENFNE Profit attributable to owners of the Company 789,179
B Appropriation (162,166)
R=—ZZ—NE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2019 2,398,458
(c) Ht&Zmesas  MNRHIE (c) Other comprehensive income, net of tax
HittiR&
Hith ks Wk sE
Total other
comprehensive
Other reserves income
AREEF T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BE-Z—N&§ Year ended 31 December 2019
+=A=+—H
IHEE
UAREENER Change in value of financial assets at
HEE R AEM fair value through other comprehensive
LAEBENER income, net of tax
BEEMNEES
HIBRBLIR 698 698
Hihim & W 828 Total other comprehensive income 698 698
BE-ZE—N\&§ Year ended 31 December 2018
+=A=+—H
IHEE
NAnBESER Change in value of financial assets at
HEsat AE At fair value through other comprehensive
REBZHNE R income, net of tax
BERNERBEE -
BRI 13,065 13,065
Hiirm e WS 4258 Total other comprehensive income 13,065 13,065
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28. B ERRRHEMEN 28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

EN
B+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FE{FBRERN (a Kb) Trade payables (a and b) 320,601 241,930
EANESE Notes payables 423,800 430,000
FE 1~ RS 75 5K IE (a) Amounts due to related parties (a) (Note 37)

(M¥E37) 29,182 41,175
st E© REF Accrued payroll and welfare 3,661 2,197
FERTHE Interest payables 15,009 16,708
E b pEFR 1A Other taxes payables 93,821 83,725
B E Contingent consideration payables 138,128 339,680
E AR ER (a) Other payables (a) 177,922 225,953

1,202,124 1,381,368
B SERENER D H A Less: non-current portion of other payables

JER RN EETE R (d)  and accruals (d) — (136,598)
mENE D Current portion 1,202,124 1,244,770
(@) RZE—NF+—A=+— (@)  As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all such trade payables

AER=_ZE—NF+=A and the current portion of other payables of the Group were
=+—8  KREELER non-interest bearing and their fair values approximated to
AR R B Eh BB 49 B fh FE AT 3R their carrying amounts due to their short maturities.

BR%eE  ARERE  H
AR EEEFE@EERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28. ENERA R HMENS 28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

=, =
% (4
(b) RZE-NF+ZA=*+— (b) At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the ageing analysis of the
AR=—Z—NF+=A trade payables, based on invoice date was as follows:
=+—8  EAEZRER
ZAEMERER T -
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=FRKUT Less than 30 days 189,361 159,811
e BN 31 days to 90 days
N+x 46,415 37,300
N+—XKE—%F 91 daysto 1 year 45,596 12,825
—FEWF 1 year to 2 years 18,062 6,737
WEE=F 2 years to 3 years 5,483 7,687
=FUE Over 3 years 15,684 17,570
320,601 241,930
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28. B ERRRHEMEN 28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

R (E

©) AKENEMNERLEMRE
NRNREEEBEDATINE

(c)

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade and other payables
were denominated in the following currencies:

WEHE
R+t=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—B2-hE  —F)\F
2019 2018
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR B RMB 1,185,568 1,361,975
ETT usbD 7,482 12,944
Pt HKD 9,074 6,449
1,202,124 1,381,368

d RZZB-NF+-A=+—
B EfEMNREETER
FIERB IO BREE/A
R#124,406,000 LRIA A
REEFENENHALE
o ARAF AR RS
BEEANRBER &8
A AR #12,192,1867T
FMER10% - BHIEREE
BEEAABERT — -3k
BYHERNRERFRARZE
22 ] 1 2 O 15 K5 PARE IR
EARTE - BRAAEBERR
MEE3E -
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(d)

At 31 December 2018, the non-current portion of other
payables included contingent consideration payables
amounted to RMB124,406,000 which were at fair value
and long-term loan due to a non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary amounted to RMB12,192,186 with an interest
rate of 10% per annum, of which the fair value approximated
to the carrying amount. The fair values of the contingent
consideration payables and amount due to the non-controlling
interest were measured by the discounted cash flow method
and included in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.




29. B

B Ot R R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29. BORROWINGS

®+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—NE —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FERE Non-current
RITIEK Bank borrowings
— B (a) — pledged (a) 484,000 546,500
— BHER () — guaranteed (b) 2,445,340 2,050,258
— BHEHIIER (c) — pledged and guaranteed (c) 806,040 933,270
PRERAE X (d) Borrowings from a shareholder (d) 139,524 274,528
EHER (e) Other borrowings (e) 5,130 5,269
IERENE TR ER Total non-current borrowings 3,880,034 3,809,825
B Current
RITER Bank borrowings
— B (a) — pledged (a) 62,500 87,600
— BHER(b) — guaranteed (b) 479,848 718,036
— BEFIIELR () — pledged and guaranteed (c) 530,231 469,930
— EAER — unsecured 95,039 195,179
IR A& (d) Borrowings from a shareholder (d) 139,524 137,264
HAbEFK (e) Other borrowings (e) 5,226 214
MBS AREE Total current borrowings 1,312,368 1,608,223
fEFR Mt Total borrowings 5,192,402 5,418,048

@ R-FT-NF+-A=t—
B RERIFRBIRITHER
mASENE QR LR
FoA R i R e R R B
RESER(R_F—N\F
TZA=t—HAaAEEN
BRRFFEXRR - LEXR
KRR ik R R R B
RIEREM) -

b)) RZE-—IAFRZZT-NF
+=—A=+—H " KBKIE
MENRITERA AR BIRE
2 RBEREURKEE
B TR mEESR
NEER o

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2019, the current and non-current
bank borrowings were secured by the gas charging rights of
Shangjie Tianlun and Henan Tian Lun Gas (31 December
2018: secured by the gas charging rights of Xuchang Tianlun,
Shangjie Tianlun and Henan Tian Lun Gas).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the current and non-
current bank borrowings were guaranteed by the related
parties of the Group, which were Henan Tian Lun Real Estate
Limited and Mr. Zhang Yingcen (one of the shareholders of
the Company).
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE
(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29. & (&

(c)

RZE-NF+ZA=7F—
H - mERIETBIRITER
HIESE &AM BRI &K
- K&K - BAH K
NEXRH - BEAH - BUE
R~ KR EM - =8
ZE -HMKRM FEX
fi ~ O)I|BAEE ~ KAg R -
REBRERARE AR
R BE KfaMRES
MeERAEEENAR
# 23,940,000 T &) & Uk BR
M eEME - KiERE -
RERERART AR
RS IERIEIR - WHARS
BT E A mEES
FRAE] -~ RS EAE - R
B+ (GRRSLEERA)IR
MR -

RZE-NF+-A=t—
B REMIERBIRITER
HEEZF A BRHE A
o RRARH, - BAKM
AR - BEAM - ZE
Rith - RfgiRE® - =5
R HMNXfR FFEXRR
Ko P9 )11 B 2B e KA SR B HE
KRR EBNE ERRIR
[E (B #) A R ¥ 24,933,000
TER MRS - & EMRIK
RIEMIFREM - WAAK
BB AR X R ER
[RAA] -~ FBRS L - R
RELL (RBEERERA)
AR BB ENRIRREFF
G FEMBBL LR
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29. BORROWINGS (continued)

(c)

As at 31 December 2019, the current and non-current
bank borrowings were secured by the gas charging rights of
Zhenlai County Dadi, Tongyu County Dadi, Da’an Dadi, Panshi
Dadi, Jiutai Dadi, Baicheng Dadi, Dunhua Dadi, Tianlun
Pipeline, Sanming Huiji, Suzhou Tianlun, Xuchang Tianlun,
Sichuan Mingsheng, Mizhi Changxing, Wubu Changxing and
Shijiazhuang Jinming, trade receivables with carrying value
of approximately RMB23,940,000 of Tianlun Pipeline and
Jintang Gas, equity shares of Jintang Gas, Mizhi Changxing,
Wubu Changxing and Shijiazhuang Jinming, and guaranteed
by the related parties of the Group, which were Henan Tian
Lun Real Estate Limited, Mr. Zhang Yingcen and Ms. Sun
Yanxi (a family member of Mr. Zhang Yingcen).

As at 31 December 2018, the current and non-current bank
borrowings were secured by the gas charging rights of Zhenlai
County Dadi, Tongyu County Dadi, Da’an Dadi, Panshi Dadi,
Jiutai Dadi, Baicheng Dadi, Dunhua Dadi, Tianlun Pipeline,
Sanming Huiji, Suzhou Tianlun, Xuchang Tianlun and
Sichuan Mingsheng, trade receivables with carrying value
of approximately RMB24,933,000 of Tianlun Pipeline and
Jintang Gas, equity shares of Jintang Gas, and guaranteed
by the related parties of the Group, which were Henan Tian
Lun Real Estate Limited, Mr. Zhang Yingcen and Ms. Sun
Yanxi (a family member of Mr. Zhang Yingcen), the former
shareholders of Henan Huiji, Mr. Li Zifeng and Ms. Gao Hui.




Ft;r)\(n/\)

(d)

(e)

—LE+ A
+—8  AEHEHRK
®2Z—lInternational
Finance Corporationf&
40,000,000%7T * “WAEA
R# 279,048,000t (==&
— \%F: 60,000,000%F T -
HR/AR¥EA411,792,000
J0)  ASRBBSAEURE
MEREER BIRHEIEIR o

I

—NEF+ZA=1t—
B ZEBERPTARE
5,356,0007T( = & — A
F: AK%H5,483,0007T)
RAAEER-_TT=FAr%K
HUA R ERFE MM TR E
BRI E T AR
FER: BFERARE
5,000,000 JT f1 78 ¥ Sl E +5
BRI ERE - BT KM
REBIERER(HRELD)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

(d)

(e)

As at 31 December 2019, borrowings of USD40,000,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB279,048,000
(2018: USD60,000,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB411,792,000) were from International Finance
Corporation, one of the Company’s shareholders, which was
guaranteed by Mr. Zhang Yingcen and two of his family
members.

As at 31 December 2019, such borrowings represent
borrowing of RMB5,356,000 (2018: RMB5,483,000)
from local government assumed by the Group to acquire
the exclusive operating rights for city pipeline network in
Xuchang City of Henan Province in 2003. Borrowings of
RMB5,000,000 from local government which were secured
by gas charging right, buildings and gas pipeline of Xiping
Kaida (Note 15).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29. B (=& 29. BORROWINGS (continued)
() REREIR - NEBERK (f)  The maturities of the Group’s borrowings at respective end of
MEEIRWOT - reporting period are set out as follows:
R+=BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-h#F —F-N\F
2019 2018
AR¥T T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
— —FR — Within 1 year 1,312,368 1,608,223
— —FEMF  — Between 1 and 2 years 1,816,252 1,454,354
— MEERF — Between 2 and 5 years 1,873,157 2,026,150
— AFLE — Over b years 190,625 329,321
5,192,402 5,418,048
(8 AKBEERNEAEENLT (g The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
HEE BB - denominated in the following currencies:
B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR RMB 2,179,809 2,681,479
FEIT usbD 284,404 923,711
ot HKD 2,728,189 1,812,858
5,192,402 5,418,048
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(h)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

. fER(E) 29. BORROWINGS (continued)
EMBERHNEMEBARR (h)  The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current
AEEEAT : borrowings are as follows:

B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
=F-NEF —TN\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
REEE Carrying amounts 3,880,034 3,809,825
NAEE Fair value 3,895,554 3,825,064
BRARITIRFZETEA AR The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximated

(i)

5 BULRENE A ERE(E
BERAEAREEBEHEE -

FERBERNRAEETIZ
ﬁﬁfﬁiﬁém;i J/KZJS%.
A EASHERFR S B A B )
W& B T RMRITH SN X
fhat R=F—NF+=A
=+t —R%HMEK582%

— )\ :5.86%) * I
ERAREBEERNFEIEA -

KEBARK - ETRBY
AN S |RE RO ERRF
TR ¢

(i)

their fair value due to short maturities, as the impact of
discounting was not significant.

The fair value of non-current borrowings are estimated
based on discounted cash flow approach using the
prevailing market rates of interest available to the Group
for financial instruments with substantially the same terms
and characteristics, which was 5.82% as at 31 December
2019 (2018: 5.86%) and is within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings
denominated in RMB, USD and HKD at the end of each
reporting date are set out as follows:

R+=—HA=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-hEF —F—N\F
2019 2018
AR RMB 4.35%~6.00% 4.35%~6.00%
ETT uUsD 6.04%~6.36% 6.00%~6.32%
poted HKD 4.69%~5.11% 4.51%~5.31%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30. EEFTBH

(a)

30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

BRLEAMSHEERBEND (@) The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as
HranT follows:
B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
IRILATSFIEE Deferred tax assets
—12fE A% — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
el HIR T after more than 12 months
HIEEE 21,782 27,739
—12@AMA — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
O RIE within 12 months
HIEEE 6,896 5,953
28,678 33,692
RIEPASTLAE  Deferred tax liabilities
—12ME8 A% — Deferred tax liability to be recovered
O HYIRIT after more than 12 months
FrigtiaE (528,870) (461,702)
—12EARA — Deferred tax liability to be recovered
88 (0] fIR AT within 12 months
HMIERE (17,683) (13,309)
(546,553) (475,011)
EEFTBHR Deferred tax liabilities — net
8&CFE) (517,875) (441,319)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30. ELEMEH (& 30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
(@) (&) (@)  (continued)
BELEAMSHERE NAZEE The gross movements on the deferred income tax account are
IR ¢ as follows:

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

“E-hE —E-)N\F

2019 2018

AR¥TT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

w—A—8 At 1 January (441,319) (392,450)
G SN Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 35)

(Pft3E 35) (14,771) (41,705)
= a/NE] Disposal of subsidiary — (165)
HHMLREWe:  Tax charge relating to other comprehensive

#E BHIE income (Note 12)

(Mzx12) (233) (4,355)
RIERENRLE Charged to profit or loss (Note 12)

(MfsE12) (61,552) (2,644)
Bt+ZHA=1—H At 31 December (517,875) (441,319)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30. IELEFTBH (& 30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
(b) FRECHESHREEMERE (b)  The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
VEBIIAT during the year are as follows:
EEFMBREE Deferred tax assets

EERERE EHER REsE ik Ef v 3t

Provision for

impairment Accrued
of assets expenses Tax losses  Depreciation Other Offsetting Total

ARBTRL  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZE—\E—F—H Asat 1 January 2018 978 946 23,719 1,029 759 - 27431
SN Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 14,696 — - - 14,696
RETAA Disposal of subsidiary - - (165) — - - (165)
PNERAAE/  Credited/(charged)

(%) to profit or loss 1,445 109 (8,176) - 408 (2,056) (8,270)

RZE-\F As at 31 December 2018
ZA=1-H 2423 1,055 30,074 1,029 1,167 (2,056) 33,692

+2A
RZZ-NE At 1 January 2019
A-H

o 2,423 1,055 30,074 1,029 1,167 (2,056) 33,692
WiEE TR (F15£35)  Acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 35) - - 6,784 - - - 6,784
WEEMIE/  Credited(charged)
(i5) to profit or loss 1,543 (485) 42 (51) 1,128 (13,975) (11,798)
RZE3-NE As at 31 December 2019
T-A=1-H 3,966 570 36,900 978 2,295 (16,031) 28,678
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30. IEIEMBH (& 30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

(b) FRELEHEHEEMARE (b)
VEBINT ()

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows: (continued)

EEFRBHAaE Deferred tax liabilities
NRAEE

FRAE  ERERR

2B ALf Rk

$Refl  GouEN  AERAGE
MEEEE SRHEEEH  NENEE e iy h

Revaluation ~ Withholding

of financial ~ tax relating to

Fair value assets at  dividends to be

adjustments fairvalue  distributed/

relatedto  through other interests eared

busingss  comprehensive  from the PRC
combinations income  subsidiaries  Depreciation Offsetting Total
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE5-\E-A-H As at 1 January 2018 411,193 4,807 3,881 - - 419,881
WEF AT Acquisition of subsidiaries 56,401 - - — - 56,401
AEMEARERZE  Charged to other comprehensive income - 4,355 - - - 4,355
RNEEA(AB) /2B (Credited)icharged to profit or loss (19,699) - 5,953 10,176 (2,056) (5,626)

RIE-N\E As at 31 December 2018
TZAZ1+-A 447895 9,162 9,834 10,176 (2,056) 475,011
RZF-NE-A-H At 1 January 2019 447,895 9,162 9,834 10,176 (2,056) 475,011
Y728 (3 35) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 35) 21,555 — - - - 21,555
AEMEARETRTE  Charged to other comprehensive income = 233 = = = 233
RNEER(AB) /2B (Credited)icharged to profit or loss (8,555) - 4,072 68,212 (13,975) 49,754
RIZ-NF As at 31 December 2019

TZAZ1+-A 460,895 9,395 13,906 78,388 (16,031) 546,553
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE
(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30. EEFEB (&)

(b)

(c)

FREEAEBARNA &
WREINT ()

—hE+-A=+—
H A&EEBRp—L£FAQ
RlZARTHERNMmE
B an TE AN BT S| B R
EFEBHEBERENARE
149,341,0000( =& — N\
F: AR¥ 112,646,000
TT)ERER - 25258
B KERRBIRE - ©
—hE+—_A=+—
B RTHERNEFH
B AR 2,986,819,000
T(ZZE—NF: AR
2,252,915,0007T) » A%
E&ET R AR AR A
Eﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬁﬂi%"@ﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ
BERBERA

REBBKRBEROELEMN
BREENABARY
17,385,0007c(=F— N\
F: AR¥ 16,056,000
JT) ¢ T FE Y A] A4S DA
OB R R FE R B & B S
BAARM 662,992,000
T(ZE—N\F: AR
508,725,0007T) ° KHER
WFIEESIBER T EEE
HA:

30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

(b)

(c)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows: (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately RMB149,341,000 (2018: RMB112,646,000)
had not been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
Such amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted
earnings totalled approximately RMB2,986,819,000 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: RMB2,252,915,000). The Group
does not intend to remit these unremitted earnings from the
relevant subsidiaries to the Hong Kong holding entity in the
foreseeable future.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB17,385,000 (2018: RMB16,056,000)
in respect of losses amounting to approximately
RMB662,992,000 (2018: RMB508,725,000) that can
be carried forward against future taxable income. The
unrecognised tax losses will expire in the following years:

=t SR T )\F

2019 2018

AR¥T ARBTIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

2022 2022 2,121 2,121
2023 2023 2,495 3,005
2024 2024 23 —
ER|HIH No expiry date 658,353 503,599
662,992 508,725
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31.

B Ot R R R ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

IR E 31.

RZZE-NFERN MRERES
AR#¥211,838,000T(=F—/\
F: AR¥75,963,0007T) °

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

DIVIDENDS

The dividend paid in 2019 was RMB211,838,000 (2018:
RMB75,963,000).

—E—hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR®T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EBACRT 2018 4EZ  Final dividend for the year ended
RER BB 31 December 2018 of RMB10.00
AR#10.00 % cents per share (2017: RMB2.30
TE—F cents per share) paid to ordinary shares
HRARKE2.30%) 98,310 22,885
TRARNT 20194FE  Interim dividend for the year ended
FHRRR B SRR 31 December 2019 of RMB11.42
AREE11.425 cents per share (2018: RMB5.36
(Z2—NF: cents per share) paid to ordinary shares
AR 5.36%) 113,528 53,078
211,838 75,963

BE-_Z-_TF-ZA=+—HMHNE

R ARREFEZRIRER
E_E-NF+-_A=+—HIt%FE
ERBKREFRARK12.005
@5 AR# 119,954,000 (==
—N\F: GRARK10.005 * £
% AR#98,310,0007T) » R
RERLEAE -

Pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 31 March
2020, the directors of the Company proposed to distribute total
final dividend of RMB119,954,000 (RMB12.00 cents per share)
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB98,310,000,
RMB10.00 cents per share), which was not recognised as a liability
at year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(£EEEBARE T (IS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32. REEEMRS
(a) MERAESHANBBELRE ()

EELNERE

32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash
generated from operations

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hEF —T—\F
2019 2018
ARET T AREETT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BRETS R RIFE Profit before income tax 1,127,380 864,804
FHEIEE - Adjustments for:
— TBE - HE — Depreciation of property,
AR plant and equipment and
WEMEHE investment properties
e (Notes 15,16) 145,803 126,688
(ff5E15,16)
—\EEEREE — Amortisation of intangible assets
SEKNEEOIEE s and lease prepayments
(Mi5E14b,17) (Notes 14b,17) 90,227 87,236
— FRAREENE — Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(FfizE 14a) (Note 14a) 9,266 —
— BIFUES (Mi5E 10)  — Finance income (Note 10) (25,311) (80,410)
— B &M (3£ 10) — Finance expenses (Note 10) 288,018 258,971
— EHB%(M7E7)  — Exchange losses (Note 7) 61,724 142,520
— BREB DR — Loss from fair value change of
BEZEIEL notes receivable (Note 7)
(Fe7E7) 2,337 —
— FE(EEEE & — Share of post-tax losses of
A ERNAITE associates and a joint venture
EEMHEE 42,317 44,940
— BETHE - — Gains disposal of property, plant
RS Fe s Y and equipment (b)
F15 (b) (377) (47)
— RETRAENTF — Net losses/(gains) on disposal of a
Bk, (W) subsidiary (Note 36)
(KizE36) 10,718 (2,984)
— HBHELR — Changes in fair value of contingent
EEE consideration (Note 7)
(ME7) (54,303) —
1,697,799 1,441,718
EBEESEE) Changes in working capital:
—FE — Inventories (2,416) (150,449)
— ZRHRS — Restricted cash 3,510 (29,020)
— BUERF R — Trade and other receivables
H Uk (412,535) (993,965)
— ERERR R — Trade and other payables
H A EATR 105,154 546,283
—&R&aE — Contract liabilities 72,042 78,785
(234,245) (548,366)
KEEENES Cash generated from operations 1,463,554 893,352
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(b)

(c)

2. REELWNBE (E)

RETEE - BB MK

/8 £H

1=FK

HAzxﬁﬁiaiiuw§E§§qu EEE§7T§b

B O R R M ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Bz T NF+-HA=1+—HIFE

(LBHE L BARETIT (IS FH))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EFT (b)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal

B MEMEEMSHRIERE of property, plant and equipment comprise:
BEt+t-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hEF = — )\
2019 2018
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRMEFE (MIFE15) Net book amount (Note 15) 775 1,991
J‘EET@JF 5 K Gains on disposal of property, plant
RENFIE (FFE7) and equipment (Note 7) 377 47
BETEE - KEK Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
RAEFTSFIE and equipment 1,152 2,038
B BREAES (c) Net debt reconciliation
ARESE G| S EERS N R R This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in
FEH DTS o net debt for each of the periods presented.
BE+-A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hE —E=-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T AREETTT
B FEE Net debt RMB’000 RMB'000
HeRBeEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,349,836 1,075,907
MBI E (1) Liquid investments (i) — 305,000
&3k — BfE— flzﬁ\ﬂai& Borrowings — repayable within one year (1,312,368) (1,608,223)
B — JBE—F1& 18] Borrowings — repayable after one year (3,880,034) (3,809,825)
&R F 5 Net debt (3,842,566) (4,037,141)
He RREtEisE Cash and liquid investment 1,349,836 1,380,907
BEWR — BEF=E Gross debt — fixed interest rates (408,395) (500,663)
BEW — FBFE Gross debt — variable interest rates (4,784,007) (4,917,385)
B 75 Net debt (3,842,566) (4,037,141)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32. REEENRE (& 32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)
(c) MEXRFHEAEGHE) (c) Net debt reconciliation (continued)
HthEE REEBNAR
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
Bk Bt —FREH —FRIE
REZEY RRE() HER HiER HEEE @t
Borrowings Borrowings
Cash and cash Liquid due within due after Leases
equivalents  investments (i) 1 year 1 year liability Total

ARBTL  ARMTE  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R=B-7\F Net debt as at
-B-REEEE 1 January 2018 678,237 300,000 (968,747) (2,898,385) — (2,888,895)
Reng Cash flows 420,068 5,000 (626,210) (804,584) — (1,005,726)
ERAR Foreign exchange
adjustments (22,398) — (13,266) (106,856) — (142,520)
R=B-NF Net debt as at
TZA=T-REHZE 31 December 2018 1,075,907 305,000 (1,608,223) (3,809,825) — (4,037,141)
ReEREHRS Recognised on adoption
ERIE 165 of HKFRS 16
(z2.2.1) (Note 2.2.1) — — — - (6,362) (6,362)
Bahg Cash flows 270,884 (305,000) 339,664 (44,337) 1,677 262,388
EHATEM(HEI5)  Increase from business
Combination
(Note 35) — — (5,000) — — (5,000)
EAg Acquisition leases — — — — (4,981) (4,981)
ERHEE Foreign exchange
adjustments 3,045 — (8,809) (55,872) — (61,636)
RZZ-nE Net debt as at
TZA=1-AEKFE 31 December 2019 1,349,836 — (1,282,368) (3,910,034) (9,666)  (3,852,232)
(i) RBMRER/DBEZR AR (i) Liquid investments are the investment in trust and bank
REEFTEAEEFHFT AR financial products that are classified as “financial assets at
EMEMEE] MNEERE fair value through profit or loss”, which can be redeemed by
MBTEVER  EFER the Group when necessary.

AR ASEED -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-F-NF+-A=1—AUFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

33. BEHE 33. CONTINGENCIES
RZE-NFRZZE-NF+HA As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not have any
—t+—H AKEEEKRLEE material contingent liabilities.
34. &g 34. COMMITMENTS
(@) EXREH (a) Capital commitments
REBEERDFTHERBEZER Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of each reporting
FZT period, but not yet incurred is as follows:
R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-NnEF —E-NF
2019 2018
ARMT T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HELSNFEARMRE Capital investment to a joint venture 3,600,000 3,600,000
1% e i i T (B Share purchase consideration commitment 280,000 123,680
HEE AR EAMRE  Capital investment to associate 100,000 100,000
THE - BE&EE Property, plant and equipment 15,450 16,170
3,995,450 3,839,850
(b) REEBREAE (b) Licensing fee commitments
®+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
THBE—F Not later than one year 1,100 1,100
HBB—FETHEBAFE Later than one year and no later than five years 4,400 4,400
BB hE Later than five years 8,800 9,900
14,300 15,400
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. EBEHf 35. BUSINESS COMBINATION

RZZ-NF-A=t—8 £&
B AT EE100% A HE - iz
AAEDBEEMAZHBLE=
FEREERR ATHETR
A RS EMATEEERA
REBRENER  UWRRARD
HRHERK - BEBOR/ARE
152,000,000 7T °

A IR - R R AR A
HITIBIRA « WIS K AR
87,682,000 THI P& - BHRENE
NEES T et L T
RIFIRALY  BARERMR
BEGEEDRRNE  RTELE
IR TR EL T AR ) BB (B 38 DA
TR B3 06 B T S A 0 S T
R - B BT A0 B
g% -

TREENUE B RHRE 2 RER
KERE  FFREBEELAAER
B2 RAREE - DA

N2
S o

Bl

On 31 January 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the equity
interests of Xiping Kaida, an independent third party established in
the PRC with limited liability, which is principally engaged in natural
gas pipeline investment and construction, distribution and sales of
natural gas in Xiping County, Zhumadian City, Henan Province. The
total consideration was approximately RMB152,000,000.

As a result of the above mentioned acquisition, the Group is
expected to increase its presence in these markets. The goodwill
of approximately RMB87,682,000 arising from the acquisition
is attributable to the pre-existing and well positioned business
operating in competitive markets, operating synergies with other
existed operations of the Group, the expansion to and the strategic
advantages of the upper stream of the industry, and economies of
scale expected to be derived from combining the operations. None of
the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The following table summarises the consideration paid and
contingent consideration for the acquisition, the fair value of assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and the non-controlling interests at the
respective acquisition date.

FFEE
R=Z—NF
—A=t+—8H
Xiping Kaida
as at

31 Jan 2019
ARBT T
RMB’000

HE Consideration
— Cash paid

—EffRE
—EYE

126,092

— Contingent consideration 25,908

HWEE Total consideration 152,000

\266 PEXARRIERERAT 2019FFEHSE




35. a6t (&)

B O R R M ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE T NFF+_A=+—HIFFE
(BFEEN BAEE T T (RIS EHA))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

FFEE
R=Z—h%F
—A=+—8
Xiping Kaida
as at
31 Jan 2019
AR%T
RMB’000
AHRHBEEEER Recognised amounts of identifiable
EEEBENERESSE assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
ReRAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,817
TEIE - WFE&EE Property, plant and equipment 32,099
mLEE - Intangibles:
— B — Exclusive operating rights 79,547
FREEE Right-of-use assets 1,070
rE Inventories 2,480
BEFMSHERE Deferred tax assets 6,784
JiE WS AR 3 R LAt Ui R Trade and other receivables 7,828
JE AT BR R B ELAth B 5T 3R Trade and other payables (19,594)
EEA Borrowings (5,000)
ARAEE Contract liabilities (22,158)
RIEFTEREE Deferred tax liabilities (21,555)
BRI RF EERTE Total identifiable net assets acquired 64,318
e Goodwill 87,682
152,000
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BE-F-NF+-A=+—AUFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

35. ¥EBEH (&) 35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
AEeE
R-E—NF
—B=+—H HUAFEWRE* st
Xiping Kaida Prior years
as at 31 Jan 2019 acquisitions* Total
AREFIT AREFIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
WEBEBEEMNIESRE - Outflows of cash to acquire
HR M EESNER S businesses, net of cash acquired
—B2ffRe — cash paid 126,092 173,157 299,249
— KEFRENE S — cash and cash equivalents in
KR EEY a subsidiary acquired (2,817) — (2,817)
B 2018 FEIEMIRE  Less: cash prepaid in 2018 (28,291) — (28,291)
WEESHNRER Cash outflows on acquisition 94,984 173,157 268,141
* BHE-_Z—hF+-_A=+— * For the year ended 31 December 2019, such cash consideration
AEFE: fIXfHNEREY paid out included the amount of approximately RMB12,150,000,
B 6% UL AT F Z Wi K BE K RMB5,500,000, RMB139,707,000 and RMB15,800,000 for the
CREBERE--BARHEEH acquisitions of Mizhi Changxing, Wubu Changxing, Shijiazhuang
RBMEROLEE 23480 Jinming and Chaozhou huamao, respectively in prior years.

& AN R #12,150,0007T
A R ¥5,500,0007T © A R
®139,707,0007C K& A R #
15,800,0007T °
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

EBast(E

HRBHEHENEROR/SARE
18,0007t BEFfABE_T—1
FrTZA=1T—HLEFEBRREAN
TTHREM °

HEHE

B HEL R FIERE
BE—FN MNFEREREE
ERERMD  NMEEARERE
MR ABKBERTIARFRERE
ENAENE[RER  MAKERK
=X ARME 25,908,000 7T £ B
THE

C W iE B B IR AR R

M BR R E A R UK R A (B fE
A ANEH 7,828,000 -
EEERE -

//////

WA R R EE R

RKRBEBRE=T—-NF+=A
=t—HHE - kERTEER
BRASEERBEANS AR
82,538,0007T * ERUFAEA &
ARH 16,160,000 7T ©

EWRBEBE_ZT—hhF—HF—H
BEHHE_Z-NLFT=
A=+—BLFENERAEH
WAMEHFZEFBEES R AA
R #91,048,000T & A B %
16,774,000 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Acquisition-related costs of approximately RMB18,000 have been
charged to administrative expenses in the profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Contingent consideration

The contingent consideration arrangement requires the Group to pay
in cash RMB25,908,000 to the former owners of Xiping Kaida under
the condition that within one year of the equity transfer of them, no
dispute on the legal right of the equity and assets, no undisclosed
obligations or unrecorded liabilities to be discovered by the Group
and the revalued result of the assets and liabilities.

Acquired receivables

The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their
carrying amounts totalling RMB7,828,000.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business Xiping Kaida contributed aggregated revenues
of approximately RMB82,538,000 and aggregated net profit of
approximately RMB16,160,000 to the Group for the period from the
acquisition date to 31 December 2019.

Had the respective acquisition been consolidated from 1 January
2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income would
show pro-forma revenue of RMB91,048,000 and net profit of
RMB16,774,000, respectively.
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

36. FTRAIRE 36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY
RZZE—NFAA AEEBRE In June 2019, the Group disposed its owned 70% equity interests of
—HEETEEINERRERA Chongging Kaida Gas Limited (“Chongging Kaida”) to a third party
RI[EEYE|70%ME S & at a consideration of approximately RMB1,400,000. Net losses on
EHEHARIL1400,0007T ° disposal of the equity interest of approximately RMB10,718,000
EEUEZNFERNAEARK was recognised in profit or loss.

10,718,000 LB 5t AE HitE%

EEEEIERENFEENFE Details of net assets disposed of and losses on disposal of Chongqing
KEBAAANT Kaida are as follows:
EEEE
R=-Z—I#%F
A~NA=+H
Chongqing Kaida
As at
30 June 2019
AR¥T T
RMB’000
e - Disposal proceeds:
HeH B Cash consideration 1,400
W RBEFEE Less: Net assets disposed (17,311)
B FERESI MR Less: Non-controlling interest 5,193
HER B A TR FIES (M3 7) Net losses on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 7) (10,718)
EEE
R-Z-N#%F
AHA=+H
Chongqing Kaida
As at
30 June 2019
ARMT T
RMB’000
TEIE - WEMEE Property, plant and equipment 16,930
JFEE LA B 350 % LAt P LR Trade and other receivables 381
FEE Net assets 17,311
B FEIE R RE R Less: non-controlling interests (5,193)
BEFEE Net assets disposed 12,118
Wk 2 Cash received 1,400
B RETAFTMNES Less: Cash and cash equivalents of
MRS ZEEY subsidiary disposed =
I E TR A R R Net cash inflow on disposal of equity
W MAFEE interests in a subsidiary 1,400
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37.

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control.

The Group is controlled by Tian Lun Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Gold Shine Development Limited (incorporated
in the BVI), and is ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang Yingcen and
his wife (“Controlling Shareholders”).

The following is a summary of the significant transactions carried out
between the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course of
business during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, and
balances arising from related party transactions as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.

S ABRER (@) Name and relationship with related parties
B BB 22LES

Name of related party Relationship

Bl S VNG] ZAYNSIEES

International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) Shareholder of the Company
AEAXRMRRIEREERAGN(DIERRERE]) AR AT 2 A

Henan Tian Lun Gas Engineering Investment Limited

(“Henan Tian Lun investment”)

RN T
Suzhou Ping Zhuang

EEAMMRIRREARAR ([ REXR])

Changchun Tian Lun Gas Engineering
Investment Limited (“Changchun Tian Lun”)

BERMRBRERRMARAR ([ RBRB

Luoyang Tianlun Transport Energy

AER])

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholders

BEAT

Associate of the Group

PERRRR R Pl 2 2
Controlled by the Controlling Shareholders

AR AR IS 2 X
Controlled by the Controlling Shareholders

Technology Limited (“Tianlun Transport Energy”)

NEBERMESD
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
SRR AR EERBRRAF]

Henan Yutian New Energy Limited

/\M/‘\ j
Joint venture of the Group

AEBRERMESENZA

Controlled by Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
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BEZ_FE—NFT _H=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

37. BBAERE (&

(b) EXBEXS
AR E R T R THEARS -

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Significant related party transactions

The Group had the following significant transactions with related

parties.
BZ+-A=+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hE —E-NF
2019 2018
AR¥T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MREE Sales of gas
RN Suzhou Ping Zhuang 25,842 22,954
SR A#FLRAMR A Henan Yutian New Energy Limited 2,760 —
28,602 22,954
BE+-R=1t—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—S—hE —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR%T R AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EmeEE Purchase of raw materials
SRR FELBEAR AT Henan Yutian New Energy Limited 17,510 —
BEZ+-A=1+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—g-he —TN\E
2019 2018
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ZHFE Interest charged by
il /N IFC 19,175 23,241
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BE2—F—NF+_H="1—HIFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

37. BHMARS (& 37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) EXBEXZ(E) (b) Significant related party transactions (continued)

BE+-A=1+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —F-N\F
2019 2018
AR®F T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEERESE Repayment the principle of borrowing
B3] e N IFC 136,765 —
BZE+-A=+—RHLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—ZE-hEF —F-N\F
2019 2018
AR¥T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
g VNG Acquisition of subsidiary’s equity interests
EAmEE Henan Tian Lun investment — 71,510
BZE+=-A=+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
W 21 B R Dividends received
NEBRERmES Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund 8,123 —
BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NF —E-)\F
2019 2018
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R TIRERE Provide construction service
TR KRB /AR Henan Yutian New Energy Limited 1,591,209 1,043,429
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(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

37. BHMARS (& 37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) EXBEXZ(E) (b) Significant related party transactions (continued)

BE+-A=1+—-HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF - N\F
2019 2018
ARMT T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MR B Purchase of gas
PN (B R IEY Tianlun Transport Energy — 3,909
LB RSN A E EBR LA These transactions are carried out on terms agreed with the counter
B 17 VIR RUET T © party in the ordinary course of business.
(c) EHEAEEA MASER (c) Balances with related parties
R+=—A=+—~H
As at 31 December
—2-nE  —TNE
2019 2018
ARET T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUWERF R EEUFR  Trade and other receivables
— AR RIBEIR — Henan Yutian New Energy Limited
BIRAT] 487,635 442,977
— AEXmIEE — Henan Tian Lun investment 13,617 13,643
— BRI — Suzhou Ping Zhuang 623 553
— E&EXM® — Changchun Tian Lun = 6,400
501,875 463,573
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BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

37. BBARG (& 37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(c) EERAEREAMAEER(2) (c) Balances with related parties (continued)
B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —E-N\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREE Contract assets
— AR IR — Henan Yutian New Energy Limited
BRAF 406,600 210,450
B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —ET-N\F
2019 2018
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EARZ R EMENT Trade and other payables
— AR RIEER — Henan Yutian New Energy Limited
BRAF 21,175 28,650
— ER /A a — IFC 7,480 11,966
— AEXAEEE — Henan Tian Lun investment 327 227
— RN EE — Suzhou Ping Zhuang 200 200
— KRR BELIR — Tianlun Transport Energy — 132
29,182 41,175
W+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —E—N\F
2019 2018
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EAER Loan due to
— BB EmAF] — IFC 279,048 411,792
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BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
(BFEBARE T (BRIFFFHS))
For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

37. BBAERG (&)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(d) BREEASHH (d) Key management compensation
BE+-A=1+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hF —T-N\F
2019 2018
ARBT T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B F & NERL Basic salaries and allowances 18,527 15,633
RIRAE R 5K Retirement benefit contributions 1,858 1,688
20,385 17,321
(e) HBERED (e) Financial guarantee contracts

HZE2019F12A318 L5 E -
AEES—RALEENHERR
RHER - R2019412A31H -
taEEENHBRRCBHRNE
TR Et & #E S A K% 50,500,000
T BEERABNBE2019F12A8
31 AL FEAREE I H MR
BRZAFERELBRHALAEKR
WEFBIEL R - Lo BEERR
RBEAZFERMEEAEER
EHHE TG -
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In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group provided
guarantees to a subsidiary of a joint venture. As at 31 December
2019, the guaranteed facilities amount utilised by the subsidiary of
a joint venture was RMB50,500,000. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair values of the financial guarantee contracts of the Group
issued during the year ended 31 December 2019 was insignificant
at the date of issue of the financial guarantee and no provision is
necessary. In addition, the directors do not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Group under any of these
guarantees.
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BREHRSEE

RZE-—NF+ZAZ+NE"
REEEE =T — D IE R
HEOUBBLEESZERARABR
NAELI00%EHE - HERARK
280,000,000 7T ° BZABEFEH
MHEROMEERAREERR
AR RARNDHEMEE - WHESE
BRA-Z-AF+-_A=+—H%H
KRR WEEERE = HHER
EITHE - BAESERHREUS -

BE-_Z-_ZF-A=1+—H®HE

RE  EFERBREHEC
T-AFE+-_A=+—HILFEN
RERE FRARE 12.009 ° it
ERFENRTARRAFTASES
HfE - B2 AMESL -

2020F %) - B EMREE
([COVID-19 outbreak]) /& % - &
B 5B AR T — K5 FEP A e
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Ao AEBBERIBETNERE
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38.

BE_FE—NFT _HA="1—HIFE
(2BEENBARETIT(BRIEZFHA))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 28 December 2019, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement with a third party to purchase 100% equity interest of
Shengiu County Huixin Natural Gas Co., Ltd. with a total consideration
of RMB280,000,000. The acquiree engages in construction of
natural gas pipelines, and the distribution and sales of natural gas
in Zhoukou City, Henan Province, the PRC. The acquisition had not
been completed as at 31 December 2019. The acquiree is under
valuation by a third-party valuer and the valuation results have not
been obtained up to date.

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors on 31 March
2020, a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of
RMB12.00 cents per share was proposed. The proposal is subject to
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, details refer to
Note 31.

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak™) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented across the
country. The Group will pay close attention to the development of
the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the consolidated
financial position and operating results of the Group. As at the
date on which this set of financial statements were authorised for
issue, the Group was not aware of any material adverse effects on
the consolidated financial statements as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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39. XARMEEEER 39. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

LE#ESEER MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
ARIEEAEX Balance sheet of the Company
R+=—B=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-hF —ET-N\F
\ 2019 2018
BsE ARET T ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
HAth EUR Other receivables 26,501 35,832
FRAIKE Investments in subsidiaries 11(a) 128,270 121,967
154,771 157,799
REBEE Current assets
Hfth e sk Other receivables 2,872,596 2,757,913
PR B3R Restricted cash 26,933 44,461
ReNReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 30,392 21,502
2,929,921 2,823,876
WEE Total assets 3,084,692 2,981,675
Enkas EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BERAATE Equity attributable to owners
FrEE 2= of the Company
&z Share capital 8,430 8,340
PSS ) Share premium 1,029,366 1,188,151
G Reserves (Note (a)) 23,439 25,965
R5TE5E Accumulated losses (742,079) (595,811)
R Total equity 319,156 626,645
=L LIABILITIES
EREBEE Non-current liabilities
fBx Borrowings 2,350,340 1,953,258
REAE Current liabilities
&R Borrowings 377,848 366,036
HAbFER TR Other payables 37,348 35,736
415,196 401,772
waE Total liabilities 2,765,536 2,355,030
HERKEE Total equity and liabilities 3,084,692 2,981,675
RARAFMEEBBREHESEERN The balance sheet of Company was approved by the Board of
—E-EF=ZA=+—A#t% I Directors on 31 March 2020 and was signed on its behalf.

RREFEHTE

RS EE HRREE
Mr. Zhang Yingcen Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
3 =
Director Director
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

39. XARMEEEER 39. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

Ri#EEEER (& MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
PisE (a) AR BIRAHEF) - R EFT Note (a) Share premium, reserves and accumulated losses movements of the
EEZHIER Company
R A5 F & ZiEE
Share Accumulated
premium Reserves losses
AREFTT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
R-_ZE—N\F—HA—H At 1 January 2018 1,264,114 21,131 (388,039)
REEE Loss for the year — — (207,772)
ST ERAR R ERRAR A Interim and final dividends paid (75,963) — —
BT ARSHERE Value of employee services — 4,834 —
R-Z—N\F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 1,188,151 25,965 (595,811)
RZZE—NF—HA—H At 1 January 2019 1,188,151 25,965 (595,811)
ARE fEriE Loss for the year — — (146,268)
XA ERAR K BRRAR A Interim and final dividends paid (211,838) — —
BT ARSHIERE Value of employee services — 6,303 —
BB B IR B TR (D Issue of shares pursuant to
share option scheme 53,053 (8,829) =
R-B-hEFE+=A=+—8H At 31 December 2019 1,029,366 23,439 (742,079)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

40. EEWFmMMELR (F  40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

B R BMRBIN (56 622 DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
F)E 3831 (AT BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
(HEEENRER) KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
BOINE6226E) & 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
EHRARENIKE) INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF

DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES)

(@) EERTBAEZTM (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
BREFSENITHRBENEFHET The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set out
below:
HE-Z— NG+ A=+—8H1t For the year ended 31 December 2019:
FE
AEEA
AARHETR
ALENER

RAEA ApER  REEMES

UL STl R REARAD
he #e Bfike BNEA Bz % Bﬁ”&ﬂmﬁ &t
er
emoluments paid
or receivable in

respect of director's

other services

in connection with

Employer's Other the management

contributionto ~ benefitsand ~ of the affairs

Allowances ~ aretirement  share-based of the Company

Discretionary  and henefits benefit  compensation or its subsidiary
2 Name Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme expenses undertaking Total
ARBTR  ARBTn  ARMTn  ARMTR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

FEATE Mr. Zhang Yingcen - 780 - 4 48 - - 832
FRESLE Mr. Zhang Suwei* - 157 - 1 6 = - 164
Ry . Liu Min* - 400 - 3 1 — — 414
BREE M. Feng Y - 390 - 4 15 1261 - 1670
Tt Ms. Li Tao - 390 - 4 15 1,261 - 1,670
TRmrEr Mr. Wang Jiansheng* 132 - - - - - - 132
Ayt Mr. Liu jin 132 - - - - — - 132
s Mr. Li Liuging 60 = = = = = = 60
HELT Ms. Zhao Jun 60 - - - - - - 60
BRREE Mr. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael 138 - - = = = = 138
8 Chief executive:
WRERE Mr. Yian Zhenyuan = 600 = 4 48 3,781 = 4,433
522 2,717 — 20 143 6,303 - 9,705
* REEEE: RZE—NEAX * Mr. Zhang Suwei: resigned with effect on 17 June 2019.
A++tHEHT -
BIREE - RZZE—NERA Mr. Liu Min: appointed with effect on 17 June 2019.
+EBZME
BREE - RZT-_ZTF=H Mr. Feng Yi: resigned with effect on 31 March 2020.
—+—HBHT -
FREEREE  RZE_TF= Mr. Wang Jiansheng: resigned with effect on 31 March 2020.
B=+—HB#HT -

\280 PEXARRIERERAT 2019FFEHSE




B O R R M ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE—F—NF+-A=1—HIFZE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

40. EEWFmMMELR (F  40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

(a)

B REDG (£ 622 DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
E)E 3831k - (AFH BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
(HEEER=ER) KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
HHIY(E622G6E) & 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
FHRARENEE) INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
(42 DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)
BEERTBEEBEHN(Z) (@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)
BHE-ZT— )\F+-_A=+—A1F For the year ended 31 December 2018:
FE
e
NS
FRECEN
SR
RIVER HthigHl EfES
2R HEL kRG REmRAE
#e ¢ Rise R [EXE TATH J@U&E%% @it
T
receivable
in respect of
director’§ othgr
cometon
with the
management
Employer's Other of the

contributionto ~ benefitsand  affairs of the

Allowances ~ aretirement  share-based Company or

Discretionary ~ and benefits benefit  compensation its subsidiary
EAE Name Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme expenses  undertaking Total
ARETL  ARETT  ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

S Byt Mr. Zhang Yingeen - 780 - 4 57 - - 841
FREGE Mr. Zhang Suwei* - 450 - 4 17 - - 471
BREE Mr, Feng Yi - 360 - 4 16 934 - 1314
?%ﬁi Ms. Li Tao - 360 - 4 16 934 - 1,314
AEh Mr. Sun Heng* - 150 - - - - - 150
TERSE Mr. Wang Jiansheng 132 - - - - - - 132
ZRERE Mr. Li Liuging 60 - - - - - - 60
HELT Ms. Zhao Jun 60 - - - - - - 60
fRRLE M. Yeung Yui Yuen Michael 133 - - - - - - 133
A Mr. Liu jin* 77 - - - - - - 77
s Chief executive:
RETE Mr. Xian Zhenyuan — 600 — 4 57 2,802 — 3,463
462 2,700 - 20 163 4,670 - 8,015
* REREE: RZZE—N\F= * Mr. Zhang Suwei: appointed with effect on 26 March 2018.
A=+ BZE-
Bk E - RZZE—N\FHA Mr. Liu Jin: appointed with effect on 28 May 2018.
—+NBRE-
RiELE : RZZE—N\F=A Mr. Sun Heng: resigned with effect on 26 March 2018.
ZHIREBHE -
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B OB M SRR Y RE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R E—NFF A=, —HIFFE

(2B BAREF T (RIS EHE))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

40. EEWFmMMELR (F  40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

B2 B RBI (56 622
T)% 3831k - (AF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG

(FHEBEENZER) KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
BOIY(E622G6E) & 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
FHRARENNE) INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
(#&) DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(b) EEMENKRER (b) Directors’ retirement benefits
REAFEAN  BEESFHELERRA During the year, no retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
AINEFARESSRHEMRS by the directors in respect of their services as directors of the
BB ARHE T AR EEMmIE Company and its subsidiaries or other services in connection with
7 RIS IE ST IR RTE F sk FE R the management of the affairs of the company or its subsidiary
REM(ZZE—N\F : &) o undertaking (2018: Nil).

(c) ES=HEEBER (c) Directors’ termination benefits
REFEAN BESEFRIEES During the year, no payments or benefits in respect of termination
AR M B sk M mE S Tk of directors’ services were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
AR FREABF ¢ TR Al A directors; nor are any payable (2018: Nil).
FE(ZE-N\F ) -

(d ®MRBHESREMMEE=S  (d) Consideration provided to third parties for making

RUHNEE

RAEER  BMERENEERS
MEME=ZAE=TrKkZ2KE
ZE-)N\FE) o
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available directors’ services

During the year, no consideration was provided to or receivable by
third parties for making available directors’ services (2018: Nil).




B O R R M ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HE—F—NF+-A=1—HIFZE

(2BEEN BAREFIT(HIESEHY))

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

40. EEWFmMMELR (F  40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

(e)

(f)

B2 B RBI (56 622
T)% 3831k - (AF
(KBEESHNmER)

BB (% 622G E) &
L RARENKE)
(&)

BEUES B2 4
ZERBEERASEAZ
EX - EERREMRZ 2
RAEER - BmAES  EE
FEMEERBEEEATRA
TER RERARMZH (=T
— N\ ) -

EEAERS RHEISEN
EXREHE

RAFER - ARRLERFER
WRARBZEBEMARBZES
ERSHRERTHREEA DL
BEERG  ZHIAR(ZE-N
F )

(e)

(f)

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG

KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year, there are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

During the year, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2018: Nil).
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE+t-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

B4 —E-NF ZET-N\F T—+tF T—RF T—AHF
RESULTS 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ARETT ARETRE AR®TT ARBTT AREBTE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 6,548,618 5,113,254 3,109,014 2,693,094 2,251,970
EH Gross profit 1,703,892 1,428,216 767,944 692,349 608,770
B PS5 B A1 B Profit before income tax 1,127,380 864,804 575,839 444,708 429,471
Fri5fiE A Income tax expense (313,915) (264,444) (146,682) (110,299) (111,489)
FEFE Profit for the year 813,465 600,360 429,157 334,409 317,982
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
BE - BERER —E-hAF ZZE-)N\F ZE—+F ZE—RF ZT—1F
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ARETT ARETRT AR®TT ARBETT ARETET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1B E Total assets 11,938,781 11,434,093 8,472,249 7,633,412 6,678,409
BEE Total liabilities 7,751,461 7,890,324 5,354,446 4,881,703 3,896,031
Rz Total equity 4,187,320 3,543,769 3,117,803 2,751,709 2,782,378

\284 PEXARRIERERAT 2019FFEHSE




AIEMS

TIANLUN GAS

China Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited
PEIXHERRERBRLZ T

(RASHSEMAZHERRF)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
f& 1557 Stock Code: 01600



	COVER
	INSIDE FRONT COVER
	CONTENTS
	COMPANY PROFILE
	BUSINESS REGIONS
	OPERATION & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	DIRECTORS' REPORT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER

